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(1) Annex A includes a discussion and reconciliation of non-GAAP measures to the most directly comparable GAAP measures.
(2) Inside Mortgage Finance ranking, based on data as of December 31, 2024.

Dear Shareholders,

2024 was an outstanding year for Mr. Cooper, marked by strong financial performance, strategic

execution, and market leadership. We delivered a return on common equity of 14.7% and an

operating return on tangible common equity (ROTCE)(1) of 15.6%, up from 12.5% the prior year.

Book value per share rose to $75.70, and tangible book value(1) increased to $71.61, representing

12% year-over-year growth. These results helped drive a 47% increase in our stock price,

significantly outperforming our peer group’s 5% gain. Reflecting on the year, the core drivers of our

success are simple but powerful: a strategy built on operational leadership and exceptional customer

experience, consistent investment in innovative technology, and a people-first culture. These

principles will continue to guide our approach as the mortgage industryrr evolves.

One of the most notable achievements of the year was the 57% growth of our servicing portfolff io,

which now totals $1.56 trillion and serves 6.7 million customers. This growth reflects the successfulff

execution of a strategy we laid out in late 2022, when we identifieff d dislocations in the bulk MSR

market caused by margin pressure on originators, strategic divestiturtt es, and the ongoing exit of

banks. Our foresight and disciplined execution allowed us to act on these opportunt ities and further

strengthen our scale advantage. Today, our platform is more than 50% larger than that of our nearest

competitor.

Amajoa r catalyst for the growth in 2024 was our acquisition of Flagstar’s mortgage operations, which

included MSRs, advances, subsu ervicing contracts, and a third-party originations platform. This

transaction demonstrated our ability to deliver full-service solutions to large financial institutt ions and

help them achieve their strategic objectives. It also solidifieff d our position as the #1 largest

subsu ervicer(2) in the industry.rr Thanks to our industry-rr leading onboarding capabilities, our Pyro AI-

powered tool for document extraction/classification, and our extensive experience, we executed a

seamless integration of Flagstar’s customers, clients, and team members. This was the largest

acquisition in our historyrr and one of the largest customer transferff s ever in the mortgage industry.rr I’m

incredibly proud of our team’s execution and excited to have welcomed 1.2 million new customers to

the Mr. Cooper family.

The Flagstar acquisition was financed with a high-yield bond issuance at the tightest spreads in our

company’s history,rr a strong vote of confidff ence in our strategy and balance sheet management from



the high yield investor community. That confidff ence was further validated by a Moody’s credit rating

upgrade, subsu equently followed by a revision to a positive outlook.

As the industryrr leader, we know operational excellence is foundational. Successfulff servicing

demands an intense focus on the customer, rigorous compliance, deep loss mitigation expertise,

operational discipline, and scale. In 2024, we were honored to receive Freddie Mac’s SHARP Gold

Award, its highest recognition for servicers, highlighting our supeu rior performance, risk management,

and quality. We also helped several subsu ervicing clients achieve Gold-level statust through our strong

performance on their portfolff ios. In addition, we earner d Fannie Mae’s 2024 STARTT Award and were

the only servicer to be recognized in all three categories -- General Servicing, Solution Delivery,rr and

Timeline Management -- further proof of our industry-rr leading capabilities.

Technology and effiff ciency remain key drivers of our success. In late 2024, we launched AgentiQ, our

proprietaryrr AI platform designed to enhance customer engagement and service quality. Afteff r a

successfulff pilot in Q4, AgentiQ is now fully deployed in our servicing call center, analyzing over

400,000 calls per month and receiving enthusiastic feedbadd ck from both new and experienced agents.

We’re excited to bring this powerful tool to our originations teams later this year.

We also advanced Project Flash, our initiative to digitize and automate the originations process. This

effoff rt has meaningfulff ly reduced operational costs and improved cycle times. At the same time, we

enhanced our correspondent channel in anticipation of a normalizing bulk market, launching a new

client portal, improving pricing models, and enhancing our capital markets execution. These

investments paid offff -- by the end of 2024, we rose to a top-five market share position in

correspondent, up from #14 in 2023.

We’ve also prioritized growing our fee-based revenues. Through subsu ervicing, master servicing,

special servicing and other fee-driven businesses, we’ve steadily gained new clients and increased

wallet share among existing partners. These business lines require minimal capital or liquidity and

have grown at a double-digit pace over the past three years, making them highly accretive to

ROTCE.

Of course, none of this would be possible without our people. In 2024, we earner d Great Place to

Work® certificff ation for the sixth consecutive year. We were ranked #14 on the Best Workplkk aces in

Texas and named among the Best Workplkk aces in Financial Services and Insurance by Fortunet and



Great Place to Work. These honors reflect the high-trust, inclusive, and collabora ative culture we’ve

built. Our employee turnover remained at record-low levels, reinforcing our position as an employer

of choice.

In closing, I would like to thank my fellow Coopers for their unwavering commitment to customers

and colleagues. I would also like to express my appreciation to the Board of Directors for their

guidance and to my fellow shareholders for your continued trusrr t and supporu t. We look forward to

building on this year’s momentumt as we continue leading the way in the evolving mortgage

landscape.

Sincerely,

Jay Bray

Chairman and CEO
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PART I.

Item 1. Busineii ssee
The discii losuresee set forthtt in this item arerr qualified by Item 1A. Riskii Factorsrr and the section within Item 1, capta ioned “CauCC tion
Regae rding Forward-rr Looking Statements.” Management’s Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial Condition and Resultstt of
Operations of this repoe rt and othett r cautionary statements arerr set forthtt elsell whererr in this repoe rt.

OVERVIRR EW
Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc., including our consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, “Mr. Cooper,” the “Compam ny,”yy “we,” “us” or
“our”), is ththe largest servicer of residential mortgage loans in the U.S. and a majoa r mortgage originator. We also provide real
estate property disposition services through our Xome subsu idiary.

Our success depends on working with residential mortgage customers as well as government-sponsored investors, private
investors, and business partners, to help customers achieve home ownership and manage what is typiy cally their largest and most
impormm tant financial asset, and by helping our investors and clients maximize the returns from their portfolff ios of residential
mortgages. Investors primarily include government sponsored enterprises (“GSE”) such as the Federal National Mortgage
Association (“Fannie Mae” or “FNMA”) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (“Freddie Mac” or “FHLMC”), the
Government National Mortgage Association (“Ginnie Mae” or “GNMA”), investors in private-labea l securitizations, as well as
organizations owning mortgage servicing rights (“MSR”), which engage us for subsu ervirr cing, special servicing, technology
licensing, recapta urt e services, and other value-added services. We are regulated at both the Federal and individual state levels.

We have provided a glossary of terms, which defines certain industry-specific and other terms that are used herein, in Item 7,
Management’s Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial Condition and Resultstt of Operations (“MD“ &A”), of this Form 10-K.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
We conducdd t our operations primarily through two operating segments: Servicing and Originations.

See Item 7, Management’s Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Note 20,0 Segme ent
Infon rmation in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data,
for additional financial information about our segments.

Servicing
As of Decembem r 31, 2024, we served 6.7 million customers with an aggregate unpan id principal balance (“UPB”) of $1,556
billion, consisting of $736 billion in owned servicing and $820 billion in subservicing and other. During 2024, we acquired
$753 billion UPB of loans, with $516 billion of UPB related to subservirr cing.

We service loans on behalf of investors or owners of the underlying mortgages. Servicing consists of collecting loan payments,
remitting principal and interest payments to investors, managing escrow funds for the payment of mortgage-related expenses,
such as taxes and insurance, perforff ming loss mitigation activities on behalf of investors and othet rwise administering our
mortgage loan servicing portfolio.

In 2024, we continued to grow our servicing portfolio through the acquisition of certain mortgage operation assets of Flagstar
Bank, N.A.(“Flagstar”), MSR portfolff io acquisitions, growth in our correspondent and co-issue channel, and through growth in
our subsu ervirr cing business. For further discussion regarding the Flagstar transaction, refer to Note 3, Acquisitions in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data.

Servicing
Where we own the right to service loans, we recognize MSR assets in our consolidated financial statements and have elected to
mark this portfolio to fair value each quarter. We primarily generate recurring revenue through contrat ctuat l servicing fees, which
include late payment, modification, and other ancillary fees and interest income on custodial deposits. As the MSR owner, we
may be obligated to make servicing advances to fund scheduled principal, interest, tax and insurance payments when the
mortgage loan customer has failed to make the scheduled payments and to cover foreclosure costs and various other items that
are required to preserverr the assets being serviced. As the MSR owner, we generally have the right to solicit our customers for
refinance opportunities, which are processed through our direct-to-consumer channel in our Originations segment. Additionally,yy
we may be able to modify or refinance loans pursuant to governmrr ent programs and earn incentive fees or gain-on-sale revenues
from redelivering modified loans to new securitizations.
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Subservicing
We service loans on behalf of clients who own the underlying servicing rights or underlying mortgage loans. Since we do not
own the right to service the loan, we do not recognize an MSR asset in our consolidated financial statements. We primarily
generate revenue based upon a stated fee per loan per montht that varies based on the loan’s delinquency statust . As a
subsu ervicer, we may be obligated to make servicing advances; however, advances are generally limited, with recoveries
typically following within 30 days. Additionally,yy our exposure to foreclosure-related costs and losses is generally limited in our
subsu ervirr cing relationships as those risks are retained by the owner of the MSR. Capia tal requirements for subservirr cing
arrangements are substantially lower than for owned MSRs. We also offeff r high-touch special servicing through our brandd
Rushmore Servicing.

According to the latest publication by Inside Mortgage Finance, as of the third quarter of 2024, we were the second largest
mortgage loan subsu ervirr cer in the United States. As of December 31, 2024, our subsu ervicing portfolff io had a total UPB fof
$820 billion, which accounted for 53% of the total servicing portfolio. We believe the subservicing operations allows us to
leverage the scale of our technology and the producd tivity of ouru team members to provide cost effeff ctive servicing to clients
while limiting the use of capital and liquidity,yy thereby producing an attractive return on equiq ty.

Focus on the Customer
We are focused on providing quality service to our customers and we have invested significff antly in technology solutions to
imprm ove the customer experience.

For each loan we service or subservice, we utilize a customer-centric model designed to increase customer performance and to
decrease customer delinquencies. Keys to this model include frequeq nt customer interactions and utilization of multiple loss
mitigation strat tegies, particularly in the early stages of defaulaa t. We train our customer service representatives to find solutions
that work for homeowners when circumstances allow. We believe this commitment to continued home ownership imprm oves
asset perforff mance for our investors.

Originations
Our Originations segment originates residential mortgage loans with the intent to sell in the secondary market, providing both
purchase and refinance opportunt ities to our existing servicing customers through our direct-to-consumer channel and purchases
loans from other originators through our correspondent channel. According to the latest publu ication by Inside Mortgage
Finance, as of the fourth quarter of 2024, we were the 18th largest overall mortgage loan originator in the United States. During
the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024, we funded $22.8 billion in mortgage loans. Originated loans are classified as held for sale
and carried at fair value; we generate revenue through realized and unrealized gains on mortgage loans held for sale associated
with the sale of mortgage loans as well as fees earner d associated with originating loans. We originate and purchase
conventional mortgage loans conforff ming to the underwriting standards of the GSEs. We also originate and purchase
government-insured mortgage loans, which are insured by the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”), Department of
Veterans Affaff irs (“VA”) and U.S. Department of Agriculture (“USDA”). Additionally, we offeff r closed-end second lien
refinance loans and jumbo loans in our direct-to-consumer channel, originating to the standards of our investors.

We utilize warehouse facilities to fund originated loans. When we sell originated mortgage loans to secondary market investors,
we generally retain the servicing rights on mortgage loans sold. The mortgage loans are typiyy cally sold within 30 days of
origination to botht mitigate credit risk and minimize the capital required. The majoa rity of our mortgage loans were sold to, or
were sold pursuant to, programs sponsored by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae.

Direct-to-Consumer Channel
We originate loans directly with customers through our direct-to-consumer channel. This channel utilizes our call centers,
website and mobile apps, specially-trained teams of licensed mortgage originators, predictive analytics and modeling utilizing
proprietary data from our servicing portfolio to reach those of our existing 6.7 million servicing customers who may benefit
from a new mortgage. Depending on customer eligibility,yy we will refinance existing loans into conventional, government or
non-agency producd ts. Through lead campam igns and direct marketing, the direct-to-consumer channel seeks to convert leads into
loans in a cost-efficff ient manner. We earnr gain-on-sale revenues from securitizing newly-originated loans.

Our direct-to-consumer channel represented 35% and 47% of our mortgage originations for the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively, based on funded volume. Pull through adjud sted lock volume for this channel was $7.7 billion and $5.7
billion in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Corresrr pos ndendd t Channel
We purchase closed mortgage loans from community banks, credit unions, and independent mortgage bankers. We generate
revenue from the receipt of funding fees from correspondents earned on a per loan basis, as well as the gain on sale of loans
sold into the secondary market. The correspondent channel serves as a cost-effectff ive means of acquiq ring new customer
relationships for our servicing portfolio.
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Our correspondent channel represented 65% and 53% of our mortgage originations for the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively, based on funded volume. Pull through adjud sted lock volume for this channel was $16.3 billion and $7.1
billion in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Competition
Our Servicing segment primarily competes against large financial institutions and non-bank servicers. The subsu ervicing market
in which we operate is also highly competitive and we face competition related to subsu ervicing pricing and service delivery.
Our competitive position is also dependent on our ability to provide excellent customer service, manage delinquent loans and
mitigate investor losses, demonstrate compliance with local, state, federal regulations and investor guidelines, and imprm ove
technology and processes while controlling our costs.

Our Originations segment competes based on product offeff rings, rates, fees and customer service. Many of our competitors
consist of large banks or other financial institutions with greater financial resources, more diverse funding sources with lower
funding costs, and less reliant on the sale of mortgage loans into the secondaryrr markets to maintain their liquidity. Additionally,yy
newer competitors are reinventing aspects of the mortgage loan industry and capta urtt ing profitff pools historically collected by
existing market participants.

Our primaryrr competitive strengths flow from our highly-efficff ient platform and our ability to market our producd ts to our
servicing portfolio customers. We believe our origination capabilities provide a significff ant advantage compared to other
servicers and subservirr cers. Our Originations segment is highly dependent on our customer relationships. Many smaller and
mid-sized financial institutions may find it difficff ult to compete in the mortgage industryrr due to the significff ant market share of
the largest competitors, along with the continual need to invest in technology in order to reduce operating costs while
maintaining compliance with underwriting standards and regulatoryrr requirements. Our ability to win new clients and maintain
existing customers is largely driven by the level of customer service we provide and our ability to comply and adapt to an
increasingly complex regulatory environment.

Government Regulation
The residential mortgage industry is highly regulated. We are required to comply with a wide array of federal, state and local
laws and regulations that regulate, among other things, the manner in which we conducdd t our servicing, originations and
ancillary business and the fees we may charge. These regulations directly impamm ct our business and require constant compliance.

Cyclicality and Seasonality
The U.S. residential real estate industryrr is seasonal, cyclical and affeff cted by changes in general economic conditions. Industry
demand is affeff cted by consumer demand for home loans and the market for buying, selling, financing and/or refinancing
residential real estate, which in turn, is affeff cted by the national and global economy,yy regional trends, property valuations,
interest rates, and socio-economic trends by state and federal regulations and programs which may accelerate or slow certain
real estate trends.

Human Capital Resources
Over the last few years, we have cultivated a people-first culture, utilizing team member feedbad ck to drive new initiatives. Mr.
Cooper had approximately 7,900 emplmm oyees as of Decembem r 31, 2024 across the U.S. and India.

As a company, Mr. Cooper is grounded in a set of core values - being challengers of convention, champim ons for our customers
and cheerleaders for our team. Our most recent engagement survey,yy which led to our sixtht Great Place to Work® certificff ation,
shows how our intentional effoff rts are making a differff ence. The survey results also led to recognition by Fortuntt e on their Best
Workplk aces in Financial Services and Best Workplk aces in Texas lists. In addition, Mr. Cooper was recognized by Great Place to
Work India on the top 100 Best Companies to Work For list and on their list of Best Workplk aces in Banking, Financial Services
and Insurance, among othet r awards.

Talent Managea ment:We invest in attracting, developing and retaining the best talent. We operate an overarching Talent
Management function, which combines our Training, Leadership Development and Talent Acquisition teams into one group.
Over the past year, we offeff red our team members training across a broad range of categories, including leadership, inclusion,
profesff sional skills, and performance management.

Additional Information
To learnrr more about Mr. Cooper Group Inc., please visit our website at www.mrcorr opergrogg up.com. From time to time, we use
our website as a channel of distribution of material Company information. We make our Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) availabla e free of charge under the Investors
section of our website as soon as reasonabla y practicable afteff r we electronically file the reports with, or furnish them to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Our reports, proxy and information statements and othet r information filed
electronically with the SEC can also be accessed at www.sww ec.gov.
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Our website also provides access to reports filed by our directors, executive offiff cers and certain significant stockholders
pursuant to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conducd t and
Ethics, Code of Ethics, and charters for the standing committees of our Board of Directors are availabla e on our website. Any
information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

CAUTIONS REGARDING FORWARDWW -LOOKING STATTT EMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the U.S. federal securities laws. These forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, statements concernir ng plans, objectives, goals, projections, strategies, core initiatives,
future events or perforff mance, and underlying assumptions and othett r statements, which are not statements of historical facts.
When used in this discussion, the words “anticipate,” “appea ars,” “believe,” “forff esee,” “intend,” “should,” “expect,” “estimate,”
“projeo ct,” “plan,” “may,”yy “could,” “will,” “are likely” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. These statements involve predictions of our future financial condition, performance, plans and strategies, and are
thus dependent on a numbem r of factors including, without limitation, assumptions and data that may be imprm ecise or incorrect.
Specific factors that may impam ct performance or other predictions of future actions have, in many but not all cases, been
identifieff d in connection with specific forward-looking statements. As with any projection or forecast, forward-looking
statements are inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstances, and we are under no obligation to, and
expressly disclaim any obligation to, update or alter our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.

A number of imporm tant factors exist that could cause future results to differff materially from historical performance and these
forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a differff ence include, but are not limited to:

• macroeconomic and U.S. residential real estate market conditions;
• changes in prevailing interest rates and/or changes in home prices;
• our ability to maintain or grow the size of our servicing portfolio;
• our ability to maintain or grow our originations volume and profitaff bia lity;
• our ability to recapture voluntaryr prepayments related to our existing servicing portfolff io;
• our shiftff in the mix of our servicing portfolio to subservirr cing, which is highly concentrated;
• our ability to prevent cyber intrusrr ions and mitigate cyber risks;
• delays in our ability to collect or be reimbum rsed for servicing advances;
• our ability to obtain sufficff ient liquidity and capital to operate our business;
• disruptrr ions in the secondary home loans market;
• our ability to successfulff ly implement our strategic initiatives and hedging strategies;
• our ability to realize anticipated benefits of our previous acquisitions;
• our ability to fully utilize our net operating loss, othet r tax carryr forwards and certain built-in losses or deductions;
• changes in our business relationships or changes in servicing guidelines with Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie

Mae;
• third-party credit, servicer and correspondent risks;
• our ability to pay down or refinance debt;
• our ability to manage legal and regulatory examinations and enforcement investigations and proceedings, compliance

requirements and related costs;
• our reliance on vendor relationships;
• issues related to the development and use of artificff ial intelligence;
• health pandemics, hurricanes, earthquakes, fires, floods and othet r natural catastrophic events; and
• our ability to maintain our licenses and other regulatory approvals.

All of these factors are difficff ult to predict, contain uncertainties that may materially affeff ct actuat l results and may be beyond our
contrott l. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for our management to predict all such factors or to assess
the effeff ct of each such factor on our business. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking
statements contained herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and any of these statements included
herein may prove to be inaccurate. Given the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included
herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by us or any othet r person that the results or
conditions described in such statements or our objectives and plans will be achieved. Please refer to Item 1A, Riskii Factors,rr and
Item 7, Management’s Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, sections of this report for
further information on these and othet r factors affeff cting our business.

Item 1A. Riskii Factortt srr

You should carefulff ly consider the following risk factors together with all of the othet r information included in this report,
including the financial statements and related notes, when deciding to invest in us. The risks and uncertainties described below
could materially adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations in future periods and are not the
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only risks facing our Company. Additional risks not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may
materially adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations in future periods.

Risk Factor Summary

Market, Financial Reporting, Credit and Liquidity Risks

• Our revenues in Originations and Servicing are highly dependent on macroeconomic and U.S. residential real estate
market conditions.

• Our earnings may decrease because of changes in prevailing interest rates and/or declines in home prices.
• We may be unabla e to obtain sufficff ient capital to operate our business, and our indebtedness may limit our financial and

operating activities and our ability to incur additional debt to fund future needs.
• A disruprr tion in the secondary home loan market, including the MBS market, could have a detrimental effeff ct on our

business.
• If our estimates or assumptions in our financial models prove to be incorrect, it may affeff ct our earnings.
• We may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of previous or potential acquisitions and dispositions.
• Our hedging strategies may not be successfulff in mitigating our risks associated with interest rates.
• We have third-party credit, servicer and correspondent risks.
• Changes in tax legislation and challenges from tax authorities may have an adverse impam ct on our financial condition.
• We may not be able to fully utilize our net operating loss (“NOL”), othet r tax carry forwards and certain built-in losses

or deductions.

Business & Operational Risks

Servicing
• A significant increase in delinquencies for the loans that we own and service could have a material impamm ct on our

revenues, expenses and liquiq dity and on the valuation of our MSRs.
• We may not maintain or grow our business if we do not acquire MSRs or enter into favorable subsu ervirr cing agreements.
• We service higher risk loans which are more expensive to service than conventional mortgage loans.
• We are required to make servicing advances that can be subju ect to delays in recovery or may not be recoverabla e.
• Our counterparr rties may terminate our servicing rights and subservicing contracts.
• We could have a downgrade in our servicer ratings.

Originations
• We may not be able to maintain the volumes in our loan originations business.
• We may be required to indemnifyff or repurchase loans we sold, or will sell, if these loans fail to meet certain criteria.
• We are highly dependent upon loan programs administered by the Agencies to generate revenues.
• Our second lien originations have higher market risk.

Corporate/Other
• Our Real Estate exchange business could be further impam cted by delays in foreclosure sales, as well as economic

slowdowns and recessions.

General Business & Operational Risks

• We may not be successfulff in implmm ementing certain strategic initiatives.
• Technology failures or cyber-attacks against us or our vendors could damage our business operations, and new laws

and regulations could increase our costs.
• Our capital investments in technology may not achieve anticipated returns.
• We and our vendors have operations in India that could be adversely affeff cted by changes in political or economic

stability or by government policies.
• Our vendor relationships subju ect us to a variety of risks.
• Our risk management policies and procedures may not be effeff ctive.
• We could have, appear to have or be alleged to have conflicff ts of interest with Xome.
• Our business could sufferff if we fail to attract, or retain, highly skilled emplm oyees and changes in our executive

management team may be disruptrr ive to our business.
• Negative publu ic opinion could damage our reputation and adversely affeff ct our business.
• Issues related to the development and use of artificff ial intelligence could give rise to legal and/or regulatory action,

damage our reputation or othet rwise materially harm our business.
• We may have lapsa es in disclosure controls and procedurdd es or internal controt l over financial reporting.
• Our business is subju ect to the risks of natural catastrophic events and health pandemics.
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Regulatory,yy Compliance and Legal Risks

• We operate within a highly regulated industryrr on federal, state and local levels.
• We are subju ect to numerous legal proceedings, federal, state or local governmental examinations and enforcement

investigations.
• We are subju ect to state licensing and operational requirements that result in substantial compliance costs.
• Our business would be adversely affeff cted if we lose our licenses.
• We may incur increased litigation costs and related losses if a court overturns a foreclosure or if a loan we are

servicing becomes suboru dinate to a Home Owners Association lien.
• Delays in residential mortgage foreclosure proceedings could have a negative effeff ct on our ability to liquidate loans

timely and slow the recovery of advances and thus impamm ct our earna ings or liquidity.

Risks Related to Owning our Stock

• Our common stock is subju ect to transferff restrictions.
• Anti-takeover provisions in our charter and under Delaware law could limit certain stockholder actions.
• The market price of our common stock may decrease, resulting in a loss for investors.

Risk Factors

Market, Financial Reporting, Credit and Liquidity Risks

Our revenues in Originatiott ns and Servicing are highi ly depeee ndendd t on macroeconomic and U.S. resideii ntiatt l real estate market
conditdd iott ns.
Our success depends largely on the health of the U.S. residential real estate industry,rr which is seasonal, cyclical and affeff cted by
changes in general economic conditions beyond our control. Economic factors such as increased interest rates, inflation, slow
economic growth or recessionary conditions, the pace of home price appreciation or the lack of it, changes in household debt
levels, and increased unemplm oyment or stagnant or declining wages affeff ct our customers’ income and thus their ability and
willingness to make loan payments. Additionally,yy global events affeff ct all such macroeconomic conditions. Instability in the
global credit markets, the impamm ct of uncertainty regarding global central bank monetary policy, the instability in the geopolitical
environment in many parts of the world (including as a result of the on-going Ukraine-Russia confliff ct, China-Taiwan relations,
and the conflicff ts in the Middle East, global economic ramifications of the current economic challenges in China, and othet r
disruptrr ions may continue to put pressure on global economic conditions. Weak, or a significff ant deterioration in economic
conditions, reduces the amount of disposable income consumers have, which in turn reduces consumer spending and the
willingness of qualifieff d potential customers to take out loans. As a result, such economic factors affeff ct loan origination volume.
Additional macroeconomic factors including, but not limited to, rising government debt levels, the withdrawal or augmentation
of governmr ent interventions into the financial markets, changing U.S. consumer spending patterns, changing expectations for
inflation and deflation, and weak credit markets may create low consumer confidff ence in the U.S. economy or the U.S.
residential real estate industry.r Excessive home building or high foreclosure rates resulting in an oversuppu ly of housing in a
particular area may also increase the amount of losses incurred on defaula ted mortgage loans. Any or all of the circumstances
described above may lead to furthet r volatility in or disruprr tion of the credit markets at any time and adversely affeff ct our
financial condition.

Any uncertainty or deterioration in market conditions that leads to a decrease in loan originations will result in lower revenue
on loans sold into the secondary market. Lower loan origination volumes generally place downward pressure on margins, thus
compounding the effeff ct of the deteriorating market conditions. Companies focusing on mortgage originations may experience
severe financial distress and this may result in numerous companies exiting the mortgage business or filing bankruptu cy. This
could causa e a contagion effeff ct resulting in the banks which provide us financing lines to reduce the lines or increase financing
costs. Such events could be detrimental to our business. Moreover, any deterioration in market conditions that leads to an
increase in loan delinquencies will result in lower revenue for loans we service for the GSEs and Ginnie Mae as servicing fees
are collected only for current perforff ming loans. While increased delinquencies generate higher ancillary revenues, including
late fees, these fees are sometimes unrecoverabla e if the related loan is liquidated. Increased delinqueq ncies may also increase the
cost of servicing the loans for all market participants. The decreased cash flow from lower servicing fees or higher cost to
service could decrease the estimated value of our MSRs, resulting in recognition of losses when we write down those values. In
addition, an increase in delinquencies lowers the interest income we receive on cash held in collection and increases our
obligation to advance certain principal, interest, tax and insurance obligations owed by the delinquent mortgage loan customer.
An increase in delinquencies could thereforff e be detrimental to our business.

Our earnings maya decrease because of changes in prevailinll gn interest rates and/or// declinll es in home prices.
Our profitaff bia lity is directly impacted by changes in prevailing interest rates. Interest rates have risen furthet r and faster than any
time in modern history.rr The following are certain material risks we face related to changes in interest rates:
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Servicing:

• a decrease in interest rates may increase prepayment speeds which lead to (i) increased amortization expense; (ii)
decreased servicing fees; and (iii) decreased fair value of our MSRs;

• an increase in interest rates, together with an increase in monthly payments when an adjud stable mortgage loan’s
interest rate adjud sts upward from an initial fixed rate or a low introductory rate, may cause increased delinquency,
defaula t and foreclosure. Increased mortgage defaula ts and foreclosures may adversely affeff ct our business as they
increase our expenses and reduce the number of mortgages service fees that are collected. Additionally,yy payment
savings on modifications are directly tied to market interest rates, and increasing interest rates may reduce the numbem r
of customers eligible to receive modifications or increase the likelihood of re-defauff lt for those who receive a
modification. Loan modifications for governmr ent insured mortgages are more difficff ult in a high-rate environment,
which may result in higher delinquency levels for loans in Ginnie Mae securities. An increase in interest rates also
lowers unhedged early buyout (“EBO”) revenues;

Originations:

• an increase in interest rates could adversely affeff ct our loan originations volume because refinancing an existing loan
would be less attractive for homeowners and qualifyiff ng for a purchase money loan may be more difficff ult for
consumers;

• an increase in interest rates could also adversely affeff ct our production margins due to increased competition among
originators;

Other:

• an increase in interest rates could adversely affeff ct Xome’s Real Estate exchange property sales, particularly non-
distressed sales, as financing may become less attractive to customers;

• an increase in interest rates could increase the cost of servicing our outstanding debt, including our ability to finance
servicing advances and loan originations and for borrowing for acquisitions; and

• a decrease in interest rates could reduce our earnings from our custodial deposit accounts.

Home prices in many areas of the countryrr have risen dramatically. Home values may deflate significff antly,yy especially in those
areas with the highest rates of increase. Falling home prices may result in higher defaults, greater loss severity,yy increased
foreclosures and losses to investors and stakeholders. The decrease in housing values may greatly affeff ct mortgage loan
originations for years, with dramatic decreases in volume due in part from customers’ inability to sell or refinance their
properties as a result of the lower values. In addition, as investors take losses and liquidity in capital markets evaporates,
investors and originators may tighten underwriting criteria and scrutiny of loan producd tion. These events could decrease our
revenue from loan originations or loan purchases, and increase our expenses due to repurchases, the resources needed to
validate claims, and servicing costs to manage higher defaula ts and foreclosures.

Any of the foregoing could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

A disruii ptu iott n in the secondardd yr home loan market,tt includindd gn the MBSB market,tt couldll have a detrimentaltt effeff ct on our
busineii ss.s
Demand in the secondaryrr market and our ability to complete the sale or securitization of our mortgage loans depends on a
numbem r of factors, many of which are beyond our control. This includes general economic conditions, general conditions in the
banking system, the willingness of lenders to provide funding for mortgage loans, the willingness of investors to purchase
mortgage loans and MBS, and changes in regulatory requirements. In Septembem r 2022, the U.S. Federal Reserve withdrew from
the mortgage securities market and ceased purchasing MBS. As mortgage rates remain relatively high, customers are not
incentivized to refinance and there is minimal demand from buyers of MBS. Additionally, effoff rts moving Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac out of conservatorship could impamm ct the appetite of MBS investors for the mortgages that we originate and could
create a higher level of non-agency product for which demand could be less consistent than agency mortgages. Any continued
significant disruptrr ion or period of illiquidity in the general MBS market could directly affeff ct our liquidity because no existing
alternative secondaryrr market would likely be able to accommodate on a timely basis the volume of loans that we typically sell
in any given period. Accordingly, if the MBS market experiences a period of illiquidity,yy we may be prevented from selling the
loans that we produce into the secondary market in a timely manner or at favorabla e prices, which could be detrimental to our
business.

We maya be unablell to obtaitt nii suffu icff ient capia taii l to operatett our busineii ss.ss
Our financing strategy includes the use of significant leverage because, to make servicing advances and fund originations, we
require liquiq dity in excess of the capia tal generated by our operations. Accordingly, our ability to finance our operations depends
on our ability to secure financing on acceptable terms and to renew and/or replace existing financaa ings as they expire. These
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financings may not be availabla e on acceptable terms or at all. If we are unable to obtain these financings, we may need to raise
the funds we require in the capia tal markets or through othet r means, any of which may increase our cost of funds.

We are generally required to renew a significant portion of our debt financing arrangements each year, which exposes us to
refinancing and interest rate risks. Our ability to refinance existing debt and borrow additional funds is affeff cted by a variety of
factors including:

• the availabla e liquidity in the credit markets;
• prevailing interest rates;
• an event of default, a negative ratings action by a rating agency and limitations imposm ed on us under the indenturt es

governing our current debt that contain restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions that may limit our ability to
raise additional debt;

• the strengtht of the lenders from which we borrow; and
• limitations on borrowings on advance facilities imposm ed by the amount of eligible collateral pledged, which may be

less than the borrowing capacity of the advance facility.

If we are unabla e to obtain sufficff ient capital on acceptable terms for any of the foregoing reasons, this could adversely affeff ct our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our indebtedtt nedd ss maya limit our finaii ncial and operatintt gn activities and our ability to incur additiodd nal debt to fund future
needs.dd
As of Decembem r 31, 2024, the aggregate principal amount of our unsecured senior notes was $4,950 million. Although we and
our subsu idiaries have indebtedness, we believe we have the ability to incur additional indebtedness in the future, subju ect to the
limitations contained in the agreements governing our indebtedness. These agreements generally restrict us and our restricted
subsu idiaries from incurring additional indebtedness; however, these restritt ctions are subju ect to imporm tant exceptions and
qualificff ations. If we incur additional debt, the related risks could be magnifieff d and could limit our financial and operating
activities.

Our current and any future indebtedness could:

• require us to dedicate a subsu tantial portion of cash flow from operations to the payment of principal and interest on our
current indebtedness and any indebtedness we may incur in the future, thereby reducing the funds availabla e for othet r
purposes;

• make it more difficff ult for us to satisfyff and comply with our obligations with respect to the unsecured senior notes;
• subject us to increased sensitivity to increases in prevailing interest rates;
• place us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors with relatively less debt in economic downturns, adverse

industry conditions or catastrophic external events; or
• reduce our flexibility in planning for or responding to changing business, industry and economic conditions.

In addition, our level of indebtedness could limit our ability to obtain financing or additional financing on acceptable terms to
fund future acquiq sitions, working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements, and/or general corporate and other
purposes, which could have a material adverse effeff ct on our business and financial condition. Our unsecured indebtedness
matures beginning in Februar ry 2026 with additional tranches maturing every year thereafter. Our operations may not be
sufficff ient to pay offff the debt at maturity,yy which would require us to refinance the debt. The refinance of debt is subju ect to
investor appetite and the interest rate environment, which could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of
operation. Our liquidity needs could vary significff antly and may be affeff cted by general economic conditions, industry trends,
perforff mance and many other factors outside of our control. Our obligations could have othet r imporm tant consequeq nces. For
examplmm e, our failure to comply with the restritt ctive covenants in the agreements governir ng our indebtedness, which limit our
ability to incur liens, to incur debt and to sell assets, could result in an event of default that, if not cured or waived, could harm
our business or prospects and could result in our bankruk ptu cy.

We use finaii ncial models that rely heavily on estimates in determiningn the fair value of certain assets and liabilitieii s, such as
MSRsSS and MSRSS finaii ncingn liabilitieii s, and if our estimates or assumptionii s prove to be incorrect,tt it maya affeff ct our earningii s.gg
We use internal financial models that utilize, wherever possible, market participant data to value certain of our assets, including
our MSRs and MSR financing liabia lities and for purposes of financial reporting. These models are complex and use asset-
specific collateral data and market inputs for interest and discount rates. In addition, the modeling requirements of MSRs are
complex becausa e of the high numbem r of variables that drive cash flows associated with MSRs. Even if the general accuracy of
our valuation models is validated, valuations are highly dependent upon the reasonableness of our assumptions and the
predictabia lity of the relationships that drive the results of the models. In determining value for MSRs, we make certain
assumptions, many of which are beyond our control, including, among other things:



9 Mr.rr Cooper Group Inc. - 2024Annunn al Report on Form 10-K

• the rates of prepayment and repayment within the underlying pools of mortgage loans and our ability to recapture
mortgage prepayments through the origination platform;

• projected rates of delinquencies, defaults and liquidations;
• option adjud sted spread;
• cost to service the loans; and
• ancillary revenues.

If these assumptions or relationships prove to be inaccurate, if market conditions change or if errors are found in our models,
the value of certain assets and liabia lities could materially vary,yy which could impam ct our ability to satisfy minimumm net worth
covenants and borrowing conditions in our debt agreements and adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We maya not realizll e allll of the anticipatedtt benefie tsii of prff eviouii s or potentiatt l acquisitions and dispii ositions.
Our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of previous or potential acquisitions, including the acquisition of assets and
business combinations, will depend, in part, on our ability to scale-up to appropriately service these assets and integrate the
businesses of the acquired companies with our business.

The risks associated with acquiq sitions include, among others:

• unknown or contingent liabia lities;
• unanticipated issues in integrating information, management style, controls and procedurdd es, servicing and originations

practices, communim cations and other systems including information technology systems;
• the value of non-cash consideration received and its potential change in value;
• unanticipated incompatibility of purchasing, logistics, marketing and administration methods;
• not retaining key emplm oyees or clients; and
• inaccuracy of valuation and/or operating assumptions supporu ting our purchase price.

When we acquire a platform, we may elect to operate this platform in addition to our current platform for a period of time or
indefinitely. Individually or collectively, these transactions could subsu tantially increase the UPB, or alter the composition of our
portfolio of mortgage loans that we service or have an othet rwise significff ant impam ct on our business. Additionally, we may make
potentially significff ant acquisitions which could expose us to greater risks than we currently experience in servicing our current
portfolio and adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The risks associated with disposition include, among other things:

• difficff ulty in finding buyers or alternative exit strategies on acceptabla e terms in a timely manner;
• destabilization of the applicable operations;
• loss of key personnel;
• ability to obtain necessarya governmental or regulatoryr approvals;
• post-disposal disputes and indemnificff ation obligations;
• access by purchasers to certain of our systems and tools during transition periods;
• the migration of data and separation of systems; and
• data privacy matters.

We can provide no assurances that we will enter into any such agreements or as to the timing of any potential strategic
transactions. The strategic transaction process may disruptr our business including diverting management’s attention from
ongoing business concerns. We also may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of potential future strategic transactions,
which could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our hedgingii stratt tegie es maya not be successfulff in mitigatintt gn our riskii skk associatedtt withii interest rates.
We use various derivative financial instruments to provide a level of protection against interest rate risks related to our both our
pipeline (LHFS and IRLCs spanning our Originations and Servicing segments) and our MSR portfolio (in our Servicing
segment), but no hedging strategy can protect us completely. The nature and timing of hedging transactions influence the
effeff ctiveness of these strategies. Poorly designed strategies, imprm operly executed and documented transactions or inaccurate
assumptions could increase our risks and losses. In addition, hedging strategies involve transaction and other costs. Our hedging
strategies and the derivatives that we use may not be able to adequately offsff et the risks of interest rate volatility, and our
hedging transactions may result in or magnify losses. Furthet rmore, interest rate derivatives may not be availabla e on favorabla e
terms or at all, particularly during periods of heightened volatility or economic downturns. Any of the foregoing risks could
adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We have third-pa- rtytt credit,dd servicer and correspons dent riskii skk which couldll have a materiali adverserr effeff ct on our busineii ss,
liquidii tyii ,yy finaii ncial conditiodd n and results of operatiott n.
Consumer Credrr it Riskii :We provide representations and warranties to purchasers and insurers of the loans that we sell that range
between three years and the life of the loan. In the event of a breach of these representations and warranties, we may be
required to repurchase a mortgage loan or indemnifyff the purchaser, and any subsequent loss on the mortgage loan may be borne
by us. Our loss estimates are affeff cted by factors both internal and external in nature, including, level of loan sales, as well as to
whom the loans are sold, the expectation of credit loss on repurcuu hases and indemnificff ations, our success rate at appealing
repurchase demands, our ability to recover any losses from third parties, the overall economic condition in the housing market,
the economic condition of customers, the political environment at investor agencies and the overall U.S. and world economies.
Many of the factors are beyond our control and may lead to judgments that are susceptible to change. In adverse market
conditions, loans may decrease in value due to an increase in delinquencies, customer defaults and non-payments. In addition,
property values may experience losses at liquidation due to extensions in foreclosure and real estate owned (“REO”) sales
timelines, as well as home price depreciation.

Counterparty Credrr it Riskii :We are exposed to counterpar rty credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to
various agreements. Although certain credit facilities and warehouse lines are committed, we may experience a disruptr ion in
operations due to a lender withholding funds of a borrowing request on the respective credit facility.

Prior Servicer Riskii :We service mortgage loans under guidelines set fortht by regulatory agencies and GSEs. Failure to meet
stipulations of the servicing guidelines can result in the assessment of fines and loss of reimburm sement of loan related advances,
expenses, interest and servicing fees. When the servicing of a portfolio is assumed either through purchase of servicing rights or
through a subsu ervicing arrangement, various loans in the acquired portfolff io may have been previously serviced in a manner that
will contritt bute towards our not meeting certain servicing guidelines. If not recovered from a prior servicer, such events
frequently lead to the eventual realization of a loss to us. The recovery process against a prior servicer can be prolonged based
upon the time required by us to meet minimum loss deductibles under the indemnificff ation provisions in our agreements with
the prior servicer and for the time requirements by the prior servicer to review underlying loss events and our request for
indemnificff ation. In addition, the prior servicer may no longer being financially viable. The amounts ultimately recovered from
prior servicers may differff from our estimated recoveries recorded based on the prior servicer’s interpretation of responsibility
for loss, which could lead to our realization of additional losses.

Corresrr pondes nt Riskii :We purchase closed loans from correspondent lenders. The failure of these correspondent lenders to
comply with any applicable laws, regulations and rules may subject us to monetary penalties or other losses. Although we have
contrott ls and procedurd es designed to assess areas of risk with respect to these acquiq red loans, including, without limitation,
diligence regarding compliance with underwriting guidelines and applicable laws or regulations, we may not detect everyrr
violation of law by these correspondent lenders. In an economic downturt n, a numbem r of these correspondent lenders may not be
financially viable, and any issues with respect to loans purchased from them and sold to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac would
transferff any manufacturt ing defect risk of origination to us. As housing prices continue to increase and interest rates stay
elevated, affoff rdability becomes more challenging. As a result, customers may be more inclined to either inflate their income or
misrepresent their occupau ncy intentions.

Any of the above could adversely affeff ct our business, liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

Changen s in taxaa legie slii atll iott n and challell nges from taxaa authoritiesee maya have an advedd rse impam ct on our finaii ncial conditdd iott n.
U.S. federal and state tax authorities may periodically revise legislation that may result in changes to the interpretation of
establa ished tax concepts. Future revisions in tax legislation and interpretations thereof could adversely impamm ct our provision for
income taxes, cash flow and financial condition. In addition, challenges arising from taxing authorities, including the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) and state and local jurisdictions, on the interpretation of tax laws and regulations could result in
adjud stments to our effeff ctive tax rate, the amount of taxes due or otherwise have an adverse impamm ct on our financial condition.

We maya not be able to fully utiliztt e our NOLs, othett r taxaa carry forwards and certain built-ll in losses or deductiott ns.
Our ability to utilize NOLs, othet r tax carryr forwards and certain built-in losses or deductions to reduce taxabla e income in future
years could be limited for various reasons. Although we have certain transferff restrictions in place under our Certificff ate of
Incorporation, our Board could issue additional shares of stock or permit or effeff ct future conversions, amendments or
redemptions of our stock, which, depending on their magnitude, could result in ownership changes that would trigger the
imposm ition of additional limitations on the utilization of our NOLs under Sections 382 and 383 of the United States Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Similar provisions of state tax law may also apply. In an attempt to minimize
the likelihood of an additional ownership change occurring, our Certificff ate of Incorporation contains transferff restrictions
limiting the acquisition (and disposition) of our stock or any other instrutt ment treated as stock for purposes of Section 382 by
persons or group of persons treated as a single entity under Treasury Regulation Section 1.382-3 owning (actuat lly or
construcr tively), or who would own as a result of the transaction, 4.75% of the total value of our stock (including any othet r
interests treated as stock for purposes of Section 382). Neverthett less, it is possible that we could undergo an ownership change,
either by events within or outside of the contrott l of our Board, e.g., indirect changes in the ownership of persons owning 5% of
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our stock. In the event of a subsu equent ownership change, all or part of the NOLs or built-in losses that were not previously
subju ect to limitations under Section 382 could also become subju ect to an annual limitation. Section 384 may also apply in the
event of an ownership change resulting from an acquisition, which would limit the utilization of our NOLs to only certain
income or gains generated from assets owned subsequent to the acquisition. In addition, at the state level, there may be periods
during which the use of NOLs is suspended or othet rwise limited, which could accelerate or permanently increase state taxes
owed.

Business & Operational Risks

Servicingn
A signi ificff ant increase in delinqii uencies for the loans that we own and service couldll have a materialii impam ct on our revenues,
expexx nses and liquii iditdd ytt and on the valuatiott n of our MSRsSS .

• Revenue.An increase in delinquencies will result in lower revenue for loans we service for GSEs and Ginnie Mae as
servicing fees are collected only for current perforff ming loans. Additionally, while increased delinquencies generate
higher ancillary revenues, including late fees, these fees do not offsff et the higher cost to service a delinquent loan and
are sometimes unrecoverable if the loan is liquidated. In addition, an increase in delinquencies reduces cash held in
collections and other accounts and lowers the interest income we receive.

• Expex nses.An increase in delinqueq ncies will result in a higher cost to service due to the increased time and effoff rt
required to collect payments from delinquent customers and an increase in interest expense as a result of an increase in
our advancing obligations.

• Liquidity.yy An increase in delinquencies could also negatively impam ct our liquidity becausa e of an increase in servicing
advances resulting in an increase in borrowings under advance facilities and/or insufficff ient financing capacity to fund
increases in advances.

• Valuation of MSRsSS .We base the price we pay for MSRs on, among other things, our projections of the cash flows from
the related pool of mortgage loans based on market participant assumptions. Expectation of delinquencies is a
significant assumption underlying those cash flow projections. If delinquencies were significff antly greater than
expected, the estimated fair value of our MSRs could be diminished. If the estimated fair value of MSRs is reduced,
we would record a loss which would adversely impam ct our ability to satisfyff borrowing conditions in our debt
agreements which could have a negative impam ct on our financial results.

An increase in delinquency rates could thereforff e adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We maya not be able to maintain or grow our busineii ss if we do not acquire MSRsSS or enter into addidd tioii nal subservicingii
agreements on favorablell terms.
Our servicing portfolio is subju ect to “runrr off,ff ” meaning that mortgage loans serviced by us may be prepaid prior to maturity or
repaid through standard amortization of principal. As a result, our ability to maintain the size of our servicing portfolio depends
on our ability to acquire the right to service additional pools of residential mortgages, enter into additional subsu ervirr cing
agreements or to retain the servicing rights on newly originated mortgages. We have also shifteff d the mix of our servicing
portfolio to a greater mix of subservirr ced loans. While we expect this strategy to have longer-term benefits, in the short-term,
since subservicing revenues are earned on a fee per loan basis, this shiftff in our servicing portfolio to subsu ervicing could reduce
our revenue and earnir ngs. In addition, we do not have contrott l of whether a subsu ervicing client sells offff its portfolio or the
volume and timing of such sales and may not be able to maintain our pipeline of subservicing opportunities.

The Federal Housing Finance Agency (“FHFA”) could enact more stringent requirements on the GSEs, or other federal or state
agencies may enact additional requirements that are more stringent regarding the purchase or sale of MSRs. Additionally, if we
do not comply with our seller/sr ervicer obligations, the investors may not consent to approve future transferff s of MSRs.

If we do not acquire MSRs or enter into additional subsu ervirr cing agreements on terms favorable to us, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be adversely affeff cted.

Some of the loans we service are highi er riskii loans, which are more expexx nsive to service and maya lead to liquidityii challell nges.
Some of the mortgage loans we service are higher risk loans, meaning that the loans are made to less credit worthy customers,
delinquent or for properties the value of which has decreased since origination. These loans are more expensive to service
because they require more frequent interaction with customers and greater monitoring and oversight. Additionally, in
connection with the ongoing mortgage market reform and regulatory developments, servicers of higher risk loans are subju ect to
increased scrutiny by state and federal regulators and will experience higher compliance and regulatory costs, which could
result in a further increase in servicing costs. We may not be able to pass along any of the additional expenses we incur in
servicing higher risk loans to our servicing clients. The greater cost of servicing higher risk loans, which may be further
increased through regulatory reform, consent decrees or enforcement, could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition
and results of operations. We have a portfolio of higher risk Agency loans guaranteed by Ginnie Mae. In an adverse economic
scenario, FEMA declared disaster area or a pandemic similar to COVID-19, where defaults rise rapia dly and unexpectedly,yy we
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may have funding challenges since Ginnie Mae does not allow the separate utilization of advances as a form of collateral, and
we may not be able to secure financing for advances on acceptable terms or at all. If we are unabla e to obtain these financings,
we may need to raise the funds we require in the capital markets or through othet r means, any of which may increase our cost of
funds.

As a result of both the COVID pandemic and subsequeq nt rise in mortgage interest rates, most investors have updated their
standard loss mitigation procedures and requirements to align with the program offeff red during the pandemic. These new
programs and revised offeff rings require interpretation, implm ementation, and testing are time intensive and are subju ect to
operational risk. While we have extensive validation in place to ensure timeliness and accuracy of these updated loss mitigation
programs, the continued changes and differff ences in programs announced by each investor creates risk of error. The risk subju ects
us to loss indemnificff ation requirements.

We are required to make servicing advadd nces that can be subject to delaysa in recoveryr or maya not be recoverablell in certarr in
circii umstantt ces.ee
During any period in which a customer is not making payments, we are required under most of our servicing agreements to
advance our own funds to meet contratt ctuat l principal and interest remittance requirements for investors, pay property taxes and
insurance premiums, legal expenses and other protective advances. This is limited for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac loans to
four months of P&I advances, and other advances are typiy cally immediately recoverabla e. We also advance funds to maintain,
repair and market real estate properties on behalf of certain investors. As home values change, we may have to reconsider
certain of the assumptions underlying our decisions to make advances, and in certain situations our contractuat l obligations may
require us to make certain advances for which we may not be reimbum rsed. In addition, when a mortgage loan serviced by us
defaula ts or becomes delinquent, the repayment to us of the advance may be delayed until the mortgage loan is repaid or
refinanced or liquidation occurs. Market disruptrr ions where a temporary period of forbearance may be offeff red for customers
unabla e to pay on certain mortgage loans may also increase the number of defaults, delinquencies or forbearances related to the
loans we service, increasing the advances we make for such loans.

We have sold to third-party investors the rights to mortgage servicing rights and servicer advances related to certain loan pools.
In connection with these transactions, the third-party investors purchased the equity of wholly owned special purposr e
subsidiaries of Mr. Cooper Groupu that issued limited recourse funding to finance the advances. We continue to service these
loans. In the event that the third-party investors receive requests for advances in excess of amounts that they or their co-
investors are willing or able to fund, we are obligated to fund these advance requests. Since we have transferff red the related
advance facilities to the third-party investors, we may have to obtain othet r sources of financing which may not be availabla e.
Our inability to fund these advances could result in a termination event under the applicable servicing agreement, an event of
default under the advance facilities and a breach of our purchase agreement with the third-party investors. Our inability to fund
these advance requests could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our counterparties maya terminatett our servicingii righi ts and subservicingii contratt cts.tt
The owners of the loans we service and the primaryrr servicers of the loans we subservirr ce may, under certain circumstances,
terminate our MSRs or subservicing contracts, respectively.

Agency Servicing: We are partytt to seller/servicer agreements and/or subju ect to guidelines and regulations (collectively,
seller/servicer obligations) with both of the GSEs, FHA and Ginnie Mae. As is standard in the industry,yy under the terms of these
seller/servicer agreements, the agencies have the right to terminate us as servicer of the loans we service on their behalf at any
time and also have the right to cause us to sell the MSRs to a third party.

We are subju ect to minimum financial eligibility requirements establa ished by the Agencies. These minimum financial
requirements, include net worth, capital ratio and/or liquidity criteria in order to set a minimum level of capital needed to
adequaq tely absorb potential losses and a minimum amount of liquidity needed to service Agency mortgage loans and MBS and
cover the associated financial obligations and risks. To meet these minimum financial requirements, we are required to maintain
cash and cash equivalents in amounts that could impemm de us from growing our business and place us at a competitive
disadvantage in relation to federally chartered banks and certain other financial institutions. These seller/servicer obligations
have financial covenants that include capia tal requirements related to tangible net worth.t The FHFA and Ginnie Mae updated
their minimum financial eligibility requirements for GSE seller/servicers and Ginnie Mae issuers to modify the definitions of
tangible net wortht and eligible liquidity,yy modify their minimum standard measurement and include a new risk-based capia tal
ratio, among other changes. While we are currently in compliance with these updated requirements, to the extent that these
capital and liquiq dity requirements are not met, the applicable agency may suspend or terminate these agreements, which would
prohibit us from further servicing these specific types of mortgage loans or being an approved servicer. If we are unable to meet
these capia tal and liquidity requirements, this could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Subservicing: Our subsu ervirr cing portfolio is highly concentrated with a small numbem r of parties who may elect to transferff their
subservirr cing relationship to othet r counterparties or may go out of business. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, 93% of our subsu ervicing
portfolio is with 7 counterparties. Under our subservirr cing contratt cts, the primary servicers for which we conduct subsu ervirr cing
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activities have the right to terminate our subservicing contracts with or without cause, with limited notice and with no
termination fee upon a change of control. Entering into additional subsu ervicing contracts will expose us to similar risks with
new counterparties.

If our servicing rights or subsu ervicing contracts are terminated on a material portion of our servicing portfolio, this could
adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We couldll have a downgrag de in our servicer ratings.ss
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch rate us as a residential loan servicer. Favorable ratings from these agencies are imporm tant to the
conduct of our loan servicing business. Downgrades in servicer ratings could:

• adversely affeff ct our ability to finance servicing advances and maintain our statust as an approved servicer by Fannie
Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae, and other investors;

• lead to the early termination of existing advance facilities and affeff ct the terms and availabia lity of advance facilities that
we may seek in the future;

• cause our termination as servicer in our servicing agreements that require that we maintain specified servicer ratings;
and

• further impamm ir our ability to consummate future servicing transactions.

Any of the above could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Originatiott ns

We maya not be able to maintain the volumes in our loan origingg atiott ns busineii ss, which wouldll adverdd serr ly affeff ct our ability to
replee enll ish our servicingn portfott lio.

The volume of loans funded within our loan originations business is subju ect to multiple factors, including changes in interest
rates and availabia lity of government programs. Volume in our originations business is based on the refinancing of existing
mortgage loans that we service, which is highly dependent on interest rates and other macroeconomic factors, and originations
through our Correspondent channel.

• Our loan origination volume may decline if interest rates increase, if government programs terminate and are not
replaced with similar programs or if we cannot replace this volume with othet r loan origination channels such as
Correspondent, new customer acquisitions or purchase money loans. Any such slowdown may materially decrease the
numbem r and volume of mortgages we originate. As interest rates have rapia dly risen, our refinancing volumes have
significantly decreased as fewer consumers are incentivized to refinance their mortgages. As a result, our Originations
revenues have decreased subsu tantially.

• We acquire the majoa rity of our new customers through our Correspondent or bulk channels and, as such, these
customers may choose their original lender when looking to refinance or purchase a new home. In a lower interest rate
environment, this could causa e a material decrease in our retention measures, which could result in increased
amortization without a corresponding increase in origination earnaa ings.

• In addition, consumers are increasingly completing the mortgage process using online and/or digital tools. The
proliferff ation of these tools and their ease of use may present challenges in retaining and attracting new loan applicants
if we are unabla e to effeff ctively implm ement new technology-driven products and services as quickly as competitors or be
successful in marketing these products and services to consumers. Additionally,yy newer market participants, ofteff n called
“disruptu ors,” are reinventing aspects of the mortgage loan industry and capturing profitff pools historically collected by
existing market participants. As a result, the lending industry could become even more competitive if new market
participants are successfulff in capta urt ing market share from existing market participants such as ourselves.

If we are unable to maintain our loan originations volume, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
adversely affeff cted.

We maya be required to indemnifyff or repuee rchase loans we sold,dd or willii sell, if these loans fail to meet certain critertt ia or
characteristii ictt s or under othett r circii umstantt cesee .
The indenturt es governing our securitized pools of loans and our contracts with purchasers of our whole loans contain
provisions that require us to indemnifyff or repurchase the related loans under certain circumstances. While our contracts vary,yy
they contain provisions that require us to repurchase loans if:ff

• our representations and warranties concernir ng loan quality and loan circumstances are inaccurate, including
representations concernir ng the licensing of a mortgage broker;

• we fail to secure adequate mortgage insurance within a certain period afteff r closing;
• a mortgage insurance provider denies coverage;
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• we fail to comply,yy at the individual loan level or othet rwise, with regulatory requirements in the current dynamic
regulatory environment; or

• the customer fails to make certain initial loan payments due to the purchaser, or terminates emplm oyment between the
time validation is performed and the time the loan funds.

We are subju ect to repurchase claims and may continue to receive claims in the future. If we are required to indemnifyff or
repurchase loans that we originate or have previously originated and sell or securitize that result in losses that exceed our
reserve, this could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are highi ly depeee ndendd t upon loan progragg ms admidd niii stii ertt ed by Fannie Mae, Freddidd e Mac, the Federal Housingn
Admindd istratiott n, the Depaee rtmett nt of Veterans Affaff irs,rr the US Deparee tment of Agff riculture and Ginniii e Mae (collell ctivtt ely,ll the
“Agencies”)” to generate revenues throughgg mortgatt gea loan sales to institutt tional investors.
There are various proposals which deal with GSE reform, including winding down the GSEs and reducing or eliminating over
time the role of the GSEs in guaranteeing mortgages and providing funding for mortgage loans, as well as proposals to
implmm ement reforms relating to customers, lenders and investors in the mortgage market, including reducing the maximum size
of loans that the GSEs can guarantee, phasing in a minimum down payment requirement for customers, imprmm oving underwrrr iting
standards and increasing accountabia lity and transparency in the securitization process. Further, it is anticipated that the Trumr pm
Administration will seek to privatize the GSEs. Thereforff e, uncertainty remains regarding the future of the GSE’s, including
with respect to the duration of conservarr torship, the extent of their roles in the market and what forms they will have, and
whethet r they will be government agencies, government-sponsored agencies or private for-profitff entities. The extent and timing
of any regulatory reform regarding the GSEs and the U.S. housing finance market, as well as any effeff ct on our business
operations and financial results, are uncertain. It is not yet possible to determine whethet r such proposals will be enacted and, if
so, when, what form any final legislation or policies might take or how proposals, legislation or policies may impamm ct our
business.

Our ability to generate revenues through mortgage loan sales to institutional investors depends to a significff ant degree on
programs administered by the Agencies that facilitate the issuance of mortgage-backed securities in the secondaryrr market.
These Agencies play a critical role in the residential mortgage industry,yy and we have significant business relationships with
many of them. Almost all of the conforff ming loans we originate qualifyff under existing standards for inclusion in guaranteed
mortgage securities backed by one of these Agencies. We also derive other material financial benefits from these relationships,
including the assumption of credit risk on loans included in such mortgage securities in exchange for our payment of guarantee
fees and the ability to avoid certain loan inventoryrr finance costs through streamlined loan funding and sale procedures. If it is
not possible for us to complete the sale or securitization of certain of our mortgage loans due to changes in Agency programs,
we may lack liquidity under our mortgage financing facilities to continue to fund mortgage loans, and our revenues and margins
on new loan originations would be materially and negatively impamm cted.

Our GNMA loan portfolio may experience higher default risk as these loans typiy cally have high Loan to Value Ratios (LTVLL ). In
case of defaula t, we may not recover all servicing expenses and experience losses due to limited collateral value. The loss can be
higher if there is any structurt al damage to the property due to natural disasters such as floods, fire, hurricanes and other
environmental factors from climate change. A requirement of FHA is to convey property in habia tabla e condition, and damage
from natural hazards may require us to repair properties to conveyable condition. Our loan originations business may not be
able to sell these loans, and we may not recover all our capia tal which leads to higher losses. Additionally,yy we may not be able to
recover all expenses related to damage caused by water and wind. Inflationary pressures may limit a customer’s disposable
income which may lead to additional incumbrances on title, impem ding our foreclosure effoff rts. Our REO portfolio from
foreclosed government loans, may experience higher losses due to declines in market value and extended sale timelines. This
may occur due to multiple factors beyond our control, such as higher interest rates, which would limit a potential buyer’s
capacity to purchase, inflationary pressure limiting surplus cash or economic deterioration of local neighborhoods where
properties are located. Our servicing business may experience higher advance requirements, increasing our interest expense cost
from credit lines.

We are largely reliant on Agency MBS issuances to sell the loans that we originate. In recent years, the Agencies have instituted
periodic limits on producd ts such as investor properties, second homes, and products with multiple risk characteristics such as
customers with below average credit scores and high LTV. If these periodic limits for purchasing these loans become
permanent, we must find other investors for loans within our pipeline, which may be at a material discountu to the expected
pricing.

Any discontinuation of,ff or significff ant reduction in, the operation of these Agencies or any significant adverse change in the
level of activity in the secondary mortgage market or the underwriting criteria of these Agencies could materially and adversely
affeff ct our business, liquidity,yy financial position and results of operations.

Our second lien originatiott ns have highi er market riskii .kk
We have increased the volume of second lien originations to our existing servicing customers. Second liens are sold via whole
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loan sales to non-Agency investors, or through securitizations. If a market disruptrr ion occurs due to a lack of liquidity for
residential non-Agency loans or from an increase in credit losses on second liens, we may not be able to sell these whole loans,
or we may be required to sell the whole loans at a significff ant loss. Additionally,yy the purchasers of these loans may experience
their own financial disruprr tion and no longer be willing to invest in whole loan second liens. Any of these occurrences could
materially and adversely affeff ct our business, liquidity,yy financial position and results of operations in Originations.

Corporate/tt Ot// hett r
Our Real Estate exchangen busineii ss is impam ctedtt by delaysa in foreclosll ure sales, as well as economic slowll downs and
recessions.
The foreclosure moratoriums instituted during the COVID-19 pandemic have impamm cted and are continuing to impam ct our REO
exchange business. The Exchange business consists of the Xome.com auction platform that provides effiff cient execution for
sales of foreclosed properties. States, agencies and regulators have previously issued forbearance programs and placed a
moratorium on foreclosures and evictions. Many of the measures have been lifted; however, there has been a delay in the
selling of FHA foreclosed properties, which adversely impam cts our REO exchange revenues. An economic slowdown, recession,
or declining consumer confidff ence in the economym could have a mateaa rial adverse effeff ct on values of residential real estate
properties. The volume of residential real estate transactions is highly variable which is primarily affeff cted by the average price
of real estate sales, the availabia lity of funds to finance purchases, mortgage interest rates, consumer confidff ence in the economym
and general economic factors affeff cting the real estate markets. A decline in real estate transactions could materially and
adversely affeff ct our REO exchange business.

General Business & Operational Risks

We maya not be successfulff in implm emll enting certaitt nii stratt tegie cii initiatives.
Certain strategic initiatives, which we discuss in our MD&A, are designed to imprm ove our results of operations and drive long-
term stockholder value.

There is no assurance that we will be able to successfulff ly implmm ement these strategic initiatives, that we will be able to realize all
of the projected benefits of our plans or that we will be able to compete successfulff ly in new markets and our effoff rts may be
more expensive and time consuming than we expect, which could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Technologyo failures or cyber-attatt ckskk againsii t us or our vendorsrr couldll damagea our busineii ss operations,s and new laws and
regue lations couldll increase our costs.tt
The business industry as a whole is characterized by rapia dly changing technologies, system disrupr tions and failures causa ed by
fire, power loss, telecommunim cations failures, system misuse, unauthorized intrusr ion (cyber-attack), computer viruses and
disabling devices, natural disasters, health pandemics and othet r similar events that may interruptu or delay our ability to provide
services to our customers. As a part of conducting business, we receive, transmit and store a large volume of personally
identifiaff bla e information and other user data. Additionally,yy Xome, which utilizes a real estate auction website, is reliant on
information technology networks and systems to securely process, transmit and store sensitive electronic information.
Cybersecurity risks for the financial services industry have increased significantly in recent years due to new technologies, the
reliance on technology to conduct financial transactions and the increased sophistication of organized crime and hackers. Those
parties also may attempt to misrepresent personal or financial information to obtain loans or othet r financial producd ts from us or
attempt to frauda ulently induce emplm oyees, customers, or othet r users of our systems to disclose confidff ential information in order
to gain access to our data or that of our customers. Additionally, cyberattacks on financial institutions are increasingly
becoming a tactical risk of modern warfarff e. Cyberattacks perforff med as an act of war are typically excluded from insurance
coverage and could result in material financial loss to the organization with limited recourse from insurance providers. We and
others in our industry are regularly the subju ect of attempts by attackers to gain unauta horized access to our networks, systems,
and data, or to obtain, change, or destroy confidff ential data (including personal identifying information of individuals) through a
variety of means, including computer viruses, malware, phishing, ransomware and other attack vectors. These attacks may
result in unauta hort ized individuals obtaining access to our confidff ential information or that of our customers, or otherwise
accessing, damaging, or disruptr ing our systems or infrastructurt e. In particular, as previously disclosed, on October 31, 2023, we
experienced a cybersecurity incident in which an unauta horized third party gained access to certain of our technology systems
and obtained personal information relating to substantially all of our current and former customers.

In addition, to access our products and services, including our Home Intelligence app, our customers may use personal
smartphones, tablet PCs, and other mobile devices that are beyond our control systems. Third parties with which we do
business or that facilitate our business activities or vendors that provide services or security solutions for our operations could
also be sources of operational risk and information security risk to us, including from cyber-attacks, information breaches or
loss, breakdowns, disruprr tions or failures of their own systems or infrastrucrr ture, or any deficiencies in the perforff mance of their
responsibilities. Additional security breaches, acts of vandalism and developments in computer intrusrr ion capabilities could
cause our financial, accounting, data processing or other operating systems and facilities to fail to operate properly or become
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disabled and could result in a compromise or breach of the technology that we or our vendors use to protect our customers’
personal information and transaction data.

Despite our effoff rts to ensure the integrity of our systems, it is possible that we may not be able to anticipate or implm ement
effeff ctive preventive measures against additional internal and external security breaches, especially because the techniques used
change frequently,yy are becoming more sophisticated and are not recognized until launched, and because security attacks can
originate from a wide variety of sources. This is especially applicable in the shiftff to having most of our team members work in
a home-centric environment, as our team members access our secure networksr through their home networksr . These risks may
increase in the future as we continue to increase our reliance on telecommunication technologies (including mobile devices),
the internet and use of web-based product offeff rings.

While we have implm emented policies and procedurd es designed to help mitigate cybersecurity risks and cyber intrusr ions, there
can be no assurance that cyber intrusrr ions, whether external or internal, will not occur. An additional successfulff penetration or
circumvention of the security of our or our vendors’ systems or a defect in the integrity of our or our vendors’ systems or
cybersecurity could causa e serious negative consequeq nces for our business, including significff ant disruptrr ion of our operations,
misappropriation of our confidff ential information or that of our customers, or damage to our computers or operating systems and
to those of our customers and counterparties. Any of the foregoing events could result in violations of applicable privacy and
other laws, financial loss to us or to our customers, loss of confidff ence in our security measures, customer dissatisfacff tion,
significant litigation exposure and harm to our reputation, all of which could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition
and results of operations. This risk is enhanced in certain jurisdictions with stringent data privacy laws. For examplmm e, several
states have data privacy rights for consumers that include statuttt ory damages frameworks and private rights of action against
business that fail to comply with certain terms or implm ement reasonabla e security procedurd es and practices to prevent data
breaches. Many other states are currently considering similar legislation, and there remains increased interest at the federal level
as well. Additionally, while we have obtained insurance to cover us against certain cybey rsecurity risks and information theft,ff
there can be no guarantee that all losses will be covered or that the insurance limits will be sufficff ient to cover such losses.

In addition, increasing attention is being paid by the media, regulators and legislators to matters relating to cybersecurity,yy and
regulators and legislators may enact laws or regulations regarding cybersecurity. New laws and regulations could result in
significant compliance costs, which may adversely affeff ct our cash flows and net income.

Our capia taii l investmentstt in technologyo maya not achieve anticipatedtt returns.
Our business is becoming increasingly reliant on technology investments, and the returns on these investments are less
predictabla e. We are currently making, and will continue to make, significff ant technology investments to suppou rt our originations
and servicing offeff rings by implm ementing imprm ovements to our customer-facing technology and evolving our information
processes and computer systems to run our business more effiff ciently and remain competitive and relevant to our customers.
Additionally,yy we have sold certain intellectuat l property rights related to our proprietary,yy cloud-based technology platform for
mortgage servicing and received an equity stake in the buyer. These technology initiatives might not provide the anticipated
benefits or may provide them on a delayed schedule or at a higher cost. We must monitor and choose the right investments and
implm ement them at the right pace. Failing to make the best investments or making an investment commitment significantly
above or below our needs could result in the loss of our competitive position and adversely impamm ct our financial condition and
results of operations.

We and our vendors have operations in India that couldll be adverdd serr ly affeff ctedtt by changen s in politicii al or economic stabtt ility or
by governmrr ent policies.
We currently have operations located in India, which may be subju ect to political and social instability and may lack the
infrastructurtt e to withstand political unrest or natural disasters. The political or regulatory climate in the United States, or
elsewhere, also could change so that it would not be lawfulff or practical for us to use international operations in the manner in
which we currently use them. If we or our vendors had to curtail or cease operations in India and transferff some or all of these
operations to anothet r geographa ic area, we would incur significff ant transition costs as well as higher future overher ad costs that
could materially and adversely affeff ct our results of operations. In many foreign countrit es, particularly in those with developing
economies, it may be common to engage in business practices that are prohibited by laws and regulations applicable to us, such
as The Foreign Corruptrr Practices Act of 1977, as amended (“FCPA”). Any violations of the FCPA or local anti-corruptu ion laws
by us, our subsu idiaries or our local agents could have an adverse effeff ct on our business and reputation and result in subsu tantial
financial penalties or other sanctions.

Our vendordd relationships subject us to a varietytt of riskii s.kk
We have significant vendors that, among othet r things, provide us with financial, technology and other services to suppu ort our
businesses. With respect to vendors engaged to perforff m activities required by the applicable servicing criteria, we assess
compliance with the applicable servicing criteria for the applicable vendor (or in certain cases require vendors to provide their
own assessments and attestations) and are required to have procedures in place to provide reasonabla e assurance that the
vendor’s activities comply in all material respects with servicing criteria applicable to the vendor. In the event that a vendor’s
activities do not comply with the servicing criteria, it could negatively impam ct our servicing agreements. Additionally, key
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vendors may misuse our data which could expose our customers to unauthorized transactions or othet r potential adverse events,
which may adversely affeff ct our business and reputation. In addition, if our current vendors were to stop providing services to us
on acceptabla e terms, including as a result of one or more vendor bankruptu cies, we may be unable to procure alternatives from
other vendors in a timely and effiff cient manner and on acceptable terms, or at all. Furthet r, we may incur significff ant costs to
resolve any such disruptrr ions in service and this could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We couldll have, appepp ar to have or be allell gee d to have conflicff ts of interest withii Xome.ee
Xome provides services to us which could create, appear to create or be alleged to create conflicff ts of interest. By obtaining
services from a subsu idiary,yy there is risk of possible claims of collusion or claims that such services are not provided by Xome
upon market terms. We have adopted policies, procedurdd es and practices that are designed to identifyff and address conflicff ts of
interest. In addition, we undertake practices to identifyff and deal with potential confliff cts. Furthet r, we have engaged an
independent third party to conduct a pricing studyt in an attempt to ensure that the fees charged are customaryrr and reasonabla e.
However, there can be no assurance that such measures will be effeff ctive in eliminating all conflicff ts of interest or that third
parties will refrain from making such allegations. Appropriately identifyiff ng and dealing with conflicff ts of interest is complex
and difficff ult, and our reputation, which is one of our most impom rtant assets, could be damaged and the willingness of
counterparties to enter into transactions with us may be affeff cted if we fail, or appear to fail, to identify,ff disclose and deal
appropriately with conflicff ts of interest. In addition, potential or perceived conflicff ts could give rise to litigation or regulatory
enforcement actions.

Our riskii managea ment policies and procedures maya not be effeff ctivtt e.
Our risk management framework seeks to mitigate risk and appropriately balance risk and return. We have established policies
and procedurd es intended to identify,ff monitor and manage the typeyy s of risk to which we are subju ect, including credit risk, market
and interest rate risk, liquidity risk, cyber risk, regulatory,rr legal and reputational risk. Although we have devoted significant
resources to develop our risk management policies and procedurd es and expect to continue to do so in the future, these policies
and procedurd es, as well as our risk management techniques such as our hedging strategies, may not be fully effeff ctive. There
may also be risks that exist, or that develop in the future, that we have not appropriately anticipated, identifieff d or mitigated. As
regulations and markets in which we operate continue to evolve, our risk management frameworkr may not always keep
sufficff ient pace with those changes. If our risk management framework does not effeff ctively identifyff or mitigate our risks, we
could sufferff unexpected losses and could be materially adversely affeff cted.

Our busineii ss couldll suffu erff if we fail to attrtt act, or retain, highi ly skilled emplm oyll ees and changen s in our executive managea ment
team maya be disrii uptive to our busineii ss.
Our future success will depend on our ability to identify,ff hire, develop, motivate and retain highly qualifieff d personnel for all
areas of our organization. Many of the companies with which we compete for experienced emplm oyees are large banks who have
greater resources than we have and may be able to offeff r more attractive terms of emplm oyment. In addition, we invest significff ant
time and expense in training our emplmm oyees, which increases their value to competitors who may seek to recruir t them. We may
not be able to attract, develop and maintain an adequate skilled workforce necessary to operate our businesses and labora
expenses may increase as a result of a shortage in the supplu y of qualifieff d personnel. If we are unabla e to attract and retain such
personnel, we may not be able to take advantage of acquisitions and other growth opportuntt ities that may be presented to us and
this could materially affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations. From time to time, we may have staffiff ng
reductions and may be exposed to unanticipated consequeq nces of our staffiff ng reductions, including attrition beyond the planned
reductions, increased difficff ulties in our day-to-day operations, including a loss of continuity,yy loss of accumulmm ated knowledge
and/or effiff ciency,yy reduced emplmm oyee morale and reduced ability to attract and retain qualifieff d personnel. Emplm oyees who were
not affeff cted by our planned staffiff ng reductions may seek alternate emplm oyment, which may harm our producd tivity.

Additionally,yy the experience of our executive management team is a valuable asset to us. Our executive management team has
significant experience in the residential loan originations and servicing industryrr and would be difficff ult to replace. Disruptrr ions
in management continuity could result in operational or administrative ineffiff ciencies and added costs, which could adversely
impam ct our results of operations and stock price, and may make recruirr ting for future management positions more difficff ult or
costly.

Negae tive publicll opinion couldll damagea our repuee tation and advedd rselyll affeff ct our busineii ss.
Reputational risk, or the risk to our business, earnir ngs and capia tal from negative public opinion, is inherent in our business.
Negative public opinion can result from our actuat l or alleged conduct in any numbem r of activities, including lending and debt
collection practices, technology failures, cyber attacks, corporate governance, and actions taken by government regulators and
communim ty organizations in response to those activities. Negative public opinion can also result from media coverage, whether
accurate or not. Additionally,yy the proliferff ation of social media websites as well as the personal use of social media by our
emplm oyees and others, including personal blogs and social network profileff s, also may increase the risk that negative,
inappropriate or unauta horized information may be posted or released publu icly that could harm our reputation or have other
negative consequences, including as a result of our emplm oyees interacting with our customers in an unauta horized manner in
various social media outlets.
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Our reputation may also be negatively impam cted by our environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) practices and
disclosures, including climate change practices and disclosures. In addition, various private third-party organizations have
developed ratings processes for evaluating companies on their approach to ESG matters. These third party ESG ratings may be
used by some investors to assist with their investment and voting decisions. Any unfavorabla e ESG ratings may lead to
reputational damage and negative sentiment among our investors and other stakeholders. Conversely,yy anti-ESG sentiment has
gained momentumt across the U.S., with several states having enacted or proposed “anti-ESG” policies, legislation or issued
related legal opinions. Because ESG practices are not universally agreed upon or accepted by investors, our disclosure of ESG
practices could attract opposition from certain investors.

These factors could impam ir our working relationships with government agencies and investors, expose us to litigation and
regulatory action, negatively affeff ct our ability to attract and retain customers and emplm oyees, and adversely affeff ct our results of
operations.

Issues related to the developmll ent and use of artififf cial intelligence (AI) couldll give riseii to legale and/or// regue latory action,
damagea our repuee tation or othett rwise materiali lyll harm our busineii ss.s
We currently incorporate generative AI driven automation in our call centers in a coaching platform that enables our team
members in Servicing, and Originations to be more producd tive with our customers. We also developed a mortgage-centric AI
platform that we use to analyze, bid and onboan rd loan portfolios that we use internally and market to third parties. Our research
and development of such technology remains ongoing, and we may begin to use AI in othet r areas in our business operations. AI
presents risks, challenges, and unintended consequeq nces that could affeff ct our and our customers’ adoption and use of this
technology. AI algorithms and training methodologies may be flawed. Additionally, AI technologies are complex and rapia dly
evolving. While we aim to develop and use AI responsibly and attempt to identifyff and mitigate ethical and legal issues
presented by its use, we may be unsuccessfulff in identifyiff ng or resolving issues before they arise. AI-related issues, deficiencies
and/or failures could (i) give rise to legal and/or regulatory action, including as a result of new applications of existing data
protection, privacy,yy intellectuat l property,yy and other laws; (ii) damage our reputation; or (iii) otherwise materially harm our
business.

Lapsa es in discii losure contrott ls and procedurd es or internal contrott l over finaii ncial repoe rtintt gn couldll materiali lyll and adverdd serr ly
affeff ct our operatiott ns,s profitaff bilityii or repuee tation.
Our disclosure contrott ls and procedurd es may not be effeff ctive in everyr circumstance. Similarly, we may experience a material
weakness or significant deficiency in internal contrott l over financial reporting. Any lapsa es or deficiencies may materially and
adversely affeff ct our business and results of operations or financial condition, restrict our ability to access the capia tal markets,
require us to spend significff ant resources to correct the lapsa es or deficiencies, expose us to regulatoryrr or legal proceedings,
subject us to fines, penalties or judgments, harm our reputation, or otherwise cause a decline in investor confidff ence.

Our busineii ss is subject to the riskii skk of earthqtt uakes, hurricaii nes, fireii s, flooll ds,s healthll pandemics and othett r natural
catastrott pho ic events.tt
Earthquakes, hurricanes, fires, floods, health pandemics, and similar events could have a material adverse effeff ct on the macro
economymm and affeff ct our loan servicing costs, increase our servicing advances, increase servicing defaula ts and negatively affeff ct
the value of our MSRs and loans in our pipeline.

Regulatory,yy Compliance and Legal Risks

We operate withii in a highi ly regue lated industrytt on federal, stattt ett and local levelsll and our busineii ssee results are signi ificff antly
impacm ted by the laws and regue lations to which we are subjectj ,tt as well as scrutinyii from governmental or regue latory agencies.

Our businesses are subju ect to extensive, complex and comprehensive regulation under federal, state and local laws in the United
States, as well as governmental scrutiny from regulators and law enforcement agencies. These laws, regulations and
governmental inquiries can significantly affeff ct the way that we do business, can restritt ct the scope of our existing businesses,
limit our ability to expand our producd t offeff rings or to pursue acquiq sitions, or can make our costs to service or originate loansa
higher, which could impamm ct our financial results.

Federal, state and local governments have proposed or enacted numerous laws, regulations and rules related to mortgage loans
and registered investment advisors. Due to the highly regulated nature of the residential mortgage industry,rr we are required to
comply with a wide array of federal, state and local laws and regulations that regulate, among othet r things, the manner in which
we conduct our servicing, originations and ancillary business, including Xome and Roosevelt Management Company, and the
fees we may charge. These regulations directly impam ct our business and require constant compliance, which includes enhancing
our compliance program, procedures and controls, monitoring and internal and external audits. A failure in maintaining an
effeff ctive compliance program or a material failure to comply with any of these laws or regulations could subju ect us to lawsuits
or governmrr ental actions, which could materially adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations. In
addition, there continue to be changes in legislation and licensing, which require technology changes and additional
implm ementation costs for loan originators and new state and federal privacy legislation could impam ct mortgage operations,
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marketing, and data governance. We expect legislative changes will continue in the foreseeable future, which may increase our
operating expenses. Furthet rmore, there continue to be changes in state laws that are adverse to mortgage servicers that increase
costs and operational complexity of our business and imposm e significff ant penalties for violation. Any of these changes in law
could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Regulatory requirements or changes to existing requirements that the CFPB or othet r federal or state agencies, including HUD
and the FCC, related to our business may result in increased compliance and operational costs and impamm ir the profitaff bia lity of
such business. For examplm e, the CFPB has proposed significff ant changes to Regulation X, which governsr mortgage servicing
rules. Key proposed changes include (i) significant limited English proficff iency requirements that include the translation of all
servicing documents into the top five languages and loans to be serviced in the same language that is used in marketing to the
customer in the loan origination, (ii) new loss mitigation framework including earlier customer protections and foreclosure
protections and (iii) enhancements to loss mitigation notices. The proposed changes may increase operational complexity,yy
require significff ant adjud stments to our existing processes and systems and expose us to increased legal and compliance risks.
Even if implm ementation of the final rule is ultimately impamm cted by the change in Presidential administration, the focus will
likely shiftff to state regulatory enforcement which will trigger a change management review of the Company’s existing
processes, contrott ls and testing environment. In addition, the authority of state attorneys general to bring actions to enforce
federal consumer protection legislation, as a result of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010
(“Dodd-Frank Act”), could be expanded and we could be subju ect to additional state lawsuits and enforcement actions, thereby
further increasing our legal and compliance costs. The cumulative effeff ct of these changes could result in a material impam ct on
our earnings. The implm ementation of the originations and servicing rules by the CFPB and/or state regulators and their
continuing examinations of our business, could increase our regulatory compliance burden and associated costs and place
restrictions on our operations, which could in turn adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Additionally,yy the CFPB is generally increasing its scrutiny of fee-based business models and so-called “junk fees," fair lending
and servicing, and potential misuse of consumer data - all of which could subju ect us to additional rules or supeu rvisoryrr or
enforcement scrutiny. In addition, our sub-u servicing of loans for federally regulated depositories creates indirect regulatory risk
with the OCC, FDIC, and the U.S. Federal Reserve. Recent enforcement actions by these regulators over competitors in the
mortgage servicing business increases our risks with both the CFPB and state regulatoryrr agencies and indirectly through our
subsu ervicing business partners.

We could be subju ect to additional regulatory requirements or changes under the Dodd-Frank Act beyond those currently
proposed, adopted or contemplm ated. There also continues to be discussion of potential GSE reform which would likely affeff ct
markets for mortgages and mortgage securities in ways that cannot be predicted. In addition, FHFA initiatives may be
implm emented by the GSEs that could materially affeff ct the market for conventional and/or government insured loans. Further, on
November 3, 2023, the Financial Stability Oversight Council (the “FSOC”) approved final versions of a new analytic
framework for financial stability risks and updated guidance on the FSOC’s nonbank financial company determinations
process. The updated guidance for Nonbank Financial Company Determinations sets fortht the FSOC’s procedurd es for
considering whether to designate a nonbank financial company for Federal Reserve supeu rvision and prudrr ential standards under
section 113 of the Dodd-Frank Act. To date, the FSOC has used this authority sparingly, but there is no guarantee that it will
continue to do so.

Individual states have also been active in regulatoryr enforcement, as have other regulatory organizations such as the Multi-State
Mortgage Committee, as well as various state Attorneys General. We also believe there has been a shiftff among certain
regulators towards a broader view of the scope of regulatoryrr oversight responsibilities with respect to mortgage originators and
servicers. In addition to their traditional focus on consumer protection laws, licensing and examination matters, certain
regulators have begun to make observations, recommendations or demands with respect to such areas as corporate governance,
low-to-moderate income lending requirements, safety and soundness, and risk and compliance management.

Certain regulators took steps to block the acquisition of MSRs by one of our competitors. It is possible that we could become
subject to similar actions with respect to our acquisition of MSRs or other key business operations such as entering into
subsu ervirr cing contrat cts. Additionally,yy as the largest mortgage servicer, we could be subju ect to concentration limits from Fannie
Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae, which could further limit our ability to acquire new MSRs or enter into new subservicing
contratt cts. All of which could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The influx of new laws, regulations, and other directives adopted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic exemplm ifieff s the ever-
changing and increasingly complex regulatory landscape we operate in. While some regulatory reactions to COVID-19 may
have relaxed certain compliance obligations (e.g., relaxing work location requirements for loan personnel working remotely
during COVID-19 emergency declarations) other updates related to servicing delinquent mortgages and providing new
mortgage assistance programs have subsu tantially increased mortgage servicers responsibilities and risks. While some regulators
have granted permanent ability to work away from a licensed location, those that have not may determine that prior leniency
surrounding work locations may no longer apply. We have received inquiries from various federal and state lawmakers,
attorneys general and regulators seeking information on our COVID-19 response and its impam ct on our business, team
members, and clients. Future regulatory scrutiny and enforcement resulting from COVID-19 is unknown.
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We are subject to numerous legae l proceedingii s,gg federal, stattt ett or local governmentaltt examinatiott ns and enfon rcement
investigatiott ns. Some of these matters are highi ly complexee and slowll to develop,ll and results are diffi icff ultll to predicdd t or estimate.ee
Legae l Procrr eedings: We are routinely and currently involved in a significff ant number of legal proceedings concernirr ng matters
that arise in the ordinary course of our business. There is no assurance that the numbem r of legal proceedings will not increase in
the future, including certifieff d class or mass actions. These legal proceedings range from actions involving a single plaintiffff to
putative class action lawsuits. These actions and proceedings are generally based on alleged violations of consumer protection,
securities, emplmm oyment, contract, tort, common law fraud and numerous other laws, including, but not limited to, the Equal
Credit Opportunt ity Act, Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, Fair Credit Reporting Act, Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act, National Housing Act, Homeowners Protection Act, Service Member’s Civil Relief Act, Telephone
Consumer Protection Act, Trutrr h in Lending Act, Financial Instituttt ions Reform, Recovery,yy and Enforcement Act of 1989, unfair,
deceptive or abusive acts or practices in violation of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Securities Act of 1933, the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Bankruptu cy Code, False Claims Act and the CARESAct. Additionally,yy
along with others in our industry, we are subju ect to repurchase and indemnificff ation claims and may continue to receive claims
in the future, regarding alleged breaches of representations and warranties relating to the sale of mortgage loans, the placement
of mortgage loans into securitization trusrr ts or the servicing of mortgage loan securitizations. We are also subju ect to legal actions
or proceedings related to loss sharing and indemnificff ation provisions of our various acquisitions. Additionally,yy third parties may
assert claims against us that our content, website processes or software applications infringe their intellectuat l property rights.
Certain of the pending or threatened legal proceedings include claims for substantial compensatory,yy punitive and/or, statutt ory
damages or claims for an indeterminate amount of damages.

Litigation and other proceedings may require that we pay settlement costs, legal fees, damages, including punitive damages,
penalties or othet r charges, or be subju ect to injun nctive relief affeff cting our business practices, any or all of which could adversely
affeff ct our financial results. In particular, ongoing and othet r legal proceedings brought under federal or state consumer
protection statutt es may result in a separate fine for each violation of the statutt e, which, particularly in the case of class action
lawsuits, could result in damages subsu tantially in excess of the amounts we earned from the underlying activities and that could
have a material adverse effeff ct on our liquidity,yy financial position and results of operations. The costs of responding to the
investigations can be subsu tantial.

Regue latory Matters: We operate within highly regulated industries on a federal, state and local level. In the normal and ordinary
course of our business, we are routinely subject to extensive examinations, investigations, subpu oenas, inquiries and reviews by
various federal, state and local governmental, regulatory and enforcement agencies, including CFPB, the Securities and
Exchange Commission, the Department of Justice, the Offiff ce of the Special Inspector General for the Troublu ed Asset Relief
Program, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urbar n Development, various State mortgage banking regulators and various
State Attorneys General, related to our residential loan servicing and origination practices, our financial reporting and othet r
aspects of our businesses. For examplm e, in 2020, we resolved certain legacy regulatory matters with the CFPB, the multi-state
committee of mortgage banking regulators and various State Attorneys General, and the Executive Offiff ce of the United States
Trusr tee, all of which involved findings from examinations and discussions that were completed in 2014 and 2015, and related
to certain loan servicing practices which occurred during 2010 through 2015. Several large mortgage originators or servicers
have been subju ect to similar matters, which have resulted in the payment of fines and penalties, changes to business practices
and the entryrr of consent decrees or settlements. The trend of large settlements with governmental entities may adversely affeff ct
the outcomes for othet r financial institutions, including us. We continue to manage our response to each matter, but it is not
possible for us to reliably predict the outcome of any of them, including predicting any possible losses resulting from any
judgments or fines, which can lead to substantial disparities between legal reserves and subsu equent settlements or penalties.

Responding to these matters requires us to devote subsu tantial legal and regulatory resources, resulting in higher costs and lower
net cash flows. Adverse results in any of these matters could further increase our operating expenses and reduce our revenues,
require us to change business practices, limit our ability to grow and othet rwise materially and adversely affeff ct our business,
reputation, financial condition and results of operation. To the extent that an examination or othet r regulatory engagement
reveals a failure by us to comply with applicable law, regulation or licensing requirement this could lead to (i) loss of our
licenses and approvals to engage in our businesses, (ii) damage to our reputation in the industry and loss of client relationships,
(iii) governmental investigations and enforcement actions, (iv) administrative fines and penalties and litigation, (v) civil and
criminal liabia lity,yy including class action lawsuits, and actions to recover incentive and othet r payments made by governmental
entities, (vi) enhanced compliance requirements, (vii) breaches of covenants and representations under our servicing, debt or
other agreements, (viii) inability to raise capital and (ix) inability to execute on our business strategy. Any of these occurrences
could further increase our operating expenses and reduce our revenues, require us to change business practices and procedurdd es
and limit our ability to grow or othet rwise materially and adversely affeff ct our business, reputation, financial condition and
results of operation.

Moreover, regulatory changes establa ished under the Dodd-Frank Act, which continue to be expanded, other regulatory changes
such as the CFPB having its own examination and enforcement authority and the “whistleblower” provisions of the Dodd-Frank
Act and guidance on whistleblowing programs issued by the NYDFS could further increase the numbem r of legal and regulatory
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enforcement proceedings against us. In addition, while we take numerous steps to prevent and detect emplm oyee misconduct,
such as frauda , emplm oyee misconduct cannot always be deterred or prevented and could subject us to additional liabia lity.

We establa ish reserves for pending or threatened legal proceedings when it is probable that a liabia lity has been incurred and the
amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. Legal proceedings are inherently uncertain, and our estimates of loss are
based on information availabla e at that time. Our estimates may change from time to time for various reasons, including factuat l
or legal developments in these matters. There cannot be any assurance that the ultimate resolution of our litigation and
regulatory matters will not involve losses, which may be material, in excess of our recorded accruals or estimates of reasonabla y
possible losses.

Unlike competitott rs that are national banks,kk we are subject to stattt ett licensingii and operatiott nal requirements that result in
substantiatt l compliance costs.tt
Because we are not a depositoryr institution, we do not benefit from a federal exemptm ion to state mortgage banking, loan
servicing or debt collection licensing and regulatory requirements. Thereforff e, we must comply with individual state licensing
and compliance requirements in all 50 states, the District of Columbia and other U.S. territories, and we are sensitive to
regulatory changes that may increase our costs through stritt cter licensing laws, disclosure laws or increased fees or that may
imposmm e conditions to licensing that we or our personnel are unable to meet. In addition, we are subju ect to periodic examinations
by state regulators, which can result in refunds to customers of certain fees earned by us, and we may be required to pay
substantial penalties impom sed by state regulators due to compliance error rs. Future state legislation and changes in existing
regulation may significff antly increase our compliance costs or reduce the amount of ancillary revenues, including late fees that
we may charge to customers. This could make our business cost-prohibitive in the affeff cted state or states and could materially
affeff ct our business.

Our busineii ss wouldll be adverserr ly affeff ctedtt if we lose our licenii ses.
Our operations are subju ect to regulation, supeu rvision and licensing under numerous federal, state and local statutt es, ordinances
and regulations. In most states in which we operate, a regulatory agency regulates and enforces laws relating to mortgage
servicing companies, mortgage originations companies and real estate brokers and auctioneers. These rules and regulations
generally provide for licensing as a mortgage servicing Company, mortgage originations Company or third-party debt default
specialist, licensed auctioneer, and othet r similar types of requirements as to the form and content of contracts and othet r
documentation, licensing of our emplm oyees and emplmm oyee hiring background checks, licensing of independent contrat ctors with
which we contratt ct, restrictions on certain practices, disclosure and record-keeping requirements and enforcement of customers’
rights. We are subju ect to periodic examination by state regulatory authorities.

We believe that we maintain all material licenses and permits required for our current operations and are in substantial
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances. We may not be able to maintain
all requisite licenses and permits, and the failure to satisfy those and other regulatory requirements could result in a defaula t
under our servicing or other agreements and have a material adverse effeff ct on our operations. The states that currently do not
provide extensive regulation of our businesses may later choose to do so, and if such states so act, we may not be able to obtain
or maintain all requisite licenses and permits. The failure to satisfy those and othet r regulatory requirements could result in a
defaula t under our servicing agreements and have a material adverse effeff ct on our operations. Furthermore, the adoption of
additional, or the revision of existing, rules and regulations could adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

We maya incur increased litigatiott n coststt and related losses if a court overturns a foreclosll ure or if a loan we are servicingn
becomes subordindd atett to a Home Owners Associatiott n lien.

We may incur costs if we are required to, or if we elect to, execute or re-file documents or take other action in our capacity as a
servicer in connection with pending or completed foreclosures. In addition, if a court rules that the lien of a Home Owners
Association takes priority over the lien we service, we may incur legal liabia lities and costs to defend such actions. If a court
dismisses or overturtt ns a foreclosure because of errors or deficff iencies in the foreclosure process, we may have liabia lity to the
loan owner, a customer, title insurer or the purchaser of the property sold in foreclosure. These costs and liabia lities may not be
legally or otherwise reimburm sabla e to us, particularly to the extent they relate to securitized mortgage loans. A significant
increase in litigation costs could adversely affeff ct our liquidity,yy and our inability to be reimbum rsed for an advance could
adversely affeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Resideii ntiatt l mortgatt ga e foreclosll ure proceedingii sgg in certain stattt estt have been delayea d due to lack of juff dicialii resources and
legie slii atll iott n, allll of which couldll have a negae tive effeff ct on our ability to liquidate loans timelyll and slowll the recoveryr of
advancesee and thus impam ct our earnings or liquii iditdd y.tt
In some states, such as New York, our industry has faced, and may continue to face, increased delays and costs caused by state
law and local court rules and processes. In addition, Califorff nir a and Nevada have enacted Homeowner’s Bill of Rights
legislation to establa ish complex mandatoryrr loss mitigation practices for homeowners which cause delays in foreclosure
proceedings. Delays in foreclosure proceedings could also require us to make additional servicing advances by drawing on our
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servicing advance facilities, or delay the recovery of advances, all or any of which could materially affeff ct our earnings and
liquidity and increase our need for capital.

Risks Related to Owning our Stock

Our common stoctt k, and anyn othett r instrutt mentstt treated as stoctt k for purposes of Sectiott n 382, is subject to transferff restritt ctiott ns
underdd our Certiftt icff atett of Incorporatiott n which, if not complied withii , couldll result in the forfeiff tuii re of such stoctt k and related
distii ritt bui tions.
Our Certificff ate of Incorporation contains significant transferff restrictions in relation to the transferff of our common stock and any
other instrutt ments treated as stock for purpr oses of Section 382. These transferff restrictions have been adopted in order to
minimize the likelihood that we will be deemed to have an “ownership change” within the meaning of Section 382 that could
limit our ability to utilize our NOLs under and in accordance with regulations promulm gated by the IRS.

In particular, without the approval of our Board, (i) no person or group of persons treated as a single entity under Treasury
Regulation Section 1.382-3 will be permitted to acquiq re, whether directly or indirectly,yy and whether in one transaction or a
series of related transactions, any of our common stock or any othet r instrument treated as stock for purposes of Section 382, to
the extent that afteff r giving effeff ct to such purported acquisition (a) the purported acquiq rer or any othet r person by reason of the
purported acquirer’s acquisition would become a Subsu tantial Holder (as defined below), or (b) the percentage stock ownership
of a person that, prior to giving effeff ct to the purported acquisition, is already a Subsu tantial Holder would be increased; and (ii)
no Substantial Holder may dispose, directly or indirectly,yy of any class of stock or any othet r instrutt ment treated as stock for
purposes of Section 382. A “Substantial Holder” is a person that owns (as determined for purposes of Section 382) at least
4.75% of the total value of our stock, including any instrument treated as stock for purposes of Section 382.

Because of the complexity of applying Section 382, and because the determination of ownership for purposrr es of Section 382
does not correspond to SEC beneficial ownership reporting on Schedules 13D and 13G, holders and potential acquirers of our
securities should consult with their legal and tax advisors prior to making any acquisition or disposition of our securities.
Pursuant to Article VIII of our Certificff ate of Incorporation, the Board has the sole power to determine compliance with the
transferff restrictions, and we cannot assure you that the Board will concur with any conclusions reached by any holder of our
securities or their respective advisors, and/or approve or ratify any proposed acquisitions or dispositions of our securities. Under
Article VIII, Section 3(b), of our Certificff ate of Incorporation, if the Board determines that a Prohibited Transferff (as defined in
our Certificff ate of Incorporation) has occurred, such Prohibited Transferff shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be void ab
initio and have no legal effeff ct, and upon written demand by us, the Purported Transferff ee (as defined in our Certificff ate of
Incorporation) shall disgorge or cause to be disgorged our securities, together with any dividends or distributions received, with
respect to such securities.

Anti-takeover provisions in our Certiftt icff atett of Incorporatiott n and Amended and Restattt edtt Bylaws (“By“ laws”) and under
Delaware law, as well as certain existingn contratt ctual arrarr ngements,s make a third-pa- rtytt acquisitiott n of us diffi icff ult.ll
Our Certificff ate of Incorporation, including Article VIII thereof, and Bylaws contain provisions that make it difficff ult for a third
party to acquiq re us, even if doing so might be deemed beneficial by our stockholders. These provisions could limit the price that
investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

The market price of our common stoctt k maya decrease,e and you maya lose allll or part of yoff ur investmett nt.tt
The market price of our common stock could decrease, and you mayaa not be able to resell your shares at or above the price at
which your shares were acquired. Those fluctuations could be based on various factors, including:

• our operating performance and the performance of our competitors and fluctuations in our operating results;
• macro-economic trends, including changes in interest rates and economic growth and unemplm oyment;
• the public’s reaction to our press releases, our other publu ic announcements and our filings with the SEC;
• changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by research analysts who follow us or other companies in our

industry;
• global, national or local economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance;
• announcements of negative news by us or our competitors, such as announcements of poorer than expected results of

operations, data breaches or significant litigation;
• actuat l or anticipated variations in our or our competitors’ operating results, and our or our competitors’ growth rates;
• failure by us or our competitors to meet analysts’ projections or guidance we or our competitors may give the market;
• changes in laws or regulations, or new interpretations or applications of laws and regulations, that are applicable to our

business;
• changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles;
• the departurt e of key personnel;
• the number of shares publu icly traded; and
• other developments affeff cting us, our industry or our competitors.
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In addition, in recent years the stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have affeff cted and
continue to affeff ct the market prices of equity securities of many companies. These fluctuations have ofteff n been unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating perforff mance of those companies. These broad market fluctuations, as well as general
economic, political and market conditions such as recessions or interest rate changes, may cause declines in the market price of
our common stock, and you may not realize any return on your investment in us and may lose some or all of your investment.

Item 1B. Unresoee lved Staftt fff Commentstt

None.

Item 1C. Cybersecurityii

Cyber Riskii Managea ment and Stratt tegye
Our cybey r risk management and strategy has been incorporated into our compliance and risk management program across a
numbem r of verticals. For examplm e, information security risk assessments are perforff med across our business processes, including,
but not limited to, third-party services, vendors and systems that process sensitive data. We undergo external annual penetration
assessments to evaluate susceptibility to attack, for examplm e, through social engineering, application websites and
system/nmm etwork vulnerabilities. We aim to continuously evolve our Information Security program in response to the ever-
changing landscape of best practices, industry-r specific risks, company-specificff risks, and potential threats. This evolution is
also driven by validation tests in an effoff rt to ensure our program remains robust and effeff ctive. In the wake of the October 2023
cybersecurity incident, we prioritized implm ementation of enhanced safeguards consistent with our incident response process and
further fortifyiff ng our commitment to information security.

We also have a process to evaluate third-partytt providers, which is designed to understand the potential risks and impam ct of
threats to our supplu y chains as well as potential privacy risks associated with external data management. This process has
multiple components and is designed to assess our providers perforff mance across several domains, including data security,yy asset
management, communim cations and operations management, access controt l, business continuity management, financial, and
legal compliance.

Considering the complexity and evolving nature of cybersecurity threats, we engage with a range of external experts, including
cybersecurity assessors, consultants, and auditors, in evaluating and testing our risk management systems. These engagements
allow us to leverage specialized knowledge and insights, including leading industry practices, to better inform our cybersecurity
strategies and processes. Our collaboa ration with these third parta ies includes audits, threat assessments, and consultations to
enhance our security measures.

In addition, we undergo several compliance audits annually,yy which include a SOX compliance audit, a SOC1 audit and a SOC2
audit. Our approach to managing compliance-related risks includes maintaining a data loss prevention program, centralized
compliance management, an identity management platform, ongoing Managed Security monitoring, threat and vulnerability
monitoring, and information security risk insurance.

Governarr nce Related to Cybersecurityii Riskii skk
The full Board of Directors conducd ts several reviews throughout the year in an effoff rt to ensure that our cyber stratt tegy and risk
management is appropriate and prudrr ent. It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to understand and oversee our strategic
plans, the associated risks, and the steps that our senior management team is taking to manage and mitigate those risks.
Principal accountability in this domain is placed with our Chief Information Security Offiff cer, who has approximately 25 years
of experience in cybersecurity program design and implm ementation. Responsibility is shared by our Chief Risk and Compliance
Offiff cer, who has approximately 20 years of leadership experience in the financial services sector with an extensive background
in the mortgage industry,yy and our Chief Innovation and Digital Offiff cer who has approximately 20 years of experience leading
technology and product engineering functions.

Our Enterprise Risk Committee reviews and discusses cybey rsecurity,yy information security and data privacy risks at regular
intervals. A quarterly Enterprise Risk Committee meeting is chaired by our Chief Risk and Compliance Offiff cer and includes
information security briefings led by the Chief Information Security Offiff cer.

We also hold quarterly Audit and Risk Committee meetings, during which our Board of Directors receives briefings on
information security matters. Risks that are identifieff d during these processes are reviewed by executive leadership and
corrective action plans are establa ished to address and manage the issues, as applicable and appropriate.

We believe in a proactive approach to enterprise risk management. Amajoa r tenet of our cybey rsecurity program includes training
to educd ate and inform team members on cyber hygiene and threat management as well as regular testing to check for
understanding. We have invested in technology and dedicated internal resources to facilitate training for application developers,
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conduct tabla etop exercises, run anti-phishing campam igns, and train on privacy regulations. These training activities, along with
other key risk indicators, are tracked and reported to our Enterprise Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.

Item 2. Propertiett s

We lease and maintain our principal executive offiff ce in one building totaling approximately 176,000 squaq re feet in Coppell,
Texas. Our business operations and suppu ort offiff ces are in leased facilities in various other locations in the United States, as well
as locations in India. Our locations in the United States include (i) Texas and California, which houses our Servicing and
Originations segments, and (ii) Arizona, Michigan, Florida, and Colorado, which house the remainder of our Servicing
segment. Our India locations include Chennai and Bengaluru,rr which suppu orts our Servicing and Originations segments, as well
as corporate functions. We believe that our facilities are adequate for our current requirements and are being appropriately
utilized. We periodically review our space requirements, and we believe we will be able to acquire new space and facilities as
and when needed on reasonabla e terms. We also look to consolidate and dispose of facilities we no longer need, as and when
appropriate.

Item 3. Legale Proceedingii sgg

We are routinely and currently involved in a numbem r of legal proceedings, including, but not limited to, judicial, arbir tration,
regulatory and governmental proceedings related to matters that arise in connection with the conducd t of our business. While it is
not possible to predict the outcome of any of these matters, based on our assessment of the facts and circumstances, we do not
believe any of these matters, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effeff ct on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows. For a description of our material legal proceedings, see Note 19,9 Commitments and
Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8. Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data,
of this Form 10-K.

Item 4.Mineii Safea ty Discii losures

Not applicable.

PART II.

Item 5.Market for Regie stii ratt nt’s Common Equityii ,yy Related Stoctt kholdell r Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equityii Securitieii s

Marketkk Infon rmation and Stockholdell rs
Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the ticker symbol “COOP.”PP

As of Februarr ry 14, 2025, there were 1,479 stockholders of record of our common stock. A subsu tantially greater numbem r of
holders of our common stock are “street name” or beneficial holders, whose shares are held by banks, brokers and other
financial institutions.

Dividendsdd
We have not declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock, and we currently do not expect to declare or pay any cash
dividends in the foreseeabla e future. The timing and amount of any future dividends, if any, will be determined by the Board of
Directors and will depend, among othet r factors, upon our earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, the capital
requirements of subsidiaries and investment opportunitt ties at the time any such transaction is considered.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
In October 2022, our Board of Directors authorized a repurchase plan of $200 million of our outstanding common stock and
authorized an additional $200 million in each of July 2023 and July 2024. The stock repurchase program may be suspended,
modified or discontinued at any time at our discretion. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, $190 million of common stock remain
availabla e for repurchase. During the three monthst ended Decembem r 31, 2024, we repurchased shares of our common stock at a
total cost of $38 million, excluding excise tax, under our share repurchase program. The numbem r and average price of shares
purchased are set forth in the table below:

Period
(a) Total Number of Shares
Purchased (in thousands)

(b) Average Price Paid per
Share(1)

(c) Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced Plan or
Program (in thousands)

(d) Maximum Dollar Value
of Shares that May Yet Be
Purchased Under the Plan
or Program (in millions)(1)

October 2024 104 $ 88.95 104 $ 219
NNovember 2024 182 $ 95.90 182 $ 202
Decembem r 2024 120 $ 95.36 120 $ 190

Total 406 406
(1) Excludes excise tax
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Stockholdell r Return Perforff marr nce
The following graph shows a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return for our common stock, the S&P 500 Index
and the S&P Composite 1500 Financials Index from Decembem r 31, 2019 through Decembem r 31, 2024. This data assumes an
investment of $100 no Decembem r 31, 2019.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return (12/31/2019 to 12/31/2024)

Comparative results for our common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the S&P Composite 1500 Financials Index are presented
below:

December 31,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Mr. Cooper $ 100 $ 248 $ 333 $ 321 $ 521 $ 767
S&P 500 Index 100 116 148 119 148 182
S&P Composite 1500 Financials Index 100 96 126 111 121 151

Item 6. [RESERVERR D]

Item 7. Managea ment’s Discii ussion and Analysll is of Finaii ncial Conditiodd n and Results of Operatiott ns

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the information contained in our consolidated financial statements,
including the notes thereto. The following discussion contains, in addition to the historical information, forward-looking
statements that include risks and uncertainties (see discussion of “Forward-Looking Statements” included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K). Our actuatt l results may differff materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including those factors set forth under Item 1A, Riskii Factors,rr and elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

All dollar amounts presented herein are in millions, except per share data and othet r key metrics, unless otherwise noted.

We have provided a glossary of terms, which defines certain industry-specific and other terms that are used herein, at the end of
the MD&A section.
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Basis of Presentation

The below presentation discusses the results of the operations for the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 compared to the year
ended Decembem r 31, 2023. For a discussion of results of operations for the year ended Decembem r 31, 2023 compared to the year
ended Decembem r 31, 2022, please refer to Item 7.Management's Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Overview

We are the country’s largest residential mortgage servicer and a majoa r originator of residential mortgage loans. Our mission is
to keep the dream of homeownership alive, and we do this by helping our customers manage what is typically their largest
financial asset, and by helping our investors and clients maximize the returns from their portfolios of residential mortgages. We
have a track record of significff ant growth, having expanded our servicing portfolio UPB from $10 billion in 2006 to $1.6 trillion
as of Decembem r 31, 2024. We believe this track record reflects our strong operating capabilities, strong loss mitigation skills, a
commitment to compliance, a customer-centric culture, a demonstrated ability to retain customers, growing origination
capabilities, and significff ant investment in technology.

Our strategy is to position the Company for sustained growth, deliver a world-class customer experience, increase our return on
tangible equiq ty into the high teens, and act as a trusrr ted partner for our key stakeholders. Key strategic initiatives include the
following:

• Strengthen our balance sheet by building capital and liquiq dity,yy and managing interest rate and other forms of risk;
• Imprm ove effiff ciency by driving continuous imprm ovement in unit costs for Servicing and Originations segments, as well

as by taking strategic corporate actions to eliminate costs throughout the organization;
• Grow our servicing portfolio by acquiq ring new customers and retaining existing customers;
• Sustain industryrr leading refinance recapture rates and grow our purchase recapture rate;
• Keep Mr. Cooper a great place for our team members to work;
• Sustain the talent of our people and the culturtt e of our organization;
• Delight our customers and reinvent the customer experience by acting as the customer’s advocate and by harnessing

technology to deliver digital solutions that are personalized and friction-free;
• Use our mortgage-centric AI capabilities to transforff m mortgage servicing for the benefit of our customers, clients,

team members, and investors; and
• Maintain strong relationships with agencies, investors, regulators, and other counterparties and a strong reputation for

compliance and customer service.

Anticipated Trends

We expect continued growth in our servicing portfolio, driven by MSR acquisitions in the bulk, co-issue, and correspondent
channels, together with a strong focus on customer experience and retention, as well as growth in subsu ervicing market share.
We expect to maintain a high level of liquidity and capital, which will support our growth initiatives and provide a bufferff
against potential market fluctuations. Additionally,yy the rollout of new technologies like AgentiQ is expected to drive
productivity and effiff ciency improvements across the organization. AgentiQ is a framework application designed to assist call
center team members by analyzing conversations in real time, detecting customer intent and sentiment trends, and providing
insights and suggestions to suppu ort agents in delivering better service. Overall, we believe the company is well-positioned to
capitalize on opportunities in the mortgage market and deliver strott ng financial perforff mance in the years ahead.

While the recent inflation rate increase appears to have subsu ided, the inflation rate remains relatively high. Inflationary
pressures may limit a customer’s disposable income, which could decrease a customers’ ability to enter into mortgage
transactions. Inflationary pressures may also increase our operating costs. However, historically changes in interest rates have
had a greater impamm ct on our financial results than changes in inflation. While interest rates are greatly influenced by changes in
the inflation rate, they do not necessarily change at the same rate or extent as the inflation rate.
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Results of Operations

Table 1. Consolidated Operations

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change

Revenues - operational(1) $ 2,144 $ 1,769 $ 375
Revenues - mark-to-market 81 25 56
Total revenues 2,225 1,794 431
Total expenses 1,319 1,172 147
Total other (expense) income, net (5) 32 (37)
Income before income tax expense 901 654 247
Less: Income tax expense 232 154 78
NNet income $ 669 $ 500 $ 169
(1) Revenues - operational consists of total revenues, excluding mark-to-market.

Total revenues and total expenses increased during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 compared to 2023, primarily driven by a
larger servicing portfolio and increased originations volumes. The change in total other (expense) income, net during the year
ended Decembem r 31, 2024, as compared to 2023, was primarily due to a gain recorded in 2023 in connection with an acquisition
and an increase in interest expense in 2024. Interest expense increased in 2024 primarily due to the issuances of the unsecured
senior notes in Februar ry and August 2024, partially offsff et by an increase in interest income related to higher float income on
custodial deposits as a result of growth in the MSR portfolff io.

Income tax expense was $232 with an effeff ctive tax rate of 25.8% for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared with $154
with an effeff ctive tax rate of 23.5% in 2023. For furthet r information on income taxes, please refer to Note 16, Income Taxesaa , in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Segment Results

Our operations are conducd ted through two segments: Servicing and Originations.

• The Servicing segment performs operational activities on behalf of investors or owners of the underlying mortgages
and mortgage servicing rights, including collecting and disbursing customer payments, investor reporting, customer
service, modifying loans where appropriate to help customers stay current, and, when necessary,yy perforff mir ng
collections, foreclosures, and the sale of REO. In 2023, we expanded our special servicing, and in 2024, we expanded
our subsu ervicing offeff rings with the acquiq sition and subsequeq nt integration of Rushmore Servicing brand and the
mortgage operations from the Flagstar transaction.

• The Originations segment originates residential mortgage loans through our direct-to-consumer channel, which
provides refinance options for our existing customers, and through our correspondent channel, which purchases or
funds loans from mortgage bankers.

Refer to Note 20,0 Segme ent Infon rmation, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a summary of segment results.

Servicing Segment

The Servicing segment’s strategy is to generate income by growing the portfolff io and maximizing servicing margin. We believe
several competitive strengths have been critical to our long-term growth as a servicer and subsu ervirr cer, including our low-cost
platform that creates operating leverage, our skill in mitigating losses for investors and clients, our commitment to strong
customer service, industry leading compliance management, our historyr of successfulff ly boarding new customers, and the ability
to retain existing customers by offeff ring attractive purchase and refinance options. We believe that our operational capabilities
are reflected in our strong servicer ratings and recent agency recognition.
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Table 2. Servicer Ratings

Fitch(1) Moody’s(2) S&P(3)

RRating date

FFebruary/Ayy prA il
2024 & Januaryrr
2025

October &
DDecember 2024 JJanuary 2024

Residential RPS2 SQ2- Above Average
Master Servicer RMS1- SQ2+ Above Average
Special Servicer RSS2 SQ2- Above Average
Closed-end 2nd Lien Servicer RPS2 NN/A NN/A
Subpru ime Servicer RPS2 SQ2- Above Average
Rushmore Special Servicer RSS2 SQ3+ Above Average
(1) Fitch Rating Scale of 1 (Highest Perforff mance) to 5 (Low/No Proficff iency)
(2) Moody’s Rating Scale of SQ1 (Strong Ability/Stability) to SQ5 (WeakWW Ability/Stabia lity)
(3) S&P Rating Scale of Strong to Weak

The following tabla e sets fortht the results of operations for the Servicing segment:

Table 3. Servicing Segment Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change
Amt bps(1) Amt bps(1) Amt bps

Revenues
Operational $ 2,469 20 $ 1,917 22 $ 552 (2)
Amortization, net of accretion (886) (7) (563) (6) (323) (1)
Mark-to-market adjud stments - Servicing 81 1 25 — 56 1

Total revenues 1,664 14 1,379 16 285 (2)
Expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits 339 3 340 4 (1) (1)
General and administrative
Servicing suppou rt fees 111 1 91 1 20 —
Corporate and other general and administrative expenses 252 2 194 2 58 —
Foreclosure and other liquiq dation related expenses, net 4 — 27 1 (23) (1)
Depreciation and amortization 15 — 12 — 3 —

Total general and administrative expenses 382 3 324 4 58 (1)
Total expenses 721 6 664 8 57 (2)

Other income (expense)
Other interest income 705 6 491 6 214 —

Advance interest expense (61) (1) (55) (1) (6) —
MSR and other interest expense (350) (3) (269) (3) (81) —
Interest expense (411) (4) (324) (4) (87) —

Total other income, net 294 2 167 2 127 —
Income before income tax expense $ 1,237 10 $ 882 10 $ 355 —

Weighted average cost - advance and MSR facilities 7.9 % 7.9 % —— %
Weighted average cost - excess spread financing 8.7 % 8.7 % —— %
(1) Calculated basis points (“bps”) are as follows: Annual dollar amount/TotTT al average UPB X 10000.
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Table 4. Servicing - Revenues
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change
Amt bps(1) Amt bps(1) Amt bps

MSR Operational Revenue
Base servicing fees $ 1,933 16 $ 1,466 16 $ 467 —
Modification fees 27 — 19 — 8 —
Late payment fees 85 1 63 1 22 —
Other ancillary revenues 82 1 117 2 (35) (1)

Total MSR operational revenue 2,127 18 1,665 19 462 (1)
Subsu ervirr cing-related revenue 408 3 323 3 85 —

Total servicing fee revenue 2,535 21 1,988 22 547 (1)
MSR financing liabia lity costs (29) — (30) 1 1 (1)
Excess spread payments and portfolio runoff (37) (1) (41) (1) 4 —

Total operational revenue 2,469 20 1,917 22 552 (2)
Amortization, Net of Accretion

MSR amortization (923) (8) (604) (7) (319) (1)
Excess spread accretion 37 1 41 1 (4) —

Total amortization, net of accretion (886) (7) (563) (6) (323) (1)
Mark-to-Market Adjud stments - Servicing

MSR MTM 650 5 121 2 529 3
Loss on MSR hedging activities (517) (4) (68) (1) (449) (3)
(Loss) gain on MSR and excess yield sales (9) — 23 — (32) —
Reclassifications to reserve provision(2) (25) — (33) (1) 8 1
Excess spread / financing MTM (18) — (18) — — —

Total MTM adjud stments - Servicing 81 1 25 — 56 1
Total revenues - Servicing $ 1,664 14 $ 1,379 16 $ 285 (2)
(1) Calculated basis points (“bps”) are as follows: Annual dollar amount/TotTT al average UPB X 10000.
(2) Reclassifications to reserve provision include the impamm ct of negative modeled cash flows which have been transferff rerr d to reserves on advances and other

receivabla es. The negative modeled cash flows relate to advances and other receivabla es associated with inactive and liquidated loans that are no longer part
of the MSR portfolff io.

Servicingg Seggment Revenues
The following provides the changes in revenues for the Servicing segment:

Servicingn - Operational revenue and MSR amortization increased during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 compared
to 2023, primarily due to a larger average MSR UPB portfolff io driven by the servicing portfolff io growth in 2024.

The increase in MSR MTM during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 compared to 2023, was primarily due to a
greater impam ct from the increase in mortgage rates during 2024 compared to 2023. The MSR MTM changes were
partially offsff et by MSR hedging activities during the respective periods.

Subservicing - Subsu ervicing fees increased during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 as compared to 2023, primarily
driven by a larger average subsu ervirr cing portfolio due to boarding of a large new subsu ervirr cing client in the first quarter
of 2024 and subsu ervirr cing portfolio obtained from the asset acquisition in the fourth quarter of 2024.

Servicing Segment Expenses
Total expenses increased during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 as compared to 2023, primarily driven by an increase in
corporate and other general and administrative expenses, and servicing suppu ort fees, partially offsff et by a decrease in foreclosure
and othet r liquidation related expenses, net. The increase in corporate and other general and administrative expenses was due to
higher corporate allocations to the Servicing segment driven by the full year impam ct of increased headcount in 2024 attributable
to an asset acquisition in the second quarter of 2023. The increase in servicing supporu t fees was primarily due to a larger
average servicing portfolio in 2024. Foreclosure and other liquidation related expenses, net, decreased primarily due to higher
recoveries in 2024, as compared to 2023.



Mr.rr Cooper Group Inc. - 2024Annunn al Report on Form 10-K 30

Servicing Segment Other Income (Expenses), net
Total other income, net increased during the year ended December 31, 2024 as compared to 2023, primarily attributable to
higher interest rates throughout 2024 and increased float income on custodial deposits as a result of growth in the MSR
portfolio, partially offsff et by higher interest expense from advance and MSR financing.

Table 5. Servicing Portfolio - Unpaid Principal Balances

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023

Average UPB
MSRs 660,764 $ 476,442
Subsu ervirr cing and othet r(1) 6,775 416,153

Total average UPB $ 1,217,539 $ 892,595

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
UPB Fair Value bps UPB Fair Value bps

MSRs
Agency $ 710,997 $ 11,397 160 $ 561,656 $ 8,774 156
Non-agency 25,074 339 135 26,286 316 120

Total MSRs 736,071 11,736 159 587,942 9,090 155

ervicing and other(1)

Agency 751,380 N/A 355,915 N/A
Non-agency 68,585 N/A 47,863 N/A

Total subsu ervirr cing and
other 819,965 N/A 403,778 N/A

Total ending balance $ 1,556,036 $ 11,736 $ 991,720 $ 9,090

MSRs UPB Encumbrance December 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

MSRs - unencumbered $ 669,432 $ 513,672
MSRs - encumbered(2) ,639 74,270

Total MSRs UPB $ 736,071 $ 587,942
(1) Subservicing and other includes (i) loans we service for others, (ii) residential mortgage loans originated but have yet to be sold, and (iii) agency REO

balances for which we own the mortgage servicing rights.
(2) Encumbered MSRs consist of residential mortgage loans included within our excess spread financing transactions and MSR financing liability.
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The following tabla e provides a rollforff ward of our MSR and subsu ervicing and othet r portfolio UPB:

Table 6. Servicing and Subservicing and Other Portfolio UPB Rollforward

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023

MSR
Subservicing
and Other Total MSR

Subservicing
and Other Total

Balance - beginning of year $ 587,942 $ 403,778 $ 991,720 $ 411,382 $ 459,053 $ 870,435
Additions:
Originations 22,704 — 22,704 12,624 — 12,624

Acquisitions / Increase in
subsu ervicing(1) 213,965 516,072 730,037 229,910 97,372 327,282

Deductions:

Dispositions/ Decrease in
subsu ervicing(2) (26,739) (50,977) (77,716) (25,239) (124,621) (149,860)
Principal reductions and other (24,754) (14,190) (38,944) (18,279) (11,849) (30,128)
Voluntary reductions(3) (35,582) (33,938) (69,520) (20,936) (15,400) (36,336)
Involuntary reductions(4) (1,302) (780) (2,082) (1,392) (777) (2,169)
Net changes in loans serviced
by othet rs (163) — (163) (128) — (128)

Balance - end of year $ 736,071 $ 819,965 $ 1,556,036 $ 587,942 $ 403,778 $ 991,720
(1) Amount for Subservicing and Other UPB includes transferff s from MSR for MSRs sold with subservicing rights retained.
(2) Amount for MSR UPB includes transferff s to Subservicing and Other for MSRs sold with subservicing rights retained.
(3) Voluntaryrr reductions are related to loan payoffsff by customers.
(4) Involuntaryrr reductions refer to loan defaults, loan liquidations and loan chargeoffsff .

The tabla e below summarizes the overall perforff mance of the servicing and subservicing portfolio:

Table 7. Key Perforff mance Metrics - Servicing and Subservicing Portfolio

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Loan count 6,698,691 4,559,578
Average loan amount(1) $ 232,007 $ 217,269
Average coupon - agency 4.3 % 3.9 %
Average coupon - non-agency 4.9 % 4.9 %
60+ delinquent (% of loans)(2) 1.6 % 1.9 %
90+ delinquent (% of loans)(2) 1.2 % 1.6 %
120+ delinquent (% of loans)(2) 1.0 % 1.4 %

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023

Total prepayment speed (12-month constant prepayment rate) 6.3 % 4.7 %
(1) Average loan amount is presented in whole dollar amounts.
(2) Loan delinquency is based on the current contractual due date of the loan. In the case of a completed loan modification, delinquency is based on the

modified due date of the loan. Loan delinquency includes loans in forbearance.

Delinquency is an assumption in determining the mark-to-market adjud stment and is a key indicator of MSR portfolio
performance. Delinquent loans contribute to lower MSR values due to higher costs to service and increased carrying costs of
advances.
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Table 8. MSRs Loan Modifications andWorkout Units

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change

Modifications(1) 29,511 22,850 6,661
Workouts(2) 64,310 48,766 15,544
Total modification and workout units 93,821 71,616 22,205

(1) Modifications consist of Agency/inyy vestor programs designed to adjud st the terms of the loan (e.g., interest rates, maturity date).
(2) Workouts consist of other loss mitigation options designed to assist customers and keep them in their homes, but do not adjud st the terms of the loan.

Modifications and workouts increased during the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to 2023, primarily due to growth in
our servicing portfolio and the continued expansion of loss mitigation programs offeff red by FNMA, FHLMC, FHA, and VA
which increased customer eligibility and resulted in an increase in successfulff modifications and workouts.

Servicing Portfolio and Liabilities

The following tabla e sets fortht the activities of MSRs:

Table 9. MSRs - Fair Value Rollforff ward

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023

Fair value - beginning of year $ 9,090 $ 6,654
Additions:
Servicing retained from mortgage loans sold 460 273
Purchases and acquisitions of servicing rights 3,004 3,189

Dispositions:
Sales of servicing assets and excess yield (583) (573)

Changes in fair value:

Due to changes in valuation inputs or assumptions used in the valuation model
(MSR MTM):

Agency 614 118
Non-agency 36 3

Changes in valuation due to amortization:
Scheduled principal payments (365) (248)
Prepayments
Voluntary prepayments
Agency (526) (325)
Non-agency (13) (11)

Involuntary prepayments
Agency (19) (20)

Other changes(1) 38 30
Fair value - end of year $ 11,736 $ 9,090
(1) Amounts primarily represent negative fair values reclassified from the MSR asset to reserves as underlying loans are removed from the MSR and other

reclassification adjud stments.

See Note 4, Mortgagt e Servicing Righi ts and Related Liabilities and Note 17,7 Fair Value Measuremrr ents, in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, for additional information regarding the range of assumptions and sensitivities related to the
fair value measurement of MSRs as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023.

Excess Spread Financing

As further disclosed in Note 4, Mortgat ge Servicing Righti stt and Related Liabilities, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, we have entered into sale and assignment agreements treated as financing arrangements whereby the acquirer has
the right to receive a specified percentage of the excess cash flow generated from an MSR.
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The servicing fees associated with an MSR can be segregated into (i) a base servicing fee and (ii) an excess servicing fee. The
base servicing fee, along with ancillary income and other revenues, is designed to cover costs incurred to service the specified
pool plus a reasonable margin. The remaining servicing fee is considered excess. We sell a percentage of the excess fee, as a
method for effiff ciently financing acquiq red MSRs and the purchase of loans, however we have not done so in recent years due to
the availabia lity of lower cost sources of funding.

Excess spread financings are recorded at fair value, and the impamm ct of fair value adjud stments on future revenues and capital
resources varies primarily due to prepayment speeds and option-adjud sted spread levels. See Note 4, Mortgat ge Servicing Righi ts
and Related Liabilities and Note 17,7 Fair Value Measuremrr ents, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for
additional information regarding the range of assumptions and sensitivities related to the measurement of the excess spread
financing liabia lity as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023.

The following tabla e sets fortht the change in the excess spread financing:

Table 10. Excess Spread Financing - Rollforward

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023

Fair value - beginning of year $ 437 $ 509
Additions:
New financings — —

Deductions:
Repayments (2) (9)
Settlements (64) (71)

Changes in fair value:

Agency 10 5
Non-Agency 5 3

Fair value - end of year $ 386 $ 437

Originations Segment
The stratt tegy of our Originations segment is to originate or acquire new loans and ultimately add MSRs for the servicing
portfolio at a more attractive cost than purchasing MSRs in bulk transactions and to retain or recapture our existing customers
by providing them with attractive refinance and purchase options. The Originations segment plays a strat tegically imporm tant role
because its profitaff bia lity is typiyy cally counter cyclical to that of the Servicing segment. Furthermore, by originating loans or
acquiring MSRs at a more attractive cost than bulk MSR acquisitions, the Originations segment imprm oves our overall
profitaff bia lity and cash flow.

Our Originations segment is one way that we help underserved consumers access the financial markaa ets. In 2024, our total
originations included loans for 14,000 customers with low FICOs (<660), 15,000 customers with income below the U.S.
median household income, 27,400 first-time homebuyers, and 5,700 veterans. The originations during this period included
24,800 Ginnie Mae loans, which are designed for first-time homebuyers, low- and moderate-income customers, and veterans,
comprising $7.7 billion in total proceeds. Once these loans are originated, the underserverr d consumers become our servicing
customers.

The Originations segment includes two channels:

• Our direct-to-consumer (“DTC”) lending channel relies on our call centers, website and mobile apps, specially trained
teams of licensed mortgage originators, predictive analytics and modeling utilizing proprietaryrr data from our servicing
portfolio to reach our existing customers who may benefit from a new mortgage. Depending on customer eligibility,yy
we will refinance existing loans into conventional, government or non-agency producd ts. Through lead campaigns and
direct marketing, the direct-to-consumer channel seeks to convert leads into loans and ultimately MSRs in a cost-
effiff cient manner.

• Our correspondent lending channel facilitates the acquisition of MSRs through purchasing newly originated residential
mortgage loans that have been underwritten to investor guidelines. This includes both conventional and government-
insured loans that qualifyff for inclusion in securitizations that are guaranteed by the GSEs. Our correspondent lending
channel enables us to replenish servicing portfolio run-offff typically at a better rate of return than traditional bulk
acquisitions.
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The following tabla e sets fortht the results of operations for the Originations segment:

Table 11. Originations Segment Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change

Revenues
Service related, net - Originations(1) $ 86 $ 61 $ 25
Net gain on mortgage loans held for sale
Net (loss) gain on loans originated and sold(2) (43) 16 (59)
Capia talized servicing rights(3) 441 255 186

Total net gain on mortgage loans held for sale 398 271 127
Total revenues 484 332 152

Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 178 143 35
General and administrative
Loan origination expenses 46 30 16
Corporate and other general and administrative expenses 42 33 9
Marketing and profesff sional service fees 36 18 18
Depreciation and amortization 2 8 (6)

Total general and administrative 126 89 37
Total expenses 304 232 72

Other income (expenses)
Interest income 84 36 48
Interest expense (79) (37) (42)

Total other income (expenses), net 5 (1) 6
Income before income tax expense $ 185 $ 99 $ 86

Weighted average note rate - mortgage loans held for sale 7.6 % 6.8 % 0.8 %

Weighted average cost of funds - warehouse facilities (excluding
facility fees) 6.7 % 6.7 % —— %

(1) Service related, net - Originations refers to fees collected from customers for originated loans and from other lenders for loans purchased through the
correspondent channel, and includes loan application, underwriting, and other similar fees.

(2) Net gain on loans originated and sold (excluding capia talized servicing rights) represents the unrealized and realized gains and losses from the origination,
purchase, and sale of loans as well as the gains and losses from related derivative instruments. Gains from the origination and sale of loans are affeff cted by
the volume and margin of our originations activity which can vary based upon mortgage interest rates.

(3) Capitalized servicing rights represent the fair value attributed to mortgage servicing rights at the time in which they are sold servicing-retained in
connection with the sale of loans during the period.
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Table 12. Originations - Key Metrics

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change

Key Metrics
DTC locked PTATT volume(1) $ 7,746 $ 5,704 $ 2,042
Correspondent locked PTATT volume(1) 16,294 7,060 9,234
Total PTATT lock volume $ 24,040 $ 12,764 $ 11,276

DTC funded volume $ 7,866 $ 5,940 $ 1,926
Correspondent funded volume 14,931 6,694 8,237
Total funded volume(2) $ 22,797 $ 12,634 $ 10,163

DTC volume of loans sold $ 7,574 $ 5,850 $ 1,724
Correspondent volume of loans sold 13,898 6,657 7,241
Total volume of Originations loans sold $ 21,472 $ 12,507 $ 8,965

Recapture percentage(3) 21.9 % 24.0 % (2.1) %
Refinance recapta urt e percentage(4) 50.8 % 77.1 % (26.3) %
Purchase as a percentage of funded volume 64.4 % 57.2 % 7.2 %
Value of capia talized servicing on retained settlements 217 bps 219 bps (2) bps

Originations Margin
Revenue $ 484 $ 332 $ 152
PTATT lock volume $ 24,040 $ 12,764 $ 11,276
Revenue as a percentage of PTATT lock volume(5) 2.01 % 2.60 % (0.59) %

Expenses(6) $ 299 $ 233 $ 66
Funded volume $ 22,797 $ 12,634 $ 10,163
Expenses as a percentage of funded volume(7) 1.31 % 1.84 % (0.53) %

Originations Margin 0.70 % 0.76 % (0.06) %
(1) Pull through adjud sted (“PTA”TT ) volume represents the expected funding from locks taken during the period.
(2) Funded volume for the period could include pull through adjud sted lock volume from prior periods.
(3) Recapture percentage includes new loan originations from both purchase and refinance transactions where customer retention and/or property retention

occurs as a result of a loan payoff from our servicing portfolio. Excludes loans we are contractually unable to solicit.
(4) Refinance recapture percentage includes new loan originations from refinance transactions where customer retention and property retention occurs as a

result of a loan payoffff from our servicing portfolff io. Excludes loans we are contractually unabla e to solicit.
(5) Calculated on pull-through adjud sted lock volume as revenue is recognized at the time of loan lock.
(6) Expenses include total expense and total other income (expenses), net.
(7) Calculated on funded volume as expenses are incurred based on closing of the loan.

Originations Segment Revenues
Total revenues increased for the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024, as compared to 2023, primarily driven by significant increases
in pull-through adjud sted lock volumes, funded volumes, and volumes of originations loans sold in both DTC and correspondent
channels as a result of declining interest rates in 2024.

Originations Segment Expenses
Total expenses increased for the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024, as compared to 2023, primarily due to an increase in salaries,
wages and benefits expense, and marketing and profesff sional service fees. The increase in salaries, wages and benefits expense
in 2024 was primarily driven by variable compensation attributable to higher originations funding volume. Marketing and
profesff sional service fees increased in 2024 primarily due to an increase in marketing costs driven by growth in the portfolff io.
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Originations Segment Other Income (Expenses), Net
Interest income relates primarily to mortgage loans held for sale. Interest expense is associated with the warehouse facilities
utilized to finance newly originated loans. There were no material changes in total other income (expenses), net, during the year
ended Decembem r 31, 2024, as compared to 2023, as interest income and interest expense increased commensurately and largely
offsff et.

Originations Margin
The Originations Margin for the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 decreased as compared to 2023, primarily due to lower revenue
as a percentage of pull through adjud sted lock volume driven by a shiftff in channel mix from higher margin direct-to-consumer to
lower margin correspondent. Direct-to-consumer channel mix was 32% and 45% for the years ended December 31, 2024, and
2023, respectively.

Corporate/Other
Corporate/Other includes the results of Xome’s and Roosevelt Management Company’s operations, the Company’s unallocated
overhead expenses (which include the costs of executive management and other corporate functions that are not directly
attributable to our operating segments), changes in equity investments and interest expense on our unsecured senior notes. In
addition, Corporate/Othet r includes eliminations related to intersegment hedge fair value changes.

The following tabla es set fortht the selected financial results for Corporate/Other:

Table 13. Corporate/Other Selected Financial Results

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change

Corporate/Other - Operations
Total revenues $ 77 $ 83 $ (6)
Total expenses 294 276 18
Interest income 1 1 —
Interest expense 286 176 110
Other (expense) income, net (19) 41 (60)

Key Metrics
Average exchange inventoryrr under management 26,536 27,120 (584)

Total revenues decreased slightly during the year ended December 31, 2024 as compared to 2023, primarily due to a decline in
Xome revenues as the average exchange volume decreased in 2024.

Total expenses increased during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 as compared to 2023, primarily due to an increase in
salaries, wages and benefitff s associated with increased headcount driven by a business acquisition completed in the third quarter
of 2023, higher executive compensation, and an increase in operating expenses related to Roosevelt and Xome exchange in
2024.

Interest expense increased during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 as compared to 2023, due to the issuance of the unsecured
senior notes in Februar ry and August of 2024 and the unsecured senior note assumed from a business acquisition completed in
the third quarter of 2023. For furthet r discussion, please refer to Note 12, Indebtednedd ss,ee in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The change in other (expense) income, net during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 as compared to 2023 was primarily due to
a gain recorded in 2023 in connection with an acquisition.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We measure liquidity by unrestricted cash and availabia lity of borrowings on our advance, warehouse and MSR facilities. We
held cash and cash equiq valents on hand of $753 as of December 31, 2024 compared to $571 as of Decembem r 31, 2023. During
the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024, we bought back 1.8 million shares of our outstanding common stock for a total cost of
$147, excluding excise tax, as part of our stock repurchase program. We have sufficff ient borrowing capaa city to suppu ort our
operations. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, total borrowing capaa city for advance, warehouse, and MSR facilities was $14,251, of
which $2,646 was collateralized and immediately availabla e to draw. During the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024, we increased
capaa city on our MSR facilities by $1,750. On Februarr ry 1, 2024, we completed an offeff ring of $1,000 7.125% unsecured senior
notes due 2032, and on August 1, 2024, we completed an offeff ring of $750 6.500% unsecured senior notes due 2029. We repaid
a portion of the amounts outstanding on our MSR facilities with the net proceeds of the offeff rings. For more information on our
advance, warehouse, and MSR facilities, see Note 12, Indebtednedd ss, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within
Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data.

Sourcesee and Uses of Cash
Our primaryr sources of funds for liquiq dity include: (i) servicing fees and ancillary revenues; (ii) advance, warehouse and MSR
facilities, other secured borrowings and unsecured senior notes; (iii) payments received in connection with the sale of excess
spread.

Our primaryr uses of funds for liquidity include: (i) funding of servicing advances; (ii) originations of loans; (iii) payment of
interest expenses; (iv) payment of operating expenses; (v) repayment of borrowings and repurchases or redemptions of
outstanding indebtedness; (vi) payments for acquisitions of MSRs; (vii) payment of our technology expenses.

We believe that our cash flows from operating activities, as well as capacity through existing facilities, provide adequate
resources to fund our anticipated ongoing cash requirements. We rely on these facilities to fund operating activities. As the
facilities mature, we anticipate renewal of these facilities will be achieved. Future debt maturities will be funded with cash and
cash equivalents, cash flow from operating activities and, if necessary,yy future access to capia tal markets. We continue to optimize
the use of balance sheet cash to avoid unnecessary interest carrying costs.

In addition, derivative instrut ments are used as part of the overall strategy to manage exposure to market risks primarily
associated with fluctuations in interest rates related to originations and servicing. As part of the Company’s economic hedging
strategy,yy the Company hedges interest rate risk related to the pipeline in Originations (comprm ised of IRLCs and newly
originated mortgage loans held for sale) and MSR portfolff io in Servicing primarily using third-party derivative instruments. See
Note 11, Derivative Financial Instrutt mentstt , in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial
Statements and Suppu lementaryrr Data, for a summary of our derivative transactions.

In the normal course of business, we enter into various typey s of on- and off-bff alance sheet transactions with special purposrr e
entities (“SPEs”) determined to be variable interest entities (“VIEs”), which primarily consist of securitization trusrr ts establa ishedd
for a limited purporr se. Generally,yy these SPEs are formed for the purpose of securitization transactions in which we transferff
assets to an SPE, which then issues to investors various forms of debt obligations supported by those assets. In these
securitization transactions, we typically receive cash and/or other interests in the SPE as proceeds for the transferff rerr d assets. See
Note 13, Securitizations and Financings, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Statements
and Suppu lementaryr Data, for a summaryr of our transactions with VIEs and unconsolidated balances, and details of their impamm ct
on our consolidated financial statements.

Cash Flowll s
The tabla e below presents cash flows information:

Table 14. Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change

NNet cash attributable to:
Operating activities $ (724) $ 896 $ (1,620)
Investing activities (2,697) (1,836) (861)
Financing activities 3,654 978 2,676

NNet increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 233 $ 38 $ 195
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Operating activities
Our operating activities used cash of $724 during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 compared to generated cash of $896 in
2023. The change was primarily due to a decrease in cash generated of $855 from originations net sales activities driven by
lower margins and an increase of $436 in cash used for the repurchase of loan assets out of Ginnie Mae securitizations.

Investing activities
Cash used in investing activities increased to $2,697 during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 from $1,836 in 2023. Total cash
of $1,311 was used in 2024 for the acquisition of certain mortgage operation assets of Flagstar in 2024, compared to total cash
of $522 used in 2023 for business acquiq sitions.

Financing activities
Cash generated in financing activities increased to $3,654 during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 from $978 in 2023. The
increase was primarily due to cash generated of $1,750 from the issuance of the 2032 and 2029 unsecured senior notes in 2024
and increased net borrowing of $822 from advance, warehouse and MSR facilities.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitall tive Discii losures about Market Riskii

Market Risk
Our principal market exposure is to interest rate risk due to the impam ct on our mortgage-related assets and commitments.

Interest Rate Riskii
Changes in interest rates negatively affeff ct our operations primarily as follows:

Servicing Segme ent

• a decrease in mortgage rates may increase prepayment speeds which may impam ct earnings through (i) increased
amortization expense; (ii) decrease in servicing fees; and (iii) decrease in the fair value of our MSRs;

• a decrease in interest rates could reduce float earnings from our custodial deposit accounts;
• an increase in interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our outstanding debt, including our ability to finance

servicing advances and to finance acquisitions;
• an increase in interest rates would increase monthly payments for adjud stable mortgage loan’s due to corresponding

upward adjud stment to respective loan interest rate, and may increase delinquency, defaula t, and foreclosure. Increased
mortgage defaula ts and foreclosures may adversely affeff ct our business as they increase our expenses and reduce the
number of mortgages we service;

• an increase in interest rates could also adversely affeff ct our redelivery margins on EBO loans and consequeq ntly reduce
the volume of EBO repurchases.

Originations Segme ent

• an increase in interest rates could adversely affeff ct our loan originations volume because refinancing an existing loan
would be less attractive for homeowners and qualifyiff ng for a purchase money loan may be more difficff ult for
consumers;

• an increase in interest rates could also adversely affeff ct our production margins due to increased competition among
originators;

Our Investment Committee, an executive management committee, establa ishes and maintains policies that govern our risk
appetite and associated hedging programs. Factors considered by the Investment Committee include such factors as market
volatility,yy duration and interest rate sensitivity measures, limits, targeted hedge ratios, the typey of hedge instruments used in our
hedging activities and our liquidity risk profileff . Management actively manages interest rate exposure associated with the MSR
portfolio and the pipeline through the usage of hedge instruments in accordance with the Investment Committee policies, which
specify that the MSR portfolio and the pipeline should be hedged separately. Hedge instruments permitted by our aggregate
hedge strategy include highly liquid market instruments such as Forward MBS trades, Swap futures, and Treasury futures. See
Note 11, Derivative Financial Instrutt mentstt in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial
Statements and Suppu lementaryrr Data, for additional information regarding our use of derivatives.

MSRSS Hedgingn Stratt tegye
MSRs are measured at fair value with changes in fair value being recorded in earnirr ngs in the period in which the changes occur.
The MSR hedge strategy is focused on mitigating interest-rate risk associated with the MSR portfolio excluding PLS MSRs
(referred to herein as “MSR portfolff io exposure”).

Our MSR hedge strategy’s objeb ctive is to provide partial hedge coverage of our MSR portfolio exposure, considering market
and liquidity conditions. The hedge coverage ratio defined as the ratio of hedge and asset rate sensitivity (referred to as DV01)
is targeted at 75% of the MSR portfolio modeled interest rate risk, subject to change at the discretion of the Investment
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Committee. Accordingly, the changes in fair value of our hedging instruments may not fully offsff et the changes in fair value of
our net MSR portfolio exposure attributable to interest rate changes. We periodically evaluate the coverage ratio to determine if
it warrants adjud stment based on market conditions and the symmetry of interest rate risk exposure and liquidity impam cts of the
hedge and asset profilff e under shock scenarios. In addition, while DV01 measures remain within the range of our hedging
strategy’s objeb ctive, actuat l changes in fair value of the derivatives and MSR portfolff io may not offsff et to the same extent, due to
non-parallel changes in the interest rate curve and the basis risk inherent in the MSR profilff e and hedging instruments. We
continuously evaluate the use of hedging instruments to strive to enhance the effeff ctiveness of our interest rate hedging strategy.

The changes in value on the derivative instruments associated with the MSR hedging strategy are recorded in earnir ngs as a
component of “revenues - service related, net” on the consolidated statements of operations within the Servicing segment and in
“loss (gain) on MSR hedging activities” on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Pipeii line Hedgingii Stratt tegye - Loans Held For Sale and IRLCRR sCC
We are exposed to interest rate risk and related price risk during the period from the date of the interest rate lock commitment
through (i) the lock commitment cancellation or expiration date or (ii) through the date of sale of the resulting loan into the
secondary mortgage market for both the Originations segment for newly originated mortgage loans and the Servicing segment
related to repurchased EBO mortgage loans held for sale. IRLCs generally range to 90 days and mortgage loans held for sale
are generally funded and sold within 30 days. The objeb ctive of the pipeline hedging strategy is to economically hedge the entire
pipeline interest rate exposure of both IRLCs and mortgage loans held for sale within certain hedge coverage tolerance levels.
The net daily market risk position of net pull-though adjud sted IRLCs and mortgage loans held for sale is monitored daily and its
tolerance is +/- 10% of the estimated base value risk.

The changes in value on the derivative instruments associated with the pipeline hedging strategy are recorded in earnir ngs as a
component of “revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” on the consolidated statements of operations and
consolidated statements of cash flows within the Originations and Servicing segments.

Sensitivity Analysll is
We assess our market risk based on changes in interest rates utilizing a sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity analysis measures
the potential impamm ct on fair values based on hypothetical changes (increases and decreases) in interest rates.

We use a duration-based model in determining the impamm ct of interest rate shiftsff on our loan portfolio, certain other interest-
bearing liabia lities measured at fair value and interest rate derivatives portfolios. The primary assumption used in these models is
that an increase or decrease in the benchmark interest rate produces a parallel shiftff in the yield curve across all maturities.

We utilize a discounted cash flow analysis to determine the fair value of MSRs and the impamm ct of parallel interest rate shiftsff on
MSRs. The discounted cash flow model incorporates prepayment speeds, OAS, costs to service, delinquencies, ancillary
revenues, recapta urt e rates and other assumptions that management believes are consistent with the assumptions that other similar
market participants use in valuing the MSRs. The key assumptions to determine fair value include prepayment speed, OAS and
cost to service. However, this analysis ignores the impam ct of interest rate changes on certain material variables, such as the
benefit or detriment on the value of future loan originations, non-parallel shiftsff in the spread relationships between MBS, swaps
and U.S. Treasuryrr rates and changes in primary and secondary mortgage market spreads. For mortgage loans, IRLCs, forward
delivery commitments on MBS and treasuryr futures, we rely on a model in determining the impam ct of interest rate shiftsff . In
addition, the primaryrr assumption used for IRLCs, is the customer’s propensity to close their mortgage loans under the
commitment.

Our total market risk is influenced by a wide variety of factors including market volatility and the liquidity of the markets.
There are certain limitations inherent in the sensitivity analysis presented, including the necessity to conducd t the analysis based
on a single point in time and the inability to include the complex market reactions that normally would arise from the market
shiftsff modeled.

We used Decembem r 31, 2024 market rates on our instruments to perform the sensitivity analysis. The estimates are based on the
market risk sensitive portfolios described in the preceding paragraphs and assume instantaneous, parallel shiftsff in interest rate
yield curves. These sensitivities are hypothetical and presented for illustrative purporr ses only. Changes in fair value based on
variations in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated becausa e the relationship of the change in fair value may not be
linear.

The following tabla e summarizes the estimated change in the fair value of our assets and liabia lities sensitive to interest rates as of
Decembem r 31, 2024 given hypothet tical instantaneous parallel shiftsff in the yield curve. Actual results could differff materially.
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Table 17. Change in Fair Value

December 31, 2024
Down 25 bps Up 25 bps

Increase (decrease) in assets
Mortgage servicing rights at fair value $ (200) $ 180
Mortgage loans held for sale at fair value 12 (12)
Derivative financial instruments:

Forward MBS trades (22) 25
Interest rate lock commitments 5 (5)
Total change in assets (205) 188

Increase (decrease) in liabia lities
Mortgage servicing rights liabia lities at fair value (2) 2
Excess spread financing at fair value (2) 2
Derivative financial instruments:

Treasury futures (83) 81
Forward MBS trades (67) 70
Interest rate lock commitments (7) 8

Total change in liabia lities (161) 163
Total net change $ (44) $ 25

Capital Resources

Capia taii l Strutt cture and Debt

We require access to external financing resources from time to time depending on our cash requirements, assessments of current
and anticipated market conditions and afteff r-tax cost of capital. If needed, we believe additional capital could be raised through a
combination of issuances of equity,yy corporate indebtedness, asset-backed acquisition financing and/or cash from operations.
Our access to capia tal markets can be impamm cted by factors outside our control, including economic conditions.

Financial Covenants
Our credit facilities contain various financial covenants which primarily relate to required tangible net wortht amounts, liquidity
reserves, leverage requirements, and profitaff bia lity requirements, which are measured at our operating subsu idiary,yy Nationstar
Mortgage, LLC, as well as Cypress Loan Servicing LLC. As of December 31, 2024, we were in compliance with our required
financial covenants.

Seller/Se// rvicer Financial Requiremrr ents
We are also subju ect to net worth, liquidity and capital ratio requirements establa ished by the Federal Housing Finance Agency
(“FHFA”) for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac (“Enterprises”) Seller/Servicers, and Ginnie Mae for single family issuers, as
summarized below. These requirements apply to our operating subsu idiary,yy Nationstar Mortgage, LLC, and Cypry ess Loan
Servicing LLC.

Minimum Net Worthtt
• FHFA - a net worth base of $2.5 plus a dollar amount equal to or exceeding the sum of (i) 25 basis points of the

sellers/servicer’s residential first lien mortgage servicing UPB, serviced for the Enterprises, plus (ii) 25 basis points of
non-agency serviced UPB, plus (iii) 35 basis points of the sellers/servicer’s residential first lien mortgage servicing
UPB serviced for Ginnie Mae.

• Ginnie Mae - a net worth equaq l to the sum of $2.5, plus (i) 35 basis points of the issuer’s total effeff ctive Ginnie Mae
single-family outstanding obligations, plus (ii) 25 basis points of the issuer’s total Enterprises single family
outstanding servicing portfolff io balance, plus (iii) 25 basis points of the issuer’s total non-agency single family
servicing portfolio.

Minimum Liquidity
• FHFA - a base Liquidity of eligible assets equal to or exceeding:

◦ 7 basis points of sellers/servicer’s residential first lien mortgage servicing UPB serviced for the Enterprises, if
the seller/servicer remits (or an Enterprise draws) interest or principal, or both,t as scheduled, regardless of
whethet r principal or interest has been collected from the customer, plus
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◦ 3.5 basis points of the sellers/servicer’s residential first lien mortgage servicing UPB serviced for the
Enterprises, if the seller/servicer remits (or an Enterprise draws) the interest and principal only as actuat lly
collected from the customer, plus

◦ 3.5 basis points of the seller/sr ervicer’s non-agency servicing UPB, plus
◦ 10 basis points of the seller/srr ervicer’s residential first lien mortgage servicing UPB serviced for Ginnie Mae.
◦ In addition, an origination liquidity equaq l to or exceeding 50 basis points of the sum of the following:

i. Residential first lien mortgages held for sale, at lower of cost or market
ii. Residential first lien mortgages held for sale, at fair value, plus
iii. UPB of interest rate lock commitments afteff r fallout adjud stments

◦ Supplu emental liquidity at all time equal to or exceeding the sum of:ff
i. 2 basis points of the sellers/servicer’s residential mortgage servicing UPB serviced for the

Enterprises, plus
ii. 5 basis points of the sellers/servicer’s residential mortgage servicing UPB serviced for Ginnie Mae

• Ginnie Mae – the greater of $1 or the sum of:ff
◦ 10 basis points of the issuer’s outstanding Ginnie Mae single-famff ily servicing UPB, plus
◦ 3.5 basis points of the issuer’s outstanding Enterprises single family servicing UPB, if the issuer remits (or

the Enterprise draws) the principal and interest only as actuat lly collected from the customer, plus
◦ 7 basis points of the Issuer’s outstanding Enterprises single-famff ily servicing UPB, if the issuer remits (or the

Enterprise draws) the principal or interest, or both,t as scheduled, regardless of whethet r principal or interest
has been collected from the customer, plus

◦ 3.5 basis points of the issuer’s outstanding non-agency single-famff ily servicing UPB.
• Ginnie Mae - issuers that originated more than $1 billion in UPB of any residential first mortgage in the recent four-

quarter period must have liquiq d assets equal to the greater of at least $1 or the sum of the points listed immediately
above, plus:

◦ 50 basis points of loans held for sale, plus
◦ 50 basis points of the issuer’s UPB of IRLCs afteff r fallout adjud stments

Financial Repoe rting Requiremrr ents
• FHFA – must obtain an assessment of the seller/servicer’s performance and creditworthiness by a qualifieff d,

independent third party on an annual basis and meet the following criteria:

◦ One primaryrr servicer rating or master servicer rating, as applicable for large non-depository institutions that
have greater than or equal to $50 billion in servicing UPB, and

◦ One primaryrr servicer rating or master servicer rating, as applicable, and one third party long-term senior
unsecured debt rating or long-term corporate family rating, for large non-depository institutions that have
greater than $100 billion in servicing UPB, and

◦ One primaryrr servicer rating or master servicer rating, as applicable, and issued by two rating agencies, each
of which must issue either a third party long-term unsecured debt rating or long-term corporate family rating
for large non-depository institutions that have greater than or equaq l to $150 billion in servicing UPB.

Minimum Capia tal Ratio
• FHFA and Ginnie Mae - a ratio of Tangible Net Worth to Total Assets greater than 6%.

Secured Debt to Grosrr s Tangible Asset Ratio
• Ginnie Mae - a secured debt to gross tangible asset ratios no greater than 60%.

Capia tal and Liquidity Plan
• FHFA - Require annual capia tal and liquidity plan that includes MSR stress tests as part of the plan.

Capia tal Requiremrr ents
• Ginnie Mae – a Risk-based Capia tal Ratio (“RBCR”) of at least 6%. RBCR is adjud sted net worth less excess MSRs

divided by total risked-based assets.

As of Decembem r 31, 2024, Nationstar Mortgage, LLC and Cypress Loan Servicing LLC were in compliance with our
seller/servicer financial requirements for FHFA and Ginnie Mae.

Since our Ginnie Mae single-family servicing portfolff io exceeds $75 billion in UPB, we are also required to obtain an external
primaryrr servicer rating and issuer credit ratings from two differff ent rating agencies and receive a minimum rating of a B or its
equivalent. We met this requirement for all financial periods presented.
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In addition, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac may require capital ratios in excess of stated requirements. Refer to Note 18, Capia tal
Requiremrr ents, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data,
for additional information.

Table 15. Debt

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Advance facilities principal amount $ 849 $ 682
Warehouse facilities principal amount 2,016 822
MSR facilities principal amount 3,650 2,814
Unsecured senior notes principal amount 4,950 3,200

Advadd nce Facilities
As part of our normal course of business, we borrow money to fund servicing advances. Our servicing agreements require that
we advance our own funds to meet contractuat l principal and interest payments for certain investors, and to pay taxes, insurance,
foreclosure costs and various other items that are required to preserverr the assets being serviced. Delinquency rates and
prepayment speeds affeff ct the size of servicing advance balances, and we exercise our ability to stop advancing principal and
interest where the pooling and servicing agreements permit, where the advance is deemed to be non-recoverabla e from future
proceeds. These servicing requirements affeff ct our liquidity. We rely upon several counterparr rties to provide us with financing
facilities to fund a portion of our servicing advances. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, we had a total borrowing capaaa city of $1,400, of
which we could borrow an additional $551. The maturity dates of our advance facilities range from July 2025 to October 2026.
As of Decembem r 31, 2024, we had $22 and $827 of borrowings outstanding under the advance facilities maturing in 2025 and
2026, respectively.

Warehouse Facilities
Loan origination activities generally require short-term liquidity in excess of amounts generated by our operations. The loans
we originate are financed through several warehouse lines on a short-term basis. We typiy cally hold the loans for approximately
30 days and then sell or place the loans in governmrr ent securitizations in order to repay the borrowings under the warehouse
lines. Our ability to fund current operations depends upon our ability to secure these typeyy s of short-term financings on
acceptabla e terms and to renew or replace the financings as they expire. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, we had a total borrowing
capacity of $5,851 for warehouse facilities, of which we could borror w an additional $3,835. The maturity dates for our
warehouse facilities range fromApril 2025 to Decembem r 2026. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, we had $1,773 and $243 of
borrowings outstanding under warehouse facilities maturing in 2025 and 2026, respectively.

MSRSS Facilities
Our MSR facilities provide financing for our servicing portfolio and investments. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, we had a total
borrowing capacity of $7,000 for MSR facilities, of which we could borrow an additional $3,350. The maturity dates for our
MSR facilities range from November 2025 to Septembem r 2026. As of December 31, 2024, we had $25 and $3,625 of
borrowings outstanding under MSR facilities maturing in 2025 and 2026, respectively.

Unsecured Senior Notes
From 2021 to 2024, we completed offeff rings of unsecured senior notes with maturity dates ranging from 2026 to 2032. In
connection with a business combination completed in the third quarter of 2023, we assumed an unsecured senior note with a
maturity date in 2026. In Februar ry and August 2024, we completed offeff rings of $1,000 and $750 unsecured senior notes due in
2032 and 2029, respectively. We pay interest semi-annually to the holders of these notes at interest rates ranging from 5.000%
to 7.125%. We are scheduled to pay a total of $1,542 of interest payments from these notes over the next eight years, of which
$296 is due within a year.
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As of Decembem r 31, 2024, the expected maturities of our unsecured senior notes based on contratt ctuat l maturities are presented
below:

Table 16. Contractual Maturities - Unsecured Senior Notes

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2025 $ —
2026 500
2027 600
2028 850
2029 750
Thereafter 2,250
Unsecured senior notes principal amount 4,950

Purchase discount and unamortized debt issuance costs (59)
Unsecured senior notes, net $ 4,891

Othett r contratt ctual obligations
Our operating lease obligations were primarily incurred for offiff ce space and equipment. The average lease terms are generally
for 1 to 8 years. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, the total future minimumm lease payments for our operating lease obligations were
$63, of which $16 is due within a year. For more information regarding lease obligations, see Note 8, Leases, in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Various elements of our accounting policies, by their nature, are inherently subju ect to estimation techniques, valuation
assumptions and other subjective assessments. In particular, we have identified the following policies that, due to the judgment,
estimates and assumptions inherent in those policies, are critical to an understanding of our consolidated financial statements.
These policies relate to fair value measurements, particularly those determined to be Level 3 as discussed in Note 17,7 Fair
Value Measuremrr ents, in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and valuation and realization of deferred tax assets. We
believe that the judgment, estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are
appropriate given the factuatt l circumstances at the time. However, given the sensitivity of our consolidated financial statements
to these critical accounting policies, the use of othet r judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in material differff ences
in our results of operations or financial condition. Fair value measurements considered to be Level 3 representing estimated
values based on significant unobservable inputn s include (i) the valuation of MSRs and (ii) the valuation of excess spread
financing.

MSRsSS at Fair Value
We generally retain the servicing rights for existing residential mortgage loans transferff red to a third party. We recognize MSRs
recorded on the balance sheet in such transferff s that meet the accounting requirements for sale treatment at fair value.
Additionally, we may acquire the rights to service residential mortgage loans from third parties. We have elected to measure all
MSRs at fair value subsequent to capia talization or acquisition, with all changes in fair value recorded within “revenues - service
related, net” in the consolidated statements of operations. We estimate the fair value of these MSRs using a discounted cash
flow model, which incorporates prepayment speeds, option adjud sted spread, costs to service, delinquencies, ancillary revenues,
recapture rates and othet r assumptions that management believes are consistent with the assumptions that other similar market
participants use in valuing the MSRs. The key assumptions to determine fair value include prepayment speeds, option adjud sted
spread (“OAS”), and cost to service. However, the discounted cash flow model is complex and uses asset-specific collateral
data and market inputs for interest and discount rates. In addition, the modeling requirements of MSRs are complex because of
the high number of variables that drive cash flows associated with MSRs. We obtain independent third-party valuations,
industry surveys and other availabla e market data quarterly to assess the reasonabla eness of the fair value calculated by the cash
flow model as well as the underlying assumptions used. For the impam ct of changes in estimates on MSRs at fair value, see Item
7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk and Note 4, Mortgat ge Servicing Righi ts and Related Liabilities,
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data.

Excess Spread Finaii ncingn
In conjunction with the acquisition of certain MSRs on various pools of residential mortgage loans (the “Portfolff ios”), we have
entered into sale and assignment agreements related to its right to servicing fees, under which we sell to third parties the right to
receive a portion of the excess cash flow generated from the Portfolios afteff r receipt of a fixed base servicing fee per loan. The
sale of these rights is accounted for as a secured borrowing under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 860. We
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measure these financing arrangements at fair value to accurately represent the future performance of the acquired MSRs and
related excess servicing financing, with all changes in fair value recorded as a charge or credit to “revenues - service related,
net” in the consolidated statements of operations. The fair value on excess spread financing is based on the present value of
future expected discounted cash flows. The cash flow assumptions used in the model are based on various factors, with the key
assumptions being mortgage prepayment speeds and option adjud sted spread. However, the discounted cash flow model is
complex and uses asset-specific collateral data and market inputs. In addition, our total market risk is influenced by a wide
variety of factors including market volatility and liquidity of the markets. We obtain an independent third-party valuation,
industry surveys and other availabla e market data quarterly to assess the reasonabla eness of the fair value calculated by the cash
flow model as well as the underlying assumptions used. For the impam ct of changes in estimates on excess spread financing, see
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Discii losures about Marketkk Riskii and Note 4, Mortgagt e Servicing Righti stt and Related
Liabilities, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Stattt ements and Suppu lementaryr Data.

Realizll atiott n of Defee rred Taxaa Assets
Our provision for income taxes is calculated using the balance sheet method, which requires the recognition of deferred income
taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeff ct of temporaryrr differff ences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabia lities for financial reporting purposr es and the amounts used for income tax purposes and certain changes in the valuation
allowance. We provide a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if,ff based on availabla e evidence, it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In determining the adequacy of the valuation
allowance, we consider all forms of evidence, including: (1) historic earnir ngs or losses; (2) anticipated taxabla e income resulting
from the reversal of taxabla e temporaryr differff ences; (3) tax planning strategies; and (4) anticipated future earnings exclusive of
the reversal of taxable temporary differff ences. Of all of the sources of taxabla e income, we generally rely upon reversals of
existing deferred tax liabia lities, tax planning strategies, and future taxable income excluding reversing differff ences. In
determining the appropriate amount of valuation allowance required, we consider (1) internal forecasts of our future pre-tax
income exclusive of reversing temporary differff ences and carryforwards, (2) the nature and timing of future reversals of existing
deferred tax assets and liabia lities, (3) future originating temporary and permanent differff ences, and (4) NOL carryforward
expiration dates, among othet rs.

Other Matters
Recent Accounting Developments

Below provides recently issued accounting pronouncements applicable to us but not yet effeff ctive.

Accounting Standards Update 2023-09, Income Taxesaa (TopiTT c 740): Imprm ovrr ements to Income Taxaa Discii losures (“ASU 2023-09”),
provides qualitative and quantitative updates to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid disclosures, among others, in order
to enhance the transparency of income tax disclosures, including consistent categories and greater disaggregation of
information for income taxes paid by jurisdiction. The amendments in ASU 2023-09 are effeff ctive for fiscal years beginning
afteff r Decembem r 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively; however,
retrospective application is also permitted. We are currently evaluating the impam ct this ASU may have on our financial
statement disclosures. The Company does not expect ASU 2023-09 to have a material impam ct on our consolidated financial
statements.

Accounting Standards Updated 2024-03, Income Stattt ement-Repoe rting Comprehensive Income-ExpEE ense Disaii ggregg gae tion
Discii losures (“ASU 2024-03”) requires a public entity to disclose, at each interim and annual reporting period, certain
disaggregated expenses included in each relevant expense caption, as well as the total amount of selling expenses and, in annual
periods, an entity’s definition of selling expenses. ASU 2024-03 is effeff ctive for annual reporting periods beginning afteff r
Decembem r 15, 2026, and interim periods within annual reporting periods beginning afteff r Decembem r 15, 2027, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating this ASU to determine its impamm ct on the Company’s disclosures.

For information on recent accounting guidance adopted in 2024, see Note 1, Nature of Business and Basisii of Presrr entation, in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppu lementaryr Data.
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GLOSSARYOFTERMS

This Glossary of Terms defines some of the terms that are used throughout this report and does not represent a complete list of
all defined terms used.

Advadd nce Facility.yy A secured financing facility to fund advance receivabla es which is backed by a pool of mortgage servicing
advance receivabla es made by a servicer to a certain pool of mortgage loans.

Agency.yy Government entities guaranteeing the mortgage investors that the principal amount of the loan will be repaid; the
Federal Housing Administration, the Department of Veterans Affaff irs, the US Department of Agriculturt e and Ginnie Mae (and
collectively, the “Ag“ encies”).

Agency Conforff mirr ng Loan. Amortgage loan that meets all requirements (loan typey , maximum amount, LTV ratio and credit
quality) for purchase by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or insured by the FHA, USDA or guaranteed by the VA or sold into Ginnie
Mae.

Asset-Backed Securities (“ABS“ ”). A financial security whose income payments and value is derived from and collateralized (or
“backed”) by a specified pool of underlying receivables or other financial assets.

Bulk acquisitions or purchases.MSR portfolio acquiq red on non-retained basis through an open market bidding process.

Base Servicing Fee. The servicing fee retained by the servicer, expressed in basis points, in an excess MSR arrar ngement in
exchange for the provision of servicing functions on a portfolio of mortgage loans, afteff r which the servicer and the co-
investment partner share the excess fees on a pro rata basis.

Client. Owner of the underlying mortgage servicing rights on behalf of whom we service loans.

Conventional Mortgat ge Loans. Amortgage loan that is not guaranteed or insured by the FHA, the VA or any other government
agency. Although a conventional loan is not insured or guaranteed by the government, it can still follow the guidelines of GSEs
and be sold to the GSEs.

Corresrr pos ndendd t lenderdd ,rr lending channel or relationship.i A correspondent lender is a lender that funds loans in their own name
and then sells them offff to larger mortgage lenders. A correspondent lender underwrites the loans to the standards of an investor
and provides the funds at close.

Customer. Residential mortgage borrower.

Delinquent Loan. Amortgage loan that is 30 or more days past due from its contractuatt l due date.

Depae rtmett nt of Veterans Affaff irsrr (“VA”). The VA is a cabia net-level department of the U.S. federal government, which
guarantees certain home loans for qualifieff d customers eligible for securitization with GNMA.

Direct-to-consumer originations (“DT“ C”TT ).” A typey of mortgage loan origination pursuant to which a lender markets refinancing
and purchase money mortgage loans directly to selected consumers through telephone call centers, the Internet or other means.

Excess Servicing Fees. In an excess MSR arrangement, the servicing fee cash flows on a portfolio of mortgage loans afteff r
payment of the base servicing fee.

Excess Sprearr d. MSRs with a co-investment partnet r where the servicer receives a base servicing fee and the servicer and co-
investment partner share the excess servicing fees. This co-investment strategy reduces the required upfront capia tal from the
servicer when purchasing or investing in MSRs.

Excess Yieldl . The remaining servicing fees above the minimum servicing fee (“GSE Base Servicing Fee”), as defined by the
agencies, whereby the rights to the excess fees are separated, securitized by the GSE’s and sold, while we retain the obligation
to service the loan and thereforff e continue to receive the GSE Base Servicing Fee.

Exchange inventory.r Consists of Xome’s real estate inventory ranging from pre-foreclosure to bank-owned properties.

Federal National Mortgat ge Association (“Fa“ nnie Mae” or “FNMFF A”MM ).” FNMAwas federally chartered by the U.S. Congress in
1938 to support liquidity,yy stability, and affoff rdability in the secondary mortgage market, where existing mortgage-related assets
are purchased and sold. Fannie Mae buys mortgage loans from lenders and resells them as mortgage-backed securities in the
secondary mortgage market.
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Federal Housing Admidd nistii ratt tion (“FH“ A”HH ).” The FHA is a U.S. federal government agency within the Department of Housing
and Urbar n Development (HUD). It provides mortgage insurance on loans made by FHA-approved lenders in compliance with
FHA guidelines throughout the United States.

Federal Housing Finance Agency (“FH“ FAHH ”). AU.S. federal government agency that is the regulator and conservarr tor of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac and the regulator of the 12 Federal Home Loan Banks.

Federal Home Loan Mortgat ge Corporation (“Fr“ edrr didd e Mac” or “FHLFF MC”). Freddie Mac was chartered by Congress in 1970
to stabilize the nation’s residential mortgage markets and expand opportunities for homeownership and affoff rdable rental
housing. Freddie Mac participates in the secondary mortgage market by purchasing mortgage loans and mortgage-related
securities for investment and by issuing guaranteed mortgage-related securities.

Float earnings. Interest earner d on balances in custodial accounts, which represent collections of principal and interest received
from customers on behalf of investors and tax and insurance payments.

Forbearance. An agreement between the mortgage servicer or lender and customer for a temporary postpott nement of mortgage
payments. It is a form of repayment relief granted by the lender or creditor in lieu of forcing a property into foreclosure.

Government National Mortgagt e Association (“Ginnie Mae” or “GNMGG A”MM ).” GNMA is a self-fiff nancing, wholly owned
U.S. Government corporation within HUD. Ginnie Mae guarantees the timely payment of principal and interest on MBS
backed by federally insured or guaranteed loans - mainly loans insured by the FHA or guaranteed by the VA. Ginnie Mae
securities are the only MBS to carry the full faith and credit guarantee of the U.S. federal government.

Government-SpoSS nsoredrr Enterpriseii (“GSE”SS ).” Certain entities establa ished by the U.S. Congress to provide liquiq dity,yy stability
and affoff rdability in residential housing. These agencies are Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and the 12 Federal Home Loan Banks.

Interest Rate Lock Commitments (“IR“ LCRR ”). Agreements under which the interest rate and the maximum amount of the
mortgage loan are set prior to funding the mortgage loan.

Investors. Our investors include agency investors and non-agency investors. Agency investors primarily consist of Government
National Mortgage Association (“Ginnie Mae” or “GNMA”) and the GSEs, Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie
Mae” or “FNMA”) and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (“Freddie Mac” or “FHLMC”). Non-agency investors consist of
investors in private-labea l securitizations.

Loan Modifici ation. Temporary or permanent modifications to loan terms with the customer, including the interest rate,
amortization period and term of the customer’s original mortgage loan. Loan modifications are usually made to loans that are in
default, or in imminent danger of defaulting.

Loan-to-Value Ratio (“LT“ V”).” The unpaid principal balance of a mortgage loan as a percentage of the total appraised or market
value of the property that secures the loan. An LTV over 100% indicates that the UPB of the mortgage loan exceeds the value of
the property.

Lock period.dd A set of periods of time that a lender will guarantee a specific rate is set prior to funding the mortgage loan.

Loss Mitigation. The range of servicing activities provided by a servicer in an attempt to minimize the losses sufferff ed by the
owner of a defaulted mortgage loan. Loss mitigation techniques include short-sales, deed-in-lieu of foreclosures and loan
modifications, among othet r options.

Mortgagt e-Backed Securities (“MB“ S”).” A typey of asset-backed security that is secured by a group of mortgage loans.

Mortgat ge Servicing Righti (“MS“ RsSS ”). The right and obligation to service a loan or pool of loans and to receive a servicing fee
as well as certain ancillary income. MSRs may be bought and sold, resulting in the transferff of loan servicing obligations. MSRs
are designated as such when the benefits of servicing the loans are expected to more than adequateaa ly compensate the servicer
for perforff ming the servicing.

MSRSS Facility.yy A line of credit backed by mortgage servicing rights that is used for financing purposes. In certain cases, these
lines may be a sub-limit of another warehouse facility or alternatively exist on a stand-alone basis. These facilities allow for
same or next day draws at the request of the customer.

Non-Conforff mirr ng Loan. Amortgage loan that does not meet the standards of eligibility for purchase or securitization by Fannie
Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae.
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Option adjudd sted spread (“OAS”).” The incremental spread added to the risk-freff e rate to reflect embem dded (prepayment)
optionality and other risk inherent in the MSRs or excess spread financing used to discount future cash flows for fair value
purposes.

Originations. The process through which a lender provides a mortgage loan to a customer.

Pull throughgg adjudd sted lock volume. Represents the expected funding from locks taken during the period.

Preprr ayment Speed.dd The rate at which voluntary mortgage prepayments occur or are projected to occur. The statistic is
calculated on an annualized basis and expressed as a percentage of the outstanding principal balance.

Primaryrr Servicer.rr The servicer that owns the right to service a mortgage loan or pool of mortgage loans. This differff s from a
subsu ervicer, which has a contratt ctuat l agreement with the primary servicer to service a mortgage loan or pool of mortgage loans
in exchange for a subsu ervicing fee based upon portfolff io volume and characteristics.

Prime Mortgaget Loan. Generally,yy a high-quality mortgage loan that meets the underwriting standards set by Fannie Mae or
Freddie Mac and is eligible for purchase or securitization in the secondaryrr mortgage market. Prime Mortgage loans generally
have lower default risk and are made to customers with excellent credit records and a monthly income at least three to four
times greater than their monthly housing expenses (mortgage payments plus taxes and othet r debt payments) as well as
significant other assets. Mortgages not classified as prime mortgage loans are generally called either sub-u prime or Alt-A.

Private Label Securitizations (“PL“ S”).” Securitizations that do not meet the criteria set by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie
Mae.

Real Estate Owned (”REO” ”). Property acquiq red by the servicer on behalf of the owner of a mortgage loan or pool of mortgage
loans, usually through foreclosure or a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure on a defaulted loan. The servicer or a third-party real estate
management firm is responsible for selling the REO. Net proceeds of the sale are returned to the owner of the related loan or
loans. In most cases, the sale of REO does not generate enough to pay offff the balance of the loan underlying the REO, causing a
loss to the owner of the related mortgage loan.

Recapta ure.rr Voluntarily prepaid loans that are expected to be refinanced by the related servicer.

Refine ancing. The process of working with existing customers to refinance their mortgage loans. By refinancing loans for
customers we currently service, we retain the servicing rights, thereby extending the longevity of the servicing cash flows.

Servicing. The perforff mance of contractuatt lly specified administrative functions with respect to a mortgage loan or pool of
mortgage loans. Duties of a servicer typiy cally include, among other things, collecting monthly payments, maintaining escrow
accounts, providing periodic monthlt y statements to the customer and monthly reports to the loan owners or their agents,
managing insurance, monitoring delinquencies, executing foreclosures (as necessary), and remitting fees to guarantors, trusr tees
and service providers. A servicer is generally compensated with a specific fee outlined in the contract establa ished prior to the
commencement of the servicing activities.

Servicing Advadd nces. In the course of servicing loans, servicers are required to make advances that are reimburm sabla e from
collections on the related mortgage loan or pool of loans. There are typically three types of servicing advances: P&I Advances,
T&I Advances and Corporate Advances.

(i) P&I Advances cover scheduled payments of principal and interest that have not been timely paid by customers. P&I
Advances serve to facilitate the cash flows paid to holders of securities issued by the residential MBS trusr t. The
servicer is not the insurer or guarantor of the MBS and thus has the right to cease the advancaa ing of P&I, when the
servicer deems the next advance nonrecoverabla e.

(ii) T&I Advances pay specified expenses associated with the preservarr tion of a mortgaged property or the liquidation
of defaulted mortgage loans, including but not limited to property taxes, insurance premiums or other property-related
expenses that have not been timely paid by customers in order for the lien holder to maintain its interest in the
property.

(iii) Corporate Advances pay costs, fees and expenses incurred in foreclosing upon, preserving defaulted loans and
selling REO, including attorneys’ and othet r profesff sional fees and expenses incurred in connection with foreclosure and
liquidation or other legal proceedings arising in the course of servicing the defaulted mortgage loans.

Servicing Advances are reimbursed to the servicer if and when the customer makes a payment on the underlying
mortgage loan at the time the loan is modified or upon liquidation of the underlying mortgage loan but are primarily
the responsibility of the investor/orr wner of the loan. The types of servicing advances that a servicer must make are set
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forth in its servicing agreement with the owner of the mortgage loan or pool of mortgage loans. In some instances, a
servicer is allowed to cease Servicing Advances, if those advances will not be recoverabla e from the property securing
the loan.

Servicing Fee. A servicing fee is the percentage of each mortgage payment made by a customer to a mortgage servicer as
compensation for keeping a record of payments, collecting, and making escrow payments, passing principal and interest
payments along to the note holder.

Subservicing. Subsu ervirr cing is the process of outsourcing the duties of the primaryr servicer to a third-party servicer. The third-
party servicer performs the servicing responsibilities for a fee and is typiyy cally not responsible for making servicing advances,
which are subsequently reimburm sed by the primary servicer. The primaryr servicer is contratt ctuat lly liabla e to the owner of the
loans for the activities of the subservicer.

Unpain d Principali Balance (“UPB”PP ).” The amount of principal outstanding on a mortgage loan or a pool of mortgage loans.
UPB is used together with the servicing fees and ancillary incomes as a means of estimating the future revenue stream for a
servicer.

U.S. Depare tment of Agff riculture (“USDASS ”). The USDA is a cabinet-level department of the U.S. federal government, which
guarantees certain home loans for qualifieff d customers.

Warehouse Facility.yy A type of line of credit facility used to temporarily finance mortgage loan originations to be sold in the
secondary market. Pursuant to a warehouse facility,yy a loan originator typically agrees to transferff to a counterpar rty certain
mortgage loans against the transferff of funds by the counterparr rt, with a simultaneous agreement by the counterpart to transferff
the loans back to the originator at a date certain, or on demand, against the transferff of funds from the originator.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mr. Cooper Group Inc. (thet Company) as of Decembem r 31,
2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equiq ty and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended Decembem r 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial
statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly,yy in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company at Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended Decembem r 31, 2024, in conforff mity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publu ic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria establa ished in
Internal Contrott l-Integrated Frameworkr issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework), and our report dated Februarr ry 20, 2025 expressed an unqualifieff d opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducd ted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perforff m the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or frauda . Our audits included perforff ming procedurdd es to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error r or fraud, and perforff ming procedurd es that respond to those risks. Such procedurd es included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonabla e basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communim cated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that
was communim cated or required to be communimm cated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subju ective or complex judgments. The
communimm cation of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken
as a whole, and we are not, by communim cating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit
matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Valuatiott n of Forward Mortgat gea Servicingn Righi ts and the Excess Spread Finaii ncingn Liabii lityii
Descripti ion of the
Matter

The estimated fair values of mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) and the excess spread financing
liability were $11.7 billion and $418 million, respectively, as of Decembem r 31, 2024. The excess spread
financing liabia lity is accounted for as a secured borrowing whereby the Company sold to third parties
the right to receive a portion of excess cash flow generated from various pools of MSRs. As described
in Note 2 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company measures MSRs and the excess
spread financing liabia lity at fair value on a recurring basis with changes in fair value recorded in the
statement of operations. Such fair values are based on the present value of future cash flows from
servicing the underlying loans. The significant unobservable assumptions used to estimate the fair
value of MSRs are prepayment speeds, option adjud sted spread (OAS), and cost to service. The
significant unobservable assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the excess spread financing
liabia lity are prepayment speeds and OAS. Additionally,yy during the fourth quarter the Company
acquired $1.2 billion of MSRs in conjunction with the Flagstar transaction as described in Note 3.

Auditing management’s estimate of the fair values of MSRs and the excess spread financing liabia lity
as of Decembem r 31, 2024, as well as the acquisition date fair value of Flagstar transaction MSRs, is
complex and required judgment due to the subjectivity of the significant unobservable assumptions
utilized in the calculation of the respective fair values. Changes to any of these assumptions could have
a material impam ct on the fair values of MSRs and the excess spread financing liabia lity.
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How We Addrdd esrr sed
the Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effeff ctiveness of the
Company’s process for estimating the fair values of MSRs and the excess spread financing liabia lity,yy
including management’s internal controls over the development of the significff ant unobservabla e
assumptions and determination of the fair value of MSRs and the excess spread financing liabia lity.
This included, among othet rs, testing internal controls over management’s review of:ff 1) historical
results and market-based information considered in developing these assumptions; 2) comparisons of
independent fair value ranges and assumptions obtained from third-party valuation firms to the
internally developed fair value estimates and assumptions; 3) the completeness and accuracy of data
used in determining the assumptions and the fair value estimates; 4) the acquisition date fair value of
the Flagstar transaction MSRs.

To test the fair values of the MSRs and the excess spread financing liabia lity,yy our audit procedurd es
included, among othet rs, testing the reasonabla eness of the significant unobservabla e assumptions and the
fair value estimates. We tested the reasonabla eness of the assumptions by comparing to historical
Company results and independent, market-based information. We tested the completeness and
accuracy of the data underlying the assumptions and historical results. We utilized an internal valuation
specialist to assist in testing management’s assumptions and the fair value estimates by developing and
comparing to independent expectations. We identifieff d potential sources of corroborating and contrary
information. We also compared the significff ant unobservarr ble assumptions and the fair value estimates
developed by management to those from the third-party valuation firms utilized by management and
evaluated the competence and objeb ctivity of these firms.

/s/ Ernsr t & Young LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2002.

Dallas, Texas
Februar ry 20, 2025
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Consolidll atdd edtt Finaii ncial Stattt emtt ents

MR. COOPER GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(millions of dollars, except share data)

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 753 $ 571
Restricted cash 220 169
Mortgage servicing rights at fair value 11,736 9,090
Advances and other receivabla es, net of reserves of $112 and $170, respectively 1,345 996
Mortgage loans held for sale at fair value 2,211 927
Property and equipment, net of accumulmm ated depreciation of $157 and $141,
respectively 58 53
Deferred tax assets, net 230 472
Other assets 2,386 1,918
Total assets $ 18,939 $ 14,196

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Unsecured senior notes, net $ 4,891 $ 3,151
Advance, warehouse and MSR facilities, net 6,495 4,302
Payabla es and other liabia lities 2,322 1,995
MSR related liabilities - nonrecourse at fair value 418 466
Total liabia lities 14,126 9,914

Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)
Common stock at $0.01 par value - 300 million shares authorized, 93.2 million shares
issued 1 1
Additional paid-in-capia tal 1,077 1,087
Retained earnings 4,971 4,302
Treasury shares at cost - 29.6 million and 28.6 million shares, respectively (1,236) (1,108)
Total stockholders’ equity 4,813 4,282
Total liabia lities and stockholders’ equity $ 18,939 $ 14,196

See accompanying Notes to Consolidatdd ed Financial Statements.
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MR. COOPER GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATTT EMENTS OFOPERATRR IONS
(millions of dollars, except for earnirr ngs per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Revenues:
rvice related, net $ 1,788 $ 1,440 $ 1,865

Net gain on mortgage loans held for sale 437 354 599
Total revenues 2,225 1,794 2,464
Expenses:

laries, wages and benefits 695 634 789
General and administrative 624 538 485

Total expenses 1,319 1,172 1,274
Interest income 790 528 261
Interest expense (776) (537) (424)
Other income (expense), net (19) 41 187

Total other income (expenses), net (5) 32 24
Income before income tax expense 901 654 1,214
Less: Income tax expense 232 154 291
NNet income $ 669 $ 500 $ 923

Earnings per common share
Basic $ 10.40 $ 7.46 $ 12.84
Diluted $ 10.19 $ 7.30 $ 12.50

See accompanying Notes to Consolidatdd ed Financial Statements.
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MR. COOPER GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATTT EMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(millions of dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Operating Activities
NNet income $ 669 $ 500 $ 923

Adjud stments to reconcile net income to net cash attributable to
operating activities:

Deferred tax expense 241 135 289
Net gain on mortgage loans held for sale (437) (354) (599)
Provision for servicing and non-servicing reserves 24 40 30
Fair value changes in mortgage servicing rights 273 483 (549)
Fair value changes in MSR related liabia lities 18 18 142
Depreciation and amortization for property and equipment
and intangible assets 44 38 37

Adjud stment/rtt ecognition of bargain purchase gain 4 (96) —
Loss on MSR hedging activities 517 68 332
Loss (gain) on MSR and excess yield sales 9 (23) 3
Gain on disposition of assets — — (223)
Other operating activities 104 105 96

Repurchases of loan assets out of Ginnie Mae securitizations (1,670) (1,234) (3,067)

Mortgage loans originated and purchased for sale, net of fees (23,022) (12,805) (28,309)
Sales proceeds and loan payment proceeds for mortgage loans
held for sale 23,492 14,130 34,461
Changes in assets and liabia lities:

Advances and other receivabla es (373) 28 153
Other assets (106) (6) 278
Payabla es and other liabia lities (511) (131) (230)

Net cash attributable to operating activities (724) 896 3,767

Investing Activities
Acquiq sitions of business, net of cash acquired — (522) —
Asset acquisition transactions (1,311) (34) —
Purchase of mortgage servicing rights (1,906) (1,850) (1,595)
Proceeds on sale of mortgage servicing rights and excess yield 588 603 290
Property and equipment additions, net of disposals (38) (18) (17)
Other investing activities (30) (15) —

Net cash attributable to investing activities (2,697) (1,836) (1,322)

Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in advance, warehouse and MSR facilities 2,197 1,375 (2,113)
Settlements and repayment of excess spread financing (66) (80) (392)
Repurchase of common stock (147) (276) (239)
Issuance of unsecured senior debt 1,750 — —
Other financing activities (80) (41) (40)
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Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Net cash attributable to financing activities 3,654 978 (2,784)
NNet increase (decrease) in cash, cash equiq valents and restricted
cash 233 38 (339)
Cash, cash equiq valents and restricted cash - beginning of year 740 702 1,041
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - end of year(1) $ 973 $ 740 $ 702

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Activities
Cash paid for interest expense on unsecured senior notes, excess
spread financing, and advance, warehouse and MSR facilities $ 840 $ 441 $ 303
NNet cash (refund) paid for income taxes (1) 26 17

Supplemental Disclosures of Non-cash Investing and
Financing Activities

Purchase of mortgage servicing rights holdbad ck $ 54 $ 149 $ 11

Sale of mortgage servicing rights holdbad ck 16 16 15
Excise tax from repurchase of common stock 1 2 —

Equity consideration received from disposition of assets — — 250
(1) The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash to amounts reported within the consolidated balance sheets.

December 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Cash and cash equivalents $ 753 $ 571 $ 527
Restricted cash 220 169 175

Total cash, cash equivalents and restritt cted cash $ 973 $ 740 $ 702

See accompanying Notes to Consolidatdd ed Financial Statements.
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MR. COOPER GROUP INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATTT EMENTS

(millions of dollars, unless othet rwise stated)

1. Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Busineii ss
Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc. collectively with its consolidated subsidiaries, (“Mr. Cooper” or the “Compam ny”) provides servicing,
origination and transaction-based services related to single family residences throughout the United States with operations
under its primaryr brands: Mr. Cooper®, Xome® and Rushmore Servicing®. Mr. Cooper is the largest home loan servicer and a
majoa r originator in the countryrr focused on delivering a variety of servicing and lending producd ts, services and technologies.

The Company has provided a glossary of terms, which defines certain industry-specific and othet r terms that are used herein, in
Item 7, Management’s Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, of this Form 10-K.

Basisii of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”). The significff ant accounting policies described below, together with the other notes that follow,
are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Basisii of Consolidll atdd iott n
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly owned subsu idiaries, othet r entities in
which the Company has a controlling financial interest, and those variable interest entities (“VIE”) where the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries are the primaryr beneficiaries. Assets and liabia lities of VIEs and their respective results of operations
are consolidated from the date that the Company became the primaryr beneficiaryr through the date the Company ceases to be the
primary beneficiary. The Company applies the equiq ty method of accounting to investments where it is able to exercise
significant influence, but not contrott l, over the policies and procedures of the entity and owns less than 50% of the voting
interests. Investments in certain companies over which the Company does not exert significant influence are recorded at fair
value, or at cost upon election of measurement alternative, at the end of each reporting period. Intercompam ny balances and
transactions on consolidated entities have been eliminated.

Use of Estimatestt
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conforff mity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affeff ct the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompam nying notes. Actual results
could differff from these estimates, and such differff ences could be material, due to factors such as adverse changes in the
economy,mm changes in interest rates, secondary market pricing for loans held for sale and derivatives, strength of underwriting
and servicing practices, changes in prepayment assumptions, declines in home prices or discrete events adversely affeff cting
specific customers.

Recent Accountintt g Guidandd ce Adoptdd edtt
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-07, Segment Reporting (TopTT ic 280): Imprmm ovements to Reportable Segment
Disclosures, provides updates to qualitative and quantitative reportable segment disclosure requirements, including enhanced
disclosures about significff ant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker included
within each reported measure of segment profitff or loss and increased interim disclosure requirements, among othet rs. The
Company adopted ASU 2023-07 in the fourth quarter of 2024 on a retrospective basis, which only impam cted disclosures and did
not have a material impam ct on the consolidated financial statements. Refer to Note 20,0 Segme ent Infon rmation, for further
information.

2. Significff ant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalentstt
Cash and cash equivalents include unrestrit cted cash on hand and othet r interest-bearing investments with original maturity dates
of 90 days or less.

Restritt ctedtt Cash
Restricted cash includes collected funds pledged to certain advance and warehouse facilities, collected fees payabla e to third
parties, and certain contractuat l escrow funds.

Mortgatt gea Servicing Righi ts (“MS“ R”SS )”
The Company recognizes the rights to service mortgage loans for others, or MSRs, whether acquired or as a result of the sale of
loans the Company originates with servicing retained, as assets. The Company initially records all MSRs at fair value. The
Company has elected to subsu equently measure MSRs at fair value.
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The fair value of the MSRs is based upon the present value of the expected future net cash flows related to servicing the
underlying loans. The Company determines the fair value of the MSRs using a discounted cash flow model which incorporates
prepayment speeds, option adjud sted spread, costs to service, delinquencies, ancillary revenues, recapture rates and othet r
assumptions that management believes are consistent with the assumptions that othet r similar market participants use in valuing
the MSRs.

The key assumptions to determine fair value include prepayment speeds, option adjud sted spread and cost to service. The credit
quality and stated interest rates of the loans underlying the MSRs affeff ct the assumptions used in the cash flow models. The
Company obtains independent third-party valuations quarterly to assess the reasonabla eness of the fair value calculated by the
cash flow model. Fair value adjud stments are recorded within “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Advadd nces and Othett r Receivablesll ,s Net
The Company advances funds to or on behalf of the investors when the customer fails to meet contratt ctuat l payments or there are
shortfalff ls due to timing (e.g., loan principal and interest, property taxes, insurance) in accordance with terms of its servicing
agreements. Advances of principal and interest are referred to as P&I advances and advances of property tax and/or insurance
are referred to as escrow or T&I advances. The Company may also advance funds to maintain and market underlying loan
collateral through foreclosure and ultimate liquidation on behalf of the investors, referred to as corporate advances. Advances
are recovered from customers for perforff ming loans and from the investors and loan proceeds for non-perforff ming loans.

The Company may also acquire servicer advances in connection with the acquisition of MSRs through asset acquisitions or
business combinations. These advancaa es are recorded at their relative fair value amounts upon acquisition, which may result in a
purchase discount or premium. The Company records receivables upon determining that collection of amounts due from loan
proceeds, investors, mortgage insurers, or prior servicers is probable. Reserves related to recoverabia lity of advances and other
receivabla es are discussed below in Reserves for Servicing Activity.

Mortgaget Loans Held for Sale
The Company originates prime residential mortgage loans with the intention of selling such loans in the secondaryrr market, and
generally does so on a servicing-retained basis. As these loans are originated with intent to sell, the loans are classified as held
for sale and the Company has elected to measure these loans held for sale at fair value. The Company estimates fair value of
mortgage loans held for sale using a market approach by utilizing either: (i) the fair value of securities backed by similar
mortgage loans, adjud sted for certain factors to approximate the fair value of a whole mortgage loan, including the value
attributable to mortgage servicing and credit risk, (ii) current commitments to purchase loans or (iii) recent observable market
trades for similar loans, adjud sted for credit risk and othet r individual loan characteristics. In connection with the Company’s
election to measure originated mortgage loans held for sale at fair value, the Company records the loan origination fees when
earned, net of direct loan originations costs associated with these loans. Loan origination fees and underwrrr iting fees are
recorded in “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of operations. Gains or losses recognized upon sale
of loans and fair value adjud stmet nts are recorded in “revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Repue rchased Loans
From time to time the Company is required to repurchase loans from various investors related to originations or servicing
defects. Such defects include, but are not limited to, breaches in seller representations and warranties made upon sale or
demands for servicing repurchase due certain situations (such as modification). Such loans are repurchased by the Company as
required with the intent of resale in the secondaryaa market. If the defect is something that can be cured, the Company may seek
to cure the issue and re-sell the loan to the investor and retain servicing. However, the nature of the defect may preclude the
Company from curing in which case the Company may elect to sell such loans, servicing released, through a whole loan sale (or
“scratch and dent sale"). Due to the Company’s intent to sell these loans, these repurchases are appropriately classified as
mortgage loans held for sale, with any gains or losses recorded in “revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” in the
consolidated statements of operations. Reserves related to repurchased loans are discussed below in Repurchase Reserves for
Origination Activity.

Loans Subject to Repuee rchase from Ginniii e Mae
For certain loans originated and sold into GNMAmortgage-backed securities, the Company, as servicer/trrr ansferff or, has the
unilateral right to repurchase, without GNMA’s prior authorization, any individual loan in a GNMA securitization pool if that
loan meets certain criteria, including payment not being received from the customer for greater than 90 days (“delinquent
statust ”). For loans in delinquent statust , the Company must recognize in its consolidated balance sheets the right to repurchase
the loan and a corresponding repurchase liabia lity, regardless of whethet r the Company intends to repurchase the loan. The
Company records these rights to repurchase in “other assets” at the unpan id principal balance and a corresponding liabia lity in
“payables and other liabia lities” in its consolidated balance sheets.
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From time to time, the Company exercises this right to repurchase individual delinquent loans in GNMA securitization pools to
minimize interest spread losses, re-pool into new GNMA securitizations or otherwise sell to third-party investors. The majoa rity
of GNMA repurchased loans are repurchased in connection with loan modifications and loan resolution activity with the intent
to re-pool into new GNMA securitizations upon re-performance of the loan or othet rwise sell to third-party investors. Thereforff e,
the Company classifies such loans as loans held for sale and has elected to measure these repurchased loans at fair value.

MSRSS Related Liabii ilitiell s – Nonrecourserr
Excess Spread Financing
In conjunction with the acquisition of certain MSRs on various pools of residential mortgage loans (the “Portfolff ios”), the
Company entered into sale and assignment agreements related to its right to servicing fees, under which the Company sells to
third parties the right to receive a portion of the excess cash flow generated from the Portfolios afteff r receipt of a fixed base
servicing fee per loan. The excess cash flow payments to third parties are considered counterparty payments, which are
recorded as an adjud stment to “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of operations. The agreements
consist of two components - current excess spread, or remittance of a percentage of excess spread on currently serviced loans,
and future excess spread, or the obligation to transferff currently serviced loans that have been refinanced into current excess
spread or a replacement loan of similar economic characteristics into the Portfolios. The new or replacement loan will be
governed by the same terms set forth in the sale and assignment agreement described above. The sale of these rights is
accounted for as a secured borrowing under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 860, with the total proceeds received
being recorded as a component of “MSR related liabia lities - nonrecourse at fair value” in the consolidated balance sheets. The
Company determines the effeff ctive interest rate on these liabia lities and allocates total repayments between interest expense and
the outstanding liabia lity.

The Company has elected to measure the outstanding financings related to the excess spread financing agreements at fair value
with all changes in fair value recorded to “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of operations. The fair
value on excess spread financing is based on the present value of future expected discounted cash flows. The cash flow
assumptions used in the model are based on various factors, with the key assumptions being mortgage prepayment speeds and
option adjud sted spread.

Changes to excess spread financing, other than payments and fair value measurements, include accretion, which results from
changes in the portfolio. Changes related to accretion are recorded to “revenues - service related, net” with an offsff et to excess
spread financing liabia lity on the consolidated balance sheet.

Mortgagt e Servicing Righti stt Financing
The Company has historically entered into transactions with third parties to sell a contractuat lly specified base fee component of
certain MSRs and servicer advances under specified terms. The Company evaluates these transactions to determine if they were
sales or secured borrowings. When a transaction qualifieff s for sale treatment, the Company derecognizes the transferff rer d assets in
its consolidated balance sheets. If the Company determines that the related MSRs sales are contingent on the receipt of consents
from various third parties, for accounting purposes, legal ownership of the MSRs continues to reside with the Company. The
Company continues to account for the MSRs in its consolidated balance sheets. In addition, the Company records an MSR
financing liabia lity associated with this financing transaction. The Company continues to account for the sold specified base fee
cash flows within MSRs in its consolidated balance sheets. Counterparty payments related to this financing arrangement are
recorded as an adjud stment to the Company’s “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company has elected to measure the mortgage servicing rights financing liabia lities at fair value with all changes in fair
value recorded to “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of operations. The fair value on mortgage
servicing right financings is based on the present value of future expected discounted cash flows. The cash flow assumptions
and prepayment assumptions used in the model are based on various factors, with the key assumptions being advance financing
rates and advance recovery rates.

Property and Equipmii ent, Net
Property and equipment is comprised of furniture, fixturt es, leasehold imprmm ovements, computer software, and computer
hardware. These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred
which is included in “expenses - general and administrative” in the consolidated statements of operations. Depreciation, which
includes depreciation and amortization on finance leases, is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated usefulff
lives of the related assets. Cost and accumulmm ated depreciation applicable to assets retired or sold are eliminated from the
accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are recognized at such time through a charge or credit to “expenses - general and
administrative.” Costs to internally developed computer software are capia talized during the development stage and include
internal and external costs incurred to develop softwatt re.

Long-lived assets shall be tested for recoverabia lity whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount might not be recoverabla e. The Company perforff ms a quarterly evaluation to determine whethet r such events have
occurred. If events and circumstances indicate the carryrr ing values exceed the fair value of the fixed assets, the Company will
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proceed with impam irment testing. Impamm irment loss shall be recognized only if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not
recoverabla e and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverabla e if it exceeds the sum of
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. The impamm irment loss is measured
as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.

Leases
If the Company determines an arrangement contains a lease or lease components, then the lease will be accounted for under
ASC 842 and classified as either a finance or operating lease. At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a
leased right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and corresponding lease liability based on the present value of the lease payments over the
lease term. Leased ROU assets are tested for impam irment in accordance with ASC 360, Properr rty,tt Plantll ,t and Equipmi ent. The
Company did not have material finance leases for the periods presented.

ASC 842 provides for two policy elections. The first refers to leases with a term of 12 months or less and the second relates to
separating lease components from non-lease components. The Company elected not to recognize lease assets and lease
liabilities for leases with a term of 12 months or less and not to separate lease components from non-lease components.

Leases primarily consist of various corporate and other offiff ce facilities. Operating leases in which the Company is the lessee are
recorded as operating lease ROU assets and operating lease liabia lities, which are included in “other assets” and “payables and
other liabia lities,” respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets. Operating lease ROU assets represent the Company’s right to
use an underlying asset during the lease term and operating lease liabia lities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease
payments arising from the lease. ROU assets and operating lease liabia lities are recognized at lease commencement based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments using a discount rate that represents the Company’s incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date, as most of the Company’s leases do not provide an implm icit rate. ROU assets are furthet r
adjud sted for lease incentives. Operating lease expense, which is comprised of amortization of the ROU asset and the implm icit
interest accreted on the operating lease liabia lity,yy is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is recorded in
“expenses - general and administrative” in the consolidated statements of operations. Operating lease activity is included in
operating activities within the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Derivative Finaii ncial Instrutt mentstt
Derivative instruments are used as part of the overall strategy to manage exposure to market risks primarily associated with
fluctuations in interest rate risks related to the Pipeline (including mortgage loans held for sale and interest rate lock
commitments (“IRLCs”)) and the MSR portfolio. The Company recognizes all derivatives at fair value on a recurring basis in
“other assets” and “payables and othet r liabia lities” on its consolidated balance sheets. The Company treats all of its derivative
instruments as economic hedges, thereforff e none of its derivative instruments are designated as accounting hedges.

Derivative instruments utilized by the Company primarily include IRLCs, loan purchase commitments (“LPCs”), forward
Mortgage Backed Securities (“MBS”), and Treasuryrr futures. IRLCs and LPCs represent an agreement to extend credit to a
mortgage loan applicant, or an agreement to purchase a loan from a third-party originator, respectively, whereby the interest rate
and loan amount is set prior to funding. The Company has the ability and intent to fund the loan for purpose of selling in the
secondary market, accordingly,yy upon funding these IRLCs or LPCs will be mortgage loans held for sale for which the Company
has selected the fair value option. Similar to the fair values of mortgage loans held for sale; held in inventoryr awaiting sale into
the secondary market. IRLCs and LPCs are subju ect to changes in mortgage interest rates from the date of the commitment
through the date of funding and ultimately through sale of the loan into the secondaryr market. As a result, the Company is
exposed to interest rate risk during the period from the date of the lock commitment through (i) the lock commitment
cancellation or expiration date; or (ii) the date of sale into the secondary mortgage market. IRLCs are considered freestanding
derivatives and are recorded at fair value at inception inclusive of the inherent value of servicing. Loan commitments generally
range between 30 days and 90 days, and the Company typically sells mortgage loans within 30 days of origination. Changes in
fair value subsu equent to inception are based on changes in the fair value of the underlying loan, inherent value of servicing of
the loan (future MSR value), and adjud stments for the estimated pull-through rate. Any changes in fair value are recorded in
earnings as a component of “revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” on the consolidated statements of operations
and consolidated statements of cash flows.

The Company uses other derivative financial instruments (mentioned above), primarily forward MBS purchase and sales
commitments (also referred to as TBA securities), to manage exposure to interest rate risk and changes in the fair value of
IRLCs and mortgage loans held for sale (both in Originations and Servicing) and MSRs. These commitments are recorded at
fair value based on pricing of similar instruments in the secondary market based upon the investor/Arr gency, coupon, and
estimated sale or delivery month. The forward MBS commitments fix the forward price that will be realized in the secondaryrr
market and thereby reduce the interest rate and price risk to the Company. The Company’s expectation of the amount of its
IRLCs that will ultimately close is a key factor in determining the notional amount of derivatives used in economically hedging
the position. The changes in value of all derivative instrutt ments related to the Pipeline are recorded as “revenues - net gain on
mortgage loans held for sale.” The changes in the value of forward MBS for the MSR portfolio are recorded in “revenues -
service related, net.”
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The Company may elect to purchase othet r derivative instruments, such as Treasuryrr futures to mitigate exposure to interest rate
risk related to cash flows on securitized mortgage borrowings. See Note 11, Derivative Financial Instrutt mentstt , for more
information.

Busineii ss Combinatiott ns and Asset Acquisitions
The Company evaluates whether a transaction meets the definition of a business in accordance with ASC 805, Businessee
Combinations. The Company first applies a screen test to determine if subsu tantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiaff bla e asset or groupu of similar identifiaff bla e assets. If the screen test is met, the
transaction is accounted for as an asset acquiq sition. If the screen test is not met, the Company furthet r considers whether the set
of assets or acquired entities have at a minimum, inputs and processes that have the ability to create outputs in the form of
revenue. If the assets or acquired entities meet this criteria, the transaction is accounted for as a business combination.

Acquisitions that qualifyff as a business combination are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The fair
value of consideration transferff rerr d for an acquisition is allocated to the assets acquired and liabia lities assumed based on their fair
value as of the acquisition date. The excess of the consideration transferff red over the fair value of assets acquired and liabia lities
assumed is recorded as goodwill. Conversely, in the event the fair value of assets acquired and liabia lities assumed is greater
than the consideration transferff rer d, a bargain purchase gain is recognized.

For acquisitions that are treated as an asset acquisition, the purchase price is allocated to acquired assets based on their relative
fair values. In addition, the transaction costs directly related to the acquisition are capia talized as a component of the purchase
price.

Determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabia lities assumed requires judgment and ofteff n involves the use of significff ant
estimates and assumptions. The Company estimates the fair value of the intangible assets acquired generally by using a
discounted cash flow analysis (the income approach). For the income approach, the Company uses inpun ts and assumptions to
develop these estimates on a market participant perspective which include estimates of projected revenues, discount rates,
economic lives and income tax rates, among others, all of which require significant management judgment. The Company
engages third-party valuation firms when appropriate to assist in the fair value determination of assets acquired and liabia lities
assumed. Acquisition-related expenses and transaction costs associated with business combinations are expensed as incurred.

The Company may adjud st the amounts recognized in an acquisition during a measurement period not to exceed one year from
the date of acquisition, as a result of subsu equeq ntly obtaining additional information that existed at the acquisition date.

Goodwidd llii
Goodwill is not amortized but is instead subject to impam irment testing. The Company evaluates its goodwill for impam irment
annually as of October 1 of each year or more frequently if impamm irment indicators arise in accordance with ASC 350,
Intangibles - Goodwidd ll and Othett r. When testing goodwill for impamm irment, the Company may elect to perforff m either a
qualitative test or a quantitative test to determine if it is more likely than not that the carryrr ing value of a reporting unit exceeds
its estimated fair value.

During a qualitative analysis, the Company considers the impact of any changes to the following factors: macroeconomic,
industry and market factors, cost factors, and changes in overall financial performance, as well as any other relevant events and
uncertainties impamm cting a reporting unit. If the qualitative assessment does not conclude that it is more likely than not that the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit is greater than the carrying value, the Company performs a quantitative analysis. In a
quantitative test, the carryr ing value of the reporting unit is compared to its estimated fair value.

In a quantitative test, the fair value of a reporting unit is determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis and furthet r
analyzed using other methods of valuation. A discounted cash flow analysis requires the Company to make various
assumptions, including assumptions about future cash flows, growth rates and discount rates. The assumptions about future
cash flows and growth rates are based on the Company’s long-term projections by reporting unit. In addition, an assumed
terminal value is used to project future cash flows beyond base years. Assumptions used in the Company’s impam irment testing
are consistent with its internal forecasts and operating plans. The discount rate is based on the Company’s debt and equity
balances, adjud sted for current market conditions and investor expectations of return on the Company’s equity. If the fair value
of a reporting unit exceeds its carryrr ing amount, there is no impamm irment. If not, the Company compares the fair value of the
reporting unit with its carryr ing amount. To the extent the carryirr ng amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a write-
down of the reporting unit’s goodwill would be necessary.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets primarily consist of client relationships acquired through business combinations and asset acquiq sitions. Those
intangible assets are deemed to have finite usefulff lives and are amortized either on a stratt ight-line basis over their estimated
usefulff lives, or on a basis more representative of the time pattern over which the benefit is derived. Intangible assets are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of acquisition.
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Intangible assets with finite usefulff lives are tested for impamm irment whenever events or circumstances indicate that their carryirr ng
amount may not be recoverabla e by comparing the carrying value of the assets to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows
to be generated by the asset. If an impamm irment is determined to exist for intangible assets, the carrying value of the asset is
reduced to the estimated fair value.

Investment in Unconsolidll atdd edtt Entities
The Company accounts for investments in unconsolidated entities using the equity method when the Company holds a
significant, but less than contrott lling, ownership interest and has the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and
financial decisions of the investee. Under the equiq ty method of accounting, investments are initially recorded at cost and
thereafteff r adjud sted for additional investments, distritt butions and the proportionate share of earnings or losses of the investee.
The Company evaluates the equity method investments for impam irment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
an other-than-temporm ary decline in value may have occurred. The Company’s equiq ty method investments include its investment
in Sagent M&C, LLC (“Sagent”), associated with the March 31, 2022 sale of the Company’s Mortgage Servicing Platform to
Sagent. Since the 2022 transaction with Sagent, the Company has engaged with Sagent to continue utilizing the Mortgage
Servicing Platform.

For investments in unconsolidated entities in which the Company does not hold a significff ant ownership interest and does not
have the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial decisions of the investee, the Company evaluates
whethet r to account for the investment at cost or fair value. For such investments where the fair value option has been elected,
the Company records the investments at fair value and recognizes changes in fair value in “Other income (expenses), net”
within the consolidated statements of operations. However, the Company may elect a measurement alternative for equity
investments that (1) do not have readily available determinable fair values and (2) do not qualifyff for the practical expedient in
ASC 820, Fair Value Measuremrr ent, to measure fair value at net asset value. Under the measurement alternative, the Company
(as an investor) records the investment at cost less any impam irment in “Other income (expenses), net” within the consolidated
statements of operations.

Revenue Recogno ition
ASC 606, Revenue fromrr Contratt ctstt with Customersrr , establa ishes principles for reporting information about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contratt cts to provide goods or services to customers.
The core principle requires an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transferff of goods or services to customers as
perforff mance obligations are satisfieff d in an amount that reflects the consideration that the entity expects to be entitled to receive
in exchange for those goods or services. The majoa rity of the Company’s revenue-generating transactions in the Servicing and
Originations segments, including revenue generated from financial instruments, such as the Company’s loans and derivatives,
as well as revenue related to the Company’s mortgage servicing activities, are not within the scope of ASC 606 as these
activities are subject to othet r GAAP discussed elsewhere within the Company’s disclosures. Generally,yy revenues from Xome
fall within the scope of ASC 606.

The core principle requires an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transferff of goods or services to customers as
perforff mance obligations are satisfieff d in an amount that reflects the consideration that the entity expects to be entitled to receive
in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenues fromrr Servicing Activities
• “Revenues, service related, net” primarily include contractuat lly specified servicing fees, late charges, prepayment

penalties, fair value adjud stments, and other ancillary revenues. The servicing fees are based on a contratt ctuat l
percentage of the outstanding principal balance and recognized as revenue as earner d during the life of the loan as
customers make payments. Corresponding loan servicing costs are charged to expense as incurred. The Company
recognizes ancillary revenues and earnir ngs on float as they are earner d.

In addition, the Company receives various fees in the course of providing servicing on its various portfolios. These
fees include modification fees for modifications perforff med outside of government programs, modification fees for
modifications pursuant to various government programs, co-issue transaction fees charged to sellers from boarding
MSRs, deboarding fees for transferff ring MSRs offff the servicing platform, and incentive fees for servicing performance
on specific government-sponsored entities (“GSE”) portfolios. Fees recorded on modifications of mortgage loans
serviced by the Company for others are recognized on collection and are recorded as a component of “revenues -
service related, net.” Fees recorded on modifications pursuant to various government programs are recognized based
upon completion of all necessary steps by the Company and the minimum loan perforff mar nce time frame to establa ish
eligibility for the fee. Revenue earner d on modifications pursuant to various government programs is included as a
component of “revenues - service related, net.” Incentive fees for servicing perforff mance on specific GSE portfolff ios are
recognized as various incentive standards are achieved and are recorded as a component of “revenues - service related,
net.”
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Fair value adjud stments related to MSRs, excess spread financing and MSRs financing are recorded as component of
“revenues - service related, net.”

The Company also acts as a subsu ervicer for certain parties that own the underlying servicing rights and receives
subsu ervirr cing fees, which are typically a stated monthly fee per loan that varies based on typey s of loans. Fees related to
the subsu ervirr ced portfolff io are accruerr d in the period the services are performed.

• “Revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” within the Servicing segment is comprised of the realized and
unrealized gains and losses on sales of mortgage loans held for sale, including loans that are repurchased out of
GNMA securities and subsequently modified and re-securitized, and any other repurchased loans.

• Derivative instruments are used as part of the overall strategy to manage exposure to market risks primarily associated
with fluctuations in interest rates on owned MSRs within the servicing segment. The Company recognizes all
derivatives on its consolidated balance sheets at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company treats all derivative
instruments as economic hedges, thereforff e none of its derivative instruments are designated as accounting hedges. The
changes in value of derivative instruments are recorded within “revenues - service related, net.” See accounting policy
“Derivative Financial Instrutt ments” for more details.

Revenues fromrr Origination Activities
• “Revenues - servicing related, net” within the Originations segment is comprised of loan origination and othet r loan

fees which generally represent flat, per-loan fee amounts and are recognized as revenue at the time the loans are
funded.

• “Revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” includes the realized and unrealized gains and losses on sales of
newly originated mortgage loans, as well as the changes in fair value of all pipeline-related derivatives, including
IRLCs.

Transferff s of financial assets are accounted for as sales when contrott l over the assets has been surrendered. Control over
transferff rerr d assets is deemed to be surrendered when (i) the assets have been legally isolated from the Company, (ii) the
transferff ee has the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange
the transferff rer d assets, and (iii) the Company does not maintain effeff ctive contrott l over the transferff rer d assets through
either (a) an agreement that entitles and obligates the Company to repurchase or redeem them before their maturity
(outside of the mutually agreed upon reps and warranties three-year period) or (b) the ability to unilaterally cause the
holder to return specific assets. Loan securitizations strutt cturtt ed as sales, as well as whole loan sales and the resulting
gains on such sales, net of any accruarr l for recourse obligations, are reported in operating results during the period in
which the securitization closes or the sale occurs.

• Derivative instruments are used as part of the overall strategy to manage exposure to market risks primarily associated
with fluctuations in interest rates related to the originations and servicing pipeline. The Company recognizes all
derivatives on its consolidated balance sheets at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company treats all derivative
instruments as economic hedges, thereforff e none of its derivative instruments are designated as accounting hedges. The
changes in value on originations derivative instruments are recorded within revenue in the as “revenues - net gain on
mortgage loans held for sale.” See accounting policy “Derivative Financial Instruments” for more details.

Revenue fromrr Xome Activities
• Xome revenues primarily consists of fees earner d on real estate exchange, which is a proprietary digital exchange for

selling foreclosed, REO, and seller-owned property. Xome also has revenues from the sale of data and data-related
services. Revenue is recognized upon transferff of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange for those products. Xome’s business is included in
Corporate/Other.

Repuee rchase Reserves for Originatiott n Activity
The Company accruer s reserves for the repurchase of loans from GSEs, GNMA, and third-party investors primarily due to
originations defect and are initially recorded upon sale of the loan to a third party with subsu equent reserves recorded based on
historical repurchase demands and related losses. For loans that are originated by the Company, the repurchase reserves are
included within “payables and accruerr d liabia lities” in the consolidated balance sheets and the provision for repurchase reserves
is a component of “revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” in the consolidated statements of operations. For
repurchase reserves acquired in an acquisition, the reserve is included "payables and accruerr d liabia lities" and additional
provision or release is a component of “expenses - general and administrative”.

During each reporting period, the Company utilizes an internal model to estimate repurchase reserves for loan origination
activities based upon its expectation of future defects and historical loss rates. The estimate for the repurchase reserve is based
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on judgments and historical inputn s which can be influenced by many factors and may change over the lifeff of the underlying
loans, including: (i) historical loss rate, (ii) secondary market pricing of loans; (iii) the quality of Company’s underwriting
procedures; (iv) customer delinquency and default patterns; and (v) other Company-specificff and macro-economic factors. On a
quarterly basis, management corroborates these assumptions using third-party data, where applicable.

Reserves for Servicingn Activity
In connection with loan servicing activities, the Company records reserves primarily for the recoverabia lity of advances, interest
claims, and mortgage insurance claims. Reserves for advances and other receivables associated with loans in the MSR portfolio
are considered within the MSR valuation, and the provision expense for such advances is recorded in the mark-to-market
adjud stment in “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of operations. Such valuation considers the
expected cash outflows and inflows for advances and other receivabla es in accordance with the fair value framework. Reserves
for advances and othet r receivabla es on loans transferff red out of the MSR portfolff io are establa ished within “advances and other
receivabla es, net.” As loans serviced transferff out of the MSR portfolio, any negative MSR value or any GNMA loan fallout
value associated with the loans transferff red is reclassified from the MSR to the reserve within “advances and othet r receivabla es,
net” to the extent such reserves continue to be required for balances remaining on the consolidated balance sheets. Management
evaluates reserves for sufficff iency each reporting period and any additional reserve requirements are recorded as a provision in
“expenses - general and administrative” as needed.

The Company records reserves for advances and othet r receivabla es and evaluates the sufficff iency of such reserves through
internal models considering expected recovery rates on claims filed with government agencies, government sponsored
enterprises, vendors, prior servicer and other counterpar rties. Key assumptions used in the models include but are not limited to
expected recovery rates by loan typey s, which are derived from historical recovery rates, and aging of the receivabla e. Recovery
of advances and other receivabla es is subju ect to judgment and estimates based on the Company’s assessment of its compliance
with servicing guidelines, its ability to produce the necessary documentation to suppu ort claims, its ability to suppu ort amounts
from prior servicers and to effeff ctively negotiate settlements, as needed. Management reviews recorded advances and othet r
receivabla es, and upon determination that no furthet r recourse for recovery is availabla e from all means known to management,
the recorded balances associated with these receivabla es are written offff against the reserve.

Creditdd Loss Reseee rves
ASC 326, Financial Instrut mentstt – Credrr it Losses requires expected credit losses for financial instruments held at the reporting
date to be measured based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonabla e and suppu ortabla e forecasts, which is
referred to as the current expected credit loss, or CECL, methodology. The new standard reflects management’s best estimate of
all expected credit losses for the Company’s financial assets that are recognized at amortized cost. The CECL methodology
considers expected lifetime loss rates calculated from historical data using a weighted average lifeff to determine the current
expected credit loss required.

The Company determined that “advances and other receivabla es, net” and certain financial instruments included in “other assets”
are within the scope of ASC 326.

For “advances and othet r receivabla es, net,” the Company determined that the majoa rity of estimated losses are due to servicing
operational errorr rs, and credit-related losses are not significanta becausa e of the contrat ctuat l relationships with the government and
government sponsored agencies. The Company determined that the credit-related risk associated with certain applicable
financial instruments can increase with the passage of time. The CECL reserve methodology considers these financial
instruments collectible to a point in time of 39 months. Any projected remaining balance at the end of the collection period is
considered a loss and factors into the overall CECL loss rate required.

For “other assets,” primarily trade receivabla es and service fees earner d but not received, the Company determined that these are
short-term in nature (less than one year), and the estimated credit-related losses over the life of these receivables are similar to
those resulting from the Company’s existing loss reserve process. The Company monitors the financial statust of customers to
determine if any specific loss considerations are required.

Variabli ell Interest Entities
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into various typey s of on- and off-ff balance sheet transactions with special
purpose entities (“SPEs”), which primarily consist of securitization trusrr ts establa ished for a limited purpose. Generally,yy these
SPEs are formed for the purpor se of securitization transactions in which the Company transferff s assets to an SPE, which then
issues to investors various forms of debt obligations supported by those assets. In these securitization transactions, the
Company typically receives cash and/or othet r interests in the SPE as proceeds for the transferff red assets. The Company will
typically retain the right to service the transferff red receivabla es and to repurchase the transferff red receivabla es from the SPE if the
outstanding balance of the receivables falls to a level where the cost exceeds the benefits of servicing the transferff rer d
receivabla es.
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The Company evaluates its interests in each SPE for classification as a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”). When an SPE meets
the definition of a VIE and the Company determines that the Company is the primary beneficiary, the Company includes the
SPE in its consolidated financial statements.

The Company consolidates certain SPEs connected with mortgage activities. See Note 13, Securitizations and Financings, for
more information on Company SPEs, and Note 12, Indebtednedd ss,ee for certain debt activity connected with SPEs.

Securitizations and Asset-Backed Financing Arrangements
The Company and its subsu idiaries have been a transferff or in connection with a number of securitizations and asset-backed
financing arrar ngements. The Company has continuing involvement with the financial assets of the securitizations and the asset-
backed financing arrarr ngements. The Company has aggregated these transactions into two groupsu : (1) securitizations of
residential mortgage loans accounted for as sales and (2) financings of advances on loans serviced for others accounted for as
secured borrowings.

Securitizations Trearr ted as Sales
The Company’s continuing involvement typiy cally includes acting as servicer for the mortgage loans held by the trusr t and
holding beneficial interests in the trusrr t. The Company’s responsibilities as servicer include, among other things, collecting
monthly payments, maintaining escrow accounts, providing periodic reports and managing insurance in exchange for a
contratt ctuat lly specified servicing fee. The beneficial interests held consist of both subou rdinate and residual securities that were
retained at the time of securitization. These securitizations generally do not result in consolidation of the VIE as the Company
has no obligation to provide financial suppu ort to unconsolidated securitization. In addition, the Company’s exposure to loss as a
result of its continuing involvement with the trusrr ts is limited to the carrying values, if any, of its investments in the residual and
subordinate securities of the trusr ts, the MSRs that are related to the trusr ts and the advances to the trusr ts. The Company
considers the probability of loss arising from its advances to be remote because of their position ahead of most of the othet r
liabia lities of the trusrr ts.

Accounted as Secured Borrowrr ing
The Company transferff s advances on loans serviced for others to SPEs in exchange for cash. The Company consolidates these
SPEs becausa e the Company is the primaryr beneficiaryr of the VIE.

These VIEs issue debt suppu orted by collections on the transferff rerr d advances. The Company made these transferff s under the terms
of its advance facility agreements. The Company classifies the transferff red advances on its consolidated balance sheets as
advances and classifies the related liabia lities as advance facilities and other nonrecourse debt. The SPEs use collections of the
pledged advances to repay principal and interest and to pay the expenses of the entity. Holders of the debt issued by these
entities can look only to the assets of the entities themselves for satisfactff ion of the debt and have no recourse against the
Company.

Interest Income
Interest income primarily includes float interest earnerr d on custodial cash deposits associated with the servicing portfolio.
Interest income is also recognized on mortgage loans held for sale primarily for the period from loan funding to sale, which is
typically within 30 days. Loans are placed on non-accruarr l statust when any portion of the principal or interest is greater than 90
days past due. Loans return to accruar l status when the principal and interest become current and it is probable that the amounts
are fully collectible. For individual loans that have been modified, a period of six timely payments is required before the loan is
returned to an accruar l basis.

Interest Expexx nse
Interest expense primarily includes interest incurred on advance, warehouse and MSR facilities, unsecured senior notes, excess
spread financing and compensating bank balances, as well as bank fees. The Company incurred interest expense related to
advance, warehouse and MSR facilities, unsecured senior notes and excess spread financing of $698, $485 and $361 for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation
Equity based awards include restrit cted stock units (“RSUs”) granted to emplm oyees of the Company and non-emplm oyee directors
and perforff mance-based stock awards (“PSUs”) granted to certain executive offiff cers. The RSUs are valued at the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date and recognized as an expense over the requisite emplmm oyee service
period on a straight-line basis using an accelerated attribution model. The PSUs featurtt e a combination of service, market and/or
performance conditions. Market conditions are valued using a model that incorporates the market condition of the grants while
performance conditions are assessed for the probability of achievement. The PSUs are expensed on a straight-line basis over the
requisite emplm oyee service period. The Company applies a forfeiturt e rate and records share-based compensation in “expenses -
salaries, wages and benefits” within the consolidated statements of operations and in “other operating activities” within the
consolidated statements of cash flows.
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Adverdd tisingn Coststt
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included as part of “expenses - general and administrative” within the
consolidated statements of operations. The Company incurred advertising costs of $39, $23 and $37 for the years ended
Decembem r 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Income Taxeaa s
The Company is subju ect to the income tax laws of the U.S. and its states and municipalities. These tax laws are complex and
subject to differff ent interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant governmental taxing authorities.

Deferred income taxes are determined using the balance sheet method. Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax impamm ct
attributable to differff ences between the consolidated financial statements carryr ing amounts of existing assets and liabia lities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabia lities are measured using enacted tax rates that will apply to taxabla e
income in the years in which those temporaryrr differff ences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effeff ct of a change in tax
rates on deferred tax assets and liabia lities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company regularly reviews the carryr ing amount of its deferred tax assets to determine if the establa ishment of a valuation
allowance is necessary. If based on the available evidence, it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the Company’s
deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods, a deferred tax valuation allowance is establa ished. Consideration is
given to various positive and negative evidence that could affeff ct the realization of the deferred tax assets. In evaluating this
availabla e evidence, management considers, among othet r things, historical financial perforff mance, expectation of future earnings,
length of statuttt oryrr carryforward periods, experience with operating tax loss and tax credit carryforwards which may expire
unused, the use of tax planning strategies and the timing of reversals of temporaryr differff ences. The Company’s evaluation is
based on current tax laws as well as management’s expectations of future perforff mance.

The Company initially recognizes tax positions in the consolidated financial statements when it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions are initially and subsequently measured as
the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax
authority, assuming the tax authority has full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. In establa ishing a provision for
income tax expense, the Company makes judgments and interpretations about the application of these inherently complex tax
laws. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of provisions for income
taxes in accordance with ASC 740.

Earningsn Per Share
Basic net income per common share is computed by dividing net income availabla e to common stockholders by the weighted
average numbem r of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per common share is computed by dividing
net income availabla e to common stockholders by the sum of the weighted average numbem r of common shares outstanding and
any dilutive securities for the period.

As of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had 10 million preferff red shares authorized at $0.00001, with zero shares
issued and outstanding and aggregate liquiq dation preferff ence of zero dollars.

Share Repuee rchases
The Company has a stock repurchase program which allows the Company to repurchase its common stock using open market
stock purchases or privately negotiated transactions. Repurchased common stock is stated at cost and presented as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity in treasuryrr stock. The share repurchase cost will be determined based on the total dollar
amount paid for share repurchases for a single day divided by the total volume of shares repurchased. The Inflation Reduction
Act of 2022 imposm ed a nondeducd tible 1% excise tax on the net value of certain stock repurchases made afteff r Decembem r 31,
2022. As a result, the Company recorded the applicable excise tax of $1 and $2 during the year ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively, as an incremental cost of the shares repurchased in “treasuryrr shares at cost” within the consolidated balance
sheets.

3. Acquisitions

Acquisition of assets related to certain mortgat ge operations of Flagll stgg ar Bank,kk N.A.
On July 24, 2024, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”) and an Agreement
for the Bulk Purchase and Sale of Mortgage Servicing Rights (the “MSR Purchase Agreement”) with Flagstar Bank, N.A.
(“Flagstar”) in contemplmm ation of one another (collectively “the Flagstar Transaction”). Per the Asset Purchase Agreement, the
Company agreed to purchase and assume from Flagstar, certain assets and third-party origination operations. Per the MSR
Purchase Agreement, the Company agreed to purchase certain MSRs held by Flagstar. The Flagstar Transaction closed in the
fourth quarter of 2024 for total consideration of approximately $1.3 billion in cash, funded through availabla e cash and
drawdowns of existing MSR lines. The acquired assets primarily consist of approximately $1.2 billion of MSRs and related
advances, and $101 of client relationship intangibles associated with subsu ervirr cing contracts. The Company accounted for the
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transaction as an asset acquisition in accordance with Accounting Standard Codification Topic 805, Business Combinations
(“AS“ C 805”)” , whereby the purchase price was allocated to net assets based on their relative fair values.

Acquisition of Home Point Capia tal Inc.
In May 2023, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (thet “Merger Agreement”) and a mortgage servicing
rights purchase and sale agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) with Home Point Capiaa tal Inc. (“Home Point”), a Delaware
corporation. Per the Merger Agreement, the Company agreed to commence a tender offeff r to acquire all of the outstanding
shares of common stock of Home Point, othet r than certain excluded shares. The Home Point transactions closed in the third
quarter of 2023 for total consideration of approximately $658. The Purchase Agreement was a bulk purchase of a portion of
Home Point’s MSR portfolio for $335. The Merger Agreement was the tender offeff r to acquire outstanding shares of common
stock of Home Point, which included the benefit of the cash paid in the bulk purchase of Home Point’s MSR portfolio. The net
consideration paid for the two transactions was $323, or $2.33 per share.

The Company accounted for the two transactions as one business combination (“Home Point Acquisition”) in accordance with
ASC 805 using the acquisition method of accounting. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the Company allocated the
purchase price of the acquisition to identifiaff bla e assets acquired and liabia lities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of
the acquisition date. The Company acquired $1.2 billion MSRs and assumed an unsecured senior note with a principal balance
of $500, among other acquired net assets. During the third quarter of 2023, the Company recorded a preliminaryr bargain
purchase gain of $96 in “other income (expense), net” within the consolidated statements of operations and reported under
Corporate/Other segment, which represents the excess of the estimated fair value of net assets acquiq red over the consideration
transferff rerr dd. In June 2024, the Company finalized its review of tax matters related to the Home Point Acquisition, resulting in an
increase of $4 in other liabia lities and a reduction of $4 in the previously recorded bargain purchase gain. Purchase accounting
for the Home Point Acquisition was finalized in the second quarter of 2024 and the final bargain purchase gain related to the
acquisition was $92.

The Company believes it was able to negotiate a bargain purchase price due to seller’s operational challenges from significant
market volatility, as well as the seller’s desire to exit the business in an expedited manner. During the year ended December 31,
2023, the Company incurred $7 of acquisition costs related to the Home Point Acquisition.

Acquisition of Roosevelt Management Company and Affiliaff ted Companies
In July 2023, the Company acquired all the equity interests of Roosevelt Management Company, LLC (“Roosevelt”), an
investment management firm, and its affiff liated subsu idiaries including Rushmore Loan Management Services LLC, which was
subsu equently renamed to Cypress Loan Servicing LLC, and other entities, for a total purchase price of $28 (“Roosevelt
Transaction”). The Company accounted for the transaction as a business combination in accordance with ASC 805 using the
acquisition method of accounting. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the Company allocated the purchase price of the
acquisition to identifiaff bla e assets acquired and liabia lities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date,
with the excess of the purchase price over those fair values allocated to goodwill. The Company recorded $4 of intangible
assets and $21 of goodwill based on the purchase price allocation. $5 and $16 of the goodwill is assigned to Servicing segment
and Corporate/Other segment, respectively. The goodwill will be deductible for tax purposes. During the year ended Decembem r
31, 2023, the Company incurred $13 of acquisition costs related to the Roosevelt Transaction. The financial results of
Rushmore and Roosevelt were included in Servicing segment and Corporate/Other segment, respectively. The Company
finalized its allocation of fair value of consideration transferff red during the three monthst ended Decembem r 31, 2023.

Acquisition of assets related to Rushmore Loan Management Services, LLC
During the second quarter of 2023, the Company acquired certain assets and liabia lities of Rushmore Loan Management
Services, LLC (“Rushmore”) for a total purchase price of $34 (thet “RusRR hmore Transaction”). Assets acquired were recorded in
the Servicing segment and primarily included subservirr cing contratt cts and related servicing advances and receivabla es. The
Company accounted for the transaction as an asset acquisition in accordance with ASC 805, whereby the purchase price was
allocated to net assets based on their relative fair values.
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4. Mortgage Servicing Rights and Related Liabilities

The following tabla e sets fortht the carrying value of the Company’s MSR and the related liabilities. In estimating the fair value
of all MSRs and related liabia lities, the impam ct of the current environment was considered in the determination of key
assumptions.

MSRs and Related Liabilities December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

MSRs at fair value $ 11,736 $ 9,090

Excess spread financing at fair value $ 386 $ 437
Mortgage servicing rights financing at fair value 32 29
MSR related liabilities - nonrecourse at fair value $ 418 $ 466

Mortgatt gea Servicing Righi t
The Company owns and records at fair value the rights to service traditional residential mortgage loans for othet rs either as a
result of purchase transactions or from the retained servicing associated with the sales and securitizations of loans originated.
MSRs are comprised of servicing rights of both agency and non-agency loans.

The following tabla e sets fortht the activities of MSRs:

Year Ended December 31,
MSRs at Fair Value 2024 2023

Balance - beginning of year $ 9,090 $ 6,654
Additions:
Servicing retained from mortgage loans sold 460 273
Purchases and acquisitions of servicing rights 3,004 3,189

Dispositions:
Sales of servicing assets and excess yield (583) (573)

Changes in fair value:

Changes in valuation inputn s or assumptions used in the valuation model (MSR
MTM) 650 121
Changes in valuation due to amortization (923) (604)

Other changes(1) 38 30
Balance - end of year $ 11,736 $ 9,090
(1) Amounts primarily represent negative fair values reclassified from the MSR asset to reserves as underlying loans are removed from the MSR and other

reclassification adjud stments.

From time to time, the Company sells its ownership interest in certain MSRs and is retained as the subservicer for the sold
assets. The Company has evaluated the sale accounting requirements related to these transactions, including the Company’s
continued involvement as the subsu ervirr cer, and concluded that these transactions qualifyff for sale accounting treatment. During
the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company sold $26,739 and $25,239 in unpan id principal balance (“UPB”) of
MSRs, of which $26,156 and $23,218 was retained by the Company as subsu ervicer, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, certain agencies entered into agreements with the Company to purchase
excess servicing cash flows (“excess yield”) on certain agency loans with a total UPB of approximately $27,841 and $41,958
for proceeds of $226 and $294, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded a gain
of $27 and $33, respectively, through the mark-to-market adjud stments within “revenues - service related, net” in the
consolidated statements of operations.

MSRs are segregated between investor typey into agency and non-agency pools (referred to herein as “investor pools”) based
upon contratt ctuat l servicing agreements with investors at the respective balance sheet date to evaluate the MSR portfolio and fair
value of the portfolff io. Agency investors consist of Government National Mortgage Association (“Ginnie Mae” or “GNMA”)
and the GSEs, Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae” or “FNMA”) and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp
(“Freddie Mac” or “FHLMC”). Non-agency investors consist of investors in private-labea l securitizations.
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The following tabla e provides a breakdown of UPB and fair value for the Company’s MSRs:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
MSRs - UPB and Fair Value Breakdown by
Investor Pools UPB Fair Value UPB Fair Value

Agency $ 710,997 $ 11,397 $ 561,656 $ 8,774
Non-agency 25,074 339 26,286 316

Total $ 736,071 $ 11,736 $ 587,942 $ 9,090

Refer to Note 17,7 Fair Value Measuremrr ents, for further discussion on key weighted-average inpun ts and assumptions used in
estimating the fair value of MSRs.

The following tabla e shows the hypothetical effeff ct on the fair value of the Company’s MSRs when applying certain unfavorabla e
variations of key assumptions to these assets for the dates indicated:

Option Adjud sted Spread Total Prepayment Speeds Cost to Service per Loan

MSRs - Hypothetical Sensitivities

100 bps
Adverse
Change

200 bps
Adverse
Change

10%
Adverse
Change

20%
Adverse
Change

10%
Adverse
Change

20%
Adverse
Change

December 31, 2024

Mortgage servicing rights $ (470) $ (904) $ (308) $ (597) $ (84) $ (169)

December 31, 2023

Mortgage servicing rights $ (368) $ (706) $ (219) $ (425) $ (89) $ (178)

These hypothetical sensitivities should be evaluated with care. The effeff ct on fair value of an adverse change in assumptions
generally cannot be determined because the relationship of the change in assumptions to the fair value may not be linear.
Additionally,yy the impam ct of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value is calculated while holding other assumptions
constant. In reality,yy changes in one factor may lead to changes in other factors, which could impamm ct the above hypotyy het tical
effeff cts.

Excess Spread Finaii ncingn
In order to finance the acquisition of certain MSRs on various portfolios, the Company previously entered into sale and
assignment agreements with third parties and sold to these entities the right to receive a specified percentage of the excess cash
flow generated from the portfolff ios in excess of a fixed base servicing fee per loan. The Company retains all the base servicing
fees, ancillary income and interest float earnir ngs on principal along with interest payments and escrow,ww and also incurs costs to
service the specifieff d pool. The Company is the legal owner and the servicer of the portfolios and provides all servicing and
advancing functions.

In connection with the above transactions, the Company entered into refinanced loan obligations with third parties that require
the Company to transferff the new loan or a replacement loan of similar economic characteristics into the respective portfolff io if
the Company refinances any loan in the portfolio. The new or replacement loan will be governed by the same terms set forth in
the sale and assignment agreement described above.

The Company had excess spread financing liability of $386 and $437, related to the UPB of $66,519 and $74,219 as of
Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Refer to Note 17,7 Fair Value Measuremrr ents, for key weighted-average inpun ts and
assumptions used in the valuation of excess spread financing liability.

The following tabla e shows the hypothetical effeff ct on the Company’s excess spread financing fair value when applying certain
unfavorabla e variations of key assumptions to these liabia lities for the dates indicated:

Option Adjud sted Spread Prepayment Speeds

Excess Spread Financing - Hypothetical
Sensitivities

100 bps
Adverse
Change

200 bps
Adverse
Change

10%
Adverse
Change

20%
Adverse
Change

December 31, 2024

Excess spread financing $ 13 $ 28 $ 8 $ 17

cember 31, 2023

Excess spread financing $ 16 $ 32 $ 10 $ 20
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These hypothetical sensitivities should be evaluated with care. The effeff ct on fair value of an adverse change in assumptions
generally cannot be determined because the relationship of the change in assumptions to the fair value may not be linear.
Additionally,yy the impam ct of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value is calculated while holding other assumptions
constant. In reality,yy changes in one factor may lead to changes in other factors, which could impamm ct the above hypotyy het tical
effeff cts. Also, a positive change in the above assumptions would not necessarily correlate with the corresponding decrease in the
net carryrr ing amount of the excess spread financing. Excess spread financing’s cash flow assumptions that are utilized in
determining fair value are based on the related cash flow assumptions used in the financed MSRs. Any fair value change
recognized in the financed MSRs attributable to related cash flows assumptions would inherently have an inverse impam ct on the
carrying amount of the related excess spread financing.

Mortgatt gea Servicingn Righi ts Finaii ncingn
The Company had MSR financing liabia lity of $32 and $29 as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Refer to Note 2,
Signi ificant Accounting Policies, for furthet r discussion on MSR financing, and Note 17,7 Fair Value Measuremrr ents, for key
weighted-average inpun ts and assumptions used in the valuation of the MSR financing liabia lity.

Revenues - Service Related, net
The following tabla e sets fortht the items comprising total “revenues - service related, net”:

Year Ended December 31,
Revenues - Service Related, net 2024 2023 2022

Contractuatt lly specified servicing fees(1) $ 2,222 $ 1,700 $ 1,458
Other service-related income(1) 77 72 105
Incentive and modification income(1) 69 43 29
Servicing late fees(1) 128 89 76
Mark-to-market adjud stments - Servicing

MSR MTM 650 121 1,328
(Loss) on MSR hedging activities (517) (68) (332)
(Loss) gain on MSR and excess yield sales (9) 23 (3)
Reclassifications to reserve provision(2) (25) (33) (30)
Excess spread / MSR financing MTM (18) (18) (142)

Total mark-to-market adjud stmet nts - Servicing 81 25 821
Amortization, net of accretion

MSR amortization (923) (604) (779)
Excess spread accretion 37 41 86

Total amortization, net of accretion (886) (563) (693)
Originations service related fees(3) 86 61 98

Corporate/Xome service related fees 77 84 76

Other(4) (66) (71) (105)

Total revenues - Service Related, net $ 1,788 $ 1,440 $ 1,865
(1) Amounts include subservicing related revenues. Amounts also include servicing fees from loans sold with servicing retained of $759, $708 and $661 for

the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
(2) Reclassifications to reserve provision include the impamm ct of negative modeled cash flows which have been transferff rerr d to reserves on advances and other

receivabla es. The negative modeled cash flows relate to advances and other receivabla es associated with inactive and liquidated loans that are no longer part
of the MSR portfolff io.

(3) Amounts include fees collected from customers for originated loans and from other lenders for loans purchased through the correspondent channel, and
include loan application, underwriting, and other similar fees.

(4) Other represents the excess servicing fee that the Company pays to the counterparr rties under the excess spread financing arrarr ngements, portfolff io runoffff
and the payments made associated with MSR financing arrarr ngements.
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5. Advances and Other Receivables

Advances and other receivabla es, net consists of the following:

Advances and Other Receivables, Net December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Servicing advances, net of $6 and $13 purchase discount, respectively $ 1,410 $ 1,065
Receivabla es from agencies, investors and prior servicers, net off zero and $6 purchase
discount, respectively 47 101
Reserves (112) (170)

Total advances and other receivables, net $ 1,345 $ 996

The following tabla e sets fortht the activities of the servicing reserves for advances and othet r receivabla es:

Year Ended December 31,
Reserves for Advances and Other Receivables 2024 2023

Balance - beginning of year $ 170 $ 137
Provision, net(1) 24 40
Reclassifications(2) 24 27
Write-offsff (3) (106) (34)
Balance - end of year $ 112 $ 170

(1) The Company recorded a provision of $25 and $33 through the MTM adjud stments in “revenues - service related, net” in the consolidated statements of
operations during the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(2) Reclassifications represent required reserves provisioned within other balance sheet accounts as associated serviced loans become inactive or liquidate.
(3) Write-offsff represent balances removed from the servicing platform during the respective periods, including fully reserved balances related to third-party

settlements where further loss recovery of prior servicer errors is limited.

PPurchase Discii ount ffor Advadd nces and Othett r Receivablesll
The following tabla e sets fortht the activities of the purchase discount for advances and othet r receivabla es:

Year Ended December 31, 2024 Year Ended December 31, 2023

Purchase Discount for Advances and Other
Receivables Servicing Advances

Receivables from
Agencies, Investors
and Prior Servicers Servicing Advances

Receivables from
Agencies, Investors
and Prior Servicers

Balance - beginning of year $ 13 $ 6 $ 12 $ 7
Addition from acquisition(1) — — 5 —
Utilization of purchase discounts (7) (6) (4) (1)
Balance - end of year $ 6 $ — $ 13 $ 6
(1) In connection with the acquisition of Home Point in 2023, the Company recorded the acquired advances and other receivables at estimate fair value as of

the acquisition date, which resulted in a purchase discount of $5. Refer to Note 3, Acquisiii tions, for discussion of the Home Point acquisition.

Creditdd Loss for Advadd nces and Othett r Receivablesll
The following tabla e sets fortht the activities of the CECL allowance for advances and othet r receivabla es:

Year Ended December 31,

CECLAllowance forAdvances and Other Receivables 2024 2023

Balance - beginning of year $ 35 $ 36
Provision, net (2) 1
Write-offsff (1) (20) (2)
Balance - end of year(2) $ 13 $ 35
(1) Write-offsff represent balances removed from the servicing platform during the respective periods, including fully reserved balances related to third-party

settlements where further loss recovery of prior servicer errors is limited.
(2) As of Decembem r 31, 2024, $13 was included in reserves. As of December 31, 2023, $29 and $6 wew re included in reserves and purchase discount,

respectively.
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6. Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

Mortgaget Loans Held for Sale
The Company maintains a strategy of originating and purchasing residential mortgage loan products primarily for the purpose
of selling to GSEs or othet r third-party investors in the secondaryrr market on a servicing-retained basis. The Company purchases
originated loans through its correspondent channel and assists customers currently in the Company’s servicing portfolff io with
refinancing of loans or new home purchases through its direct-to-consumer channel. Generally,yy all newly originated mortgage
loans held for sale are securitized and transferff red to GSEs or delivered to third-party purchasers shortly afteff r origination on a
servicing-retained basis.

Mortgage loans held for sale are recorded at fair value as set forth below:

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Mortgage loans held for sale - UPB $ 2,187 $ 924
Mark-to-market adjud stment(1) 24 3

Total mortgage loans held for sale $ 2,211 $ 927
(1) The mark-to-market adjud stment includes net change in unrealized gain/loss, premium on correspondent loans and fees on direct-to-consumer loans. The

mark-to-market adjud stment is recorded in “revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for sale” in the consolidated statements of operations.

The following tabla e sets fortht the activities of mortgage loans held for sale:

Year Ended December 31,
Mortgage Loans Held for Sale 2024 2023

Balance - beginning of year $ 927 $ 893
Loans sold and loan payments received (23,412) (14,097)
Mortgage loans originated and purchased, net of fees 23,022 12,856
Repurchase of loans out of Ginnie Mae securitizations(1) 1,670 1,234
NNet change in unrealized gain on retained loans held for sale 5 44
NNet transferff s of mortgage loans held for sale(2) (1) (3)
Balance - end of year $ 2,211 $ 927
(1) The Company has the optional right to repurchase any individual loan in a Ginnie Mae securitization pool if that loan meets certain criteria, including

being delinquent greater than 90 days. The majoa rity of Ginnie Mae repurchased loans are repurchased in connection with loan modifications and loan
resolution activity,yy with the intent to re-pool into new Ginnie Mae securitizations upon re-performance of the loan or to otherwise sell to third-party
investors. Thereforff e, these loans are classified as held for sale.

(2) Amount reflects transferff s to other assets for loans transitioning into REO status and transferff s to advances and other receivables, net, for claims made on
certain government insurance mortgage loans. Transferff s out are net of transferff s in upon receipt of proceeds from an REO sale or claim filing.

For the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded a total realized gain of $80 and $33 from total sales
pproceeds of $23,460 and $13,877, respectively, on the sale of mortgage loans held for sale.

The Company accruerr s interest income as earner d and places loans on non-accruar l statustt afteff r any portion of principal or interest
has been delinquent for more than 90 days. Accruerr d interest is recorded as “interest income” in the consolidated statements of
operations.

The total UPB of mortgage loans held for sale on non-accruar l status was as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Mortgage Loans Held for Sale UPB Fair Value UPB Fair Value

NNon-accruarr l(1) $ 47 $ 38 $ 42 $ 36
(1) Non-accruarr l UPB includes $38 and $35 of UPB related to Ginnie Mae repurchased loans as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The total UPB of mortgage loans held for sale for which the Company has begun formal foreclosure proceedings was $22 and
$30 as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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7. Property and Equipment

The composition of property and equipment, net, and the corresponding ranges of estimated usefulff lives were as follows:

Property and Equipment, Net December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 Estimated Usefulff Life

Furniture, fixturtt es, and equipment $ 64 $ 57 3 - 5 years
Capia talized software costs 100 94 3 - 5 years
Softwatt re in development and other 21 8

Leasehold imprmm ovements 30 30
Lesser of 10 years or remaining
lease term

Long-term finance leases - computer equipment — 5 3 - 5 years
Property and equipment 215 194

Less: Accumulated depreciation (157) (141)
Property and equipment, net $ 58 $ 53

The Company recorded depreciation expense on property and equiq pment of $30 and $31 for the years ended Decembem r 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company has entered into various lease agreements for computer equiq pment, which are
classified as finance leases. See Note 8, Leases, for more information.

The Company recorded no impairment charges for property and equiq pment during the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023.

8. Leases

The Company’s leases primarily relate to offiff ce space and equipment, with remaining lease terms of generally less than 1 ye rar
to 6 years. Certain lease arrangements contain extension options, which typically range from 2 to 7 years, at the then fair mark tet
rental rates. As of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, operating lease ROU assets were $44 and $72, respectively, and corresponding
lease liabia lities were $57 and $91, respectively, which were included in “other assets,” and “payables and other liabia lities,”
respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company does not currently have any significff ant finance leases in which
it is the lessee.

Effeff ctive October 31, 2024, the Company early terminated an offiff ce lease agreement but continued using the offiff ce space until
Decembem r 31, 2024. The Company applied the lease modification guidance to account for the transaction and remeasured the
related ROU asset and lease liability as of the modification date. In addition, the ROU asset was amortized over the shortened
term of the lease, resulting in the recognition of $18 within “expenses - general and administrative” in the consolidated
statements of operations in 2024.

The tabla e below summarizes the Company’s net lease cost:

Year Ended December 31,
Net Lease Cost 2024 2023

Operating lease cost $ 37 $ 21
Sublu ease income (2) (3)
Total net lease cost $ 35 $ 18

The tabla e below summarizes other information related to the Company’s operating leases:

Year Ended December 31,
Operating Leases - Other Information 2024 2023

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 41 $ 19
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 6 8
Weighted average remaining lease term - operating leases, in years 4.4 5.0
Weighted average discount rate - operating leases 4.6 % 4.6 %
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Maturities of operating lease liabia lities as of Decembem r 31, 2024 are as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Operating Leases

2025 $ 16
2026 15
2027 13
2028 9
2029 8
Thereafter 2
Total future minimum lease payments 63

Less: imputm ed interest 6
Total operating lease liabia lities $ 57

9. Loans Subject to Repurchase from Ginnie Mae

Loans are sold to Ginnie Mae in conjunction with the issuance of mortgage-backed securities. The Company, as the issuer of
the mortgage-backed securities, has the unilateral right to repurchase any individual loan in a Ginnie Mae securitization pool if
that loan meets certain criteria, including payments not being received from customers for greater than 90 days. Once the
Company has the unilateral right to repurchase a delinquent loan, it has effeff ctively regained contrott l over the loan and
recognizes these rights to the loan on its consolidated balance sheets and establa ishes a corresponding repurchase liabia lity
regardless of the Company’s intention to repurchase the loan. The Company had loans subject to repurchase from Ginnie Mae
of $1,176 and $966 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which are included in both “other assets” and “payables
and othet r liabia lities” in the consolidated balance sheets.

10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwidd llii
The following tabla e presents changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the year ended
Decembem r 31, 2023. There were no changes in goodwill in 2024.

Year Ended December 31, 2023
Servicing Originations Corporate/Other(2) Total

Balance - beginning of year $ 80 $ 28 $ 12 $ 120
Addition from acquisitions(1) 5 — 16 21
Balance - end of year $ 85 $ 28 $ 28 $ 141
(1) The Company recorded goodwill in connection with the Roosevelt Transaction to both Servicing and Corporate/Other as discussed in Note 3,

Acquisii tions.
(2) The goodwill associated with Xome and Roosevelt is included in Corporate/Other.

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company assessed its reporting units and determined that no
impam irment of goodwill existed. Goodwill is recorded in “other assets” within the consolidated balance sheets.

Intangible Assets
The following tabla es present the composition of intangible assets:

December 31, 2024

Intangible Assets
Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Amount

Weighted Average
Remaining Life in
Years

Client relationships $ 197 $ (85) $ 112 4.6
Trade name 9 (7) 2 3.5
Other(1) 7 (2) 5 2.6

Total intangible assets $ 213 $ (94) $ 119 4.5
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December 31, 2023

Intangible Assets
Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Amount

Weighted Average
Remaining Life in
Years

Client relationships $ 96 $ (73) $ 23 4.7
Trade name 9 (7) 2 4.5
Other(1) 3 — 3 2.8

Total intangible assets $ 108 $ (80) $ 28 4.5
(1) Other intangible assets include assembled workforce and licenses.

Intangible assets are recorded in “other assets” within the consolidated balance sheets. In 2024, the Company recorded
intangible assets of $105 in connection with the Flagstar Transaction. In 2023, the Company recorded intangible assets of $23
and $4 in connection with the Rushmore Transaction and Roosevelt Transaction, respectively. See further discussion in Note 3,
Acquisitions.

The Company recognized $14 and $7 of amortization expense related to intangible assets during the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company expects to record amortization expense for existing amortizable intangible assets of
$29, $26, $26, $22, and $16 for each of the years ending December 31, 2025 to 2029. No impam irment on intangible assets was
recorded during the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023.

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments are used as part of the overall strategy to manage exposure to interest rate risks related to mortgage
loans held for sale and IRLCs (“the pipeline”) and the MSR portfolio. The Company economically hedges the pipeline
separately from the MSR portfolff io primarily using third-party derivative instruments. Such derivative instruments utilized by
the Company include IRLCs, LPCs, forward MBS and Treasury futures. The changes in value on the derivative instruments
associated with pipeline hedging are recorded in earnir ngs as a component of “revenues - net gain on mortgage loans held for
sale” on the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows, while changes in the value of
derivative instruments associated with the MSR portfolio fair value are recorded in “revenues - service related, net” on the
consolidated statements of operations and in “loss on MSR hedging activities” on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

The following tabla es provide the outstanding notional balances, fair values of outstanding positions and recorded gains/(losses)
for the derivative financial instruments. Gains/(losses) include botht realized and unrealized gains/(losses) of each derivative
financial instrument.

December 31, 2024
Year Ended
December 31, 2024

Derivative Financial Instruments
Expiration
Dates

Outstanding
Notional

Fair
Value Gains/(Losses)

Assets
Mortgage loans held for sale

Loan sale commitments 2025 $ 900 $ 12 $ 1
Derivative financial instruments

Forward MBS trades 2025 $ 2,871 $ 18 $ 232
IRLCs 2025 691 22 1
LPCs 2025 511 6 3
Treasury futures 2024 — — 98

Total derivative financial
instruments - assets $ 4,073 $ 46 $ 334

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Forward MBS trades 2025 $ 6,816 $ 95 $ (424)
Treasury futures 2025 3,810 59 (379)
LPCs 2025 1,013 7 (7)
IRLCs 2025 39 — —

Total derivative financial
instruments - liabilities $ 11,678 $ 161 $ (810)
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December 31, 2023
Year Ended
December 31, 2023

Derivative Financial Instruments
Expiration
Dates

Outstanding
Notional

Fair
Value Gains/(Losses)

Assets
Mortgage loans held for sale

Loan sale commitments 2024 $ 337 $ 11 $ 1
Derivative financial instruments

Treasury futures 2024 $ 2,634 $ 113 $ 113
Forward MBS trades 2024 2,365 22 155
IRLCs 2024 584 21 (1)
LPCs 2024 361 3 2

Total derivative financial
instruments - assets $ 5,944 $ 159 $ 269

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Forward MBS trades 2024 $ 1,049 $ 9 $ (126)
Treasury futures 2024 80 — (196)
LPCs 2024 41 — 1
IRLCs 2024 1 — —

Total derivative financial
instruments - liabilities $ 1,171 $ 9 $ (321)

As of Decembem r 31, 2024, the Company held $216 and $3 in collateral deposits and collateral obligations on derivative
instruments, respectively. As of Decembem r 31, 2023, the Company held $8 and $56 in collateral deposits and collateral
obligations on derivative instruments, respectively. Collateral deposits and collateral obligations are recorded in “other assets”
and “payables and othet r liabia lities,” respectively, in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, and are included in “net cash
attributable to operating activities” within the consolidated statements of cash flows. The Company does not offsff et fair value
amounts recognized for derivative instruments with amounts collected or deposited on derivative instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets.

12. Indebtedness

Advadd nce, Warehouse and MSRSS Facilitieii s

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Maturity
Date Collateral

Capacity
Amount Outstanding

Collateral
Pledged Outstanding

Collateral
Pledged

Advance Facilities

advance facility(1) Jul 2026
Servicing advance
receivabla es $ 500 $ 285 $ 394 $ — $ —

$500 advance facility Aug 2026
Servicing advance
receivabla es 500 423 475 250 326

$350 advance facility Oct 2026
Servicing advance
receivabla es 350 119 151 132 169

$300 advance facility(2) NNov 2024
Servicing advance
receivabla es 300 — — 273 364

$50 advance facilitytt (3) Jul 2025
Servicing advance
receivabla es 50 22 40 27 49

Advance facilities principal amount 849 1,060 682 908
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Maturity
Date Collateral

Capacity
Amount Outstanding

Collateral
Pledged Outstanding

Collateral
Pledged

Warehouse Facilities
$1,500 Warehouse Facility Jun 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 1,500 68 71 107 104
$1,200 Warehouse Facility(4) Sep 2026 Mortgage loans or MBS 1,200 131 148 158 177
$750 Warehouse Facility Apr 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 750 112 140 137 176
$750 Warehouse Facility Oct 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 750 489 530 155 166
$600 Warehouse Facility Aug 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 600 368 381 73 75
$500 Warehouse Facility NNov 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 500 247 256 — —
$500 Warehouse Facility Jun 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 500 90 99 72 78
$250 Warehouse Facility NNov 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 250 238 253 — —
$200 Warehouse Facility Dec 2026 Mortgage loans or MBS 200 112 123 82 84
$200 Warehouse Facility Apr 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 200 — — 12 21
$200 Warehouse Facility(3) Jul 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 200 105 105 1 1
$100 Warehouse Facility Apr 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 100 56 62 25 33
$100 Warehouse Facility Apr 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 100 — — — —
$1Warehouse Facility Dec 2025 Mortgage loans or MBS 1 — — — —

Warehouse facilities principal amount 2,016 2,168 822 915

MSR Facilities
$1,750 Warehouse Facility Apr 2026 MSR 1,750 950 2,669 980 1,455
$1,500 Warehouse Facility(1) Jul 2026 MSR 1,500 475 2,607 — —
$1,450 Warehouse Facility(2) NNov 2024 MSR 1,450 — — 300 2,164
$950 Warehouse Facility(4) Sep 2026 MSR 950 550 1,711 545 1,306
$750 Warehouse Facility Jul 2026 MSR 750 670 1,066 405 655
$500 Warehouse Facility Jun 2026 MSR 500 250 519 — —
$500 Warehouse Facility Jul 2026 MSR 500 330 629 — —
$500 Warehouse Facility Apr 2026 MSR 500 250 781 305 634
$500 Warehouse Facility Jun 2026 MSR 500 150 726 250 677
$50 Warehouse Facility NNov 2025 MSR 50 25 80 29 67

MSR facilities principal amount 3,650 10,788 2,814 6,958

Advance, warehouse and MSR facilities principal amount 6,515 $ 14,016 4,318 $ 8,781
Unamortized debt issuance costs (20) (16)
Total advance, warehouse and MSR facilities, net $ 6,495 $ 4,302
(1) Total capacity for this facility is $2,000, of which $500 and $1,500 are internally allocated for advance financing and MSR financing, respectively;

capacity is fully fungible and is not restricted by these allocations.
(2) This facility was terminated in July 2024.
(3) Total capacity for this facility is $200, of which $50 is a sublu imit for advance financing.
(4) The capacity amount for this facility is $1,200, of which $950 is a sublimit for MSR financing.

The weighted average interest rate for advance facilities was 7.5% and 7.6% for the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. The weighted average interest rate for warehouse and MSR facilities was 7.6% for the years ended Decembem r 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Unsecured Senior Notes
Unsecured senior notes consist of the following:

Unsecured Senior Notes December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

$1,000 face value, 7.125% interest rate payabla e semi-annually,yy due Februar ry 2032(1) $ 1,000 $ —
$850 face value, 5.500% interest rate payabla e semi-annually, due August 2028 850 850
$750 face value, 6.500% interest rate payabla e semi-annually, due August 2029(2) 750 —
$650 face value, 5.125% interest rate payabla e semi-annually, due Decembem r 2030 650 650
$600 face value, 6.000% interest rate payabla e semi-annually, due January 2027 600 600
$600 face value, 5.750% interest rate payabla e semi-annually, due November 2031 600 600
$550 face value, 5.000% interest rate payabla e semi-annually, due Februarr ry 2026 500 500

Unsecured senior notes principal amount 4,950 3,200
Purchase discount and unamortized debt issuance costs (59) (49)

Unsecured senior notes, net $ 4,891 $ 3,151
(1) In Februarr ry 2024, the Company completed the offeff ring of $1,000 unsecured senior notes due 2032 (the “2032 Notes”) and used the net proceeds from the

offeff ring to repay a portion of the amounts outstanding on its MSR facilities.
(2) In August 2024, the Company completed the offeff ring of $750 unsecured senior notes due 2029 (the “2029 Notes”) and used the net proceeds from the

offeff ring to repay a portion of the amounts outstanding on its MSR facilities.

The ratios included in the indenturt es for the unsecured senior notes are incurrence-based compared to the customary ratio
covenants that are ofteff n found in credit agreements that require a company to maintain a certain ratio. The incurrence-based
covenants limit the issuer(s) and restrit cted subsu idiaries ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, make certain
investments, create liens, consolidate, merge or sell subsu tantially all of their assets or enter into certain transactions with
affiff liates. The indentures contain certain events of default, including (subject, in some cases, to customary cure periods and
materiality thresholds) defaults based on (i) the failure to make payments under the applicable indenturt e when due, (ii) breach
of covenants, (iii) cross-defaults to certain othet r indebtedness, (iv) certain bankrupr tcy or insolvency events, (v) material
judgments and (vi) invalidity of material guarantees.

The indenturt es provide that on or before certain fixed dates, the Company may redeem up to 40% of the aggregate principal
amount of the unsecured senior notes with the net proceeds of certain equity offeff rings at fixed redemption prices, plus accruerr d
and unpaid interest, to the redemption dates, subju ect to compliance with certain conditions. In addition, the Company may
redeem all or a portion of the unsecured senior notes at any time on or afteff r certain fixed dates at the applicable redemption
pprices set fortht in the indenturt es plus accrued and unpan id interest, to the redemption dates. No notes were repurchased or
redeemed during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

As of Decembem r 31, 2024, the expected maturities of the Company’s unsecured senior notes based on contratt ctuat l maturities are
as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2025 $ —
2026 500
2027 600
2028 850
2029 750
Thereafter 2,250

Total unsecured senior notes principal amount $ 4,950

Finaii ncial Covenantstt
The Company’s credit facilities contain various financial covenants, which primarily relate to required tangible net wortht
amounts, liquiq dity reserves, leverage requirements, and profitff ability requirements, which are measured at Nationstar Mortgage
LLC, the Company’s primary operating subsu idiary,yy and Cypryy ess Loan Servicing LLC. The Company was in compliance with its
required financial covenants as of Decembem r 31, 2024.

13. Securitizations and Financings

Variablell Interest Entities
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into various typey s of on- and off-ff balance sheet transactions with special
ppurpose entities (“SPEs”) determined to be VIEs, which primarily consist of securitization trusrr ts establa ished for a limitedd
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ppurpose. Generally,yy these SPEs are formed for the purpose of securitization transactions in which the Company transferff s assets
to a SPE, which then issues to investors various forms of debt obligations suppu orted by those assets.

The Company has determined that the SPEs created in connection with certain advance facilities trusr ts should be consolidated
as the Company is the primary beneficiaryr of each of these entities.

A summaryrr of the assets and liabilities of the Company’s transactions with VIEs included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements is presented below:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Consolidated Transactions with VIEs

Transfersff
Accounted for as
Secured
Borrowings

Transfersff
Accounted for as
Secured
Borrowings

Assets
Restricted cash $ 188 $ 111
Advances and other receivabla es, net 1,020 495

Total assets $ 1,208 $ 606

Liabilities
Advance facilities, net(1) $ 824 $ 382
MSR facilities, net(1) 469 —
Payabla es and other liabia lities 3 1

Total liabia lities $ 1,296 $ 383
(1(1)) Refer to advance and MSR facilities in Note 12, Indebtednedd ss, for additional information.

The following table shows a summary of the outstanding collateral and certificate balances for securitization trusrr ts for which
the Company was the transferff or, including any retained beneficial interests and MSRs, that were not consolidated by the
Company:

Unconsolidated Securitization Trusts December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Total collateral balances - UPB $ 798 $ 881
Total certificff ate balances $ 773 $ 849

The Company has not retained any variable interests in the unconsolidated securitization trusrr ts that were outstanding as of
Decembem r 31, 2024, and 2023, and thereforff e does not have a significff ant exposure to loss related to these unconsolidated VIEs.

A summary of mortgage loans transferff rerr d by the Company to unconsolidated securitization trusrr ts that are 60 days or more past
due are presented below:

Principal Amount of Transferrff ed Loans 60 Days or More Past Due December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Unconsolidated securitization trusrr ts $ 81 $ 91

14. Stockholders' Equity and Employee Benefit Plans

Share-based awards under the 2019 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2019 Plan”) include (i) restricted stock units (“RSUs”)
granted to emplm oyees of the Company, consultants, and non-emplmm oyee directors and (ii) performance stock units (“PSUs”)
granted to certain executive offiff cers.

RRestritt ctedtt Stoctt k Unitstt
The RSUs are valued at the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date as defined in the 2019 Plan.
The stock awards for emplm oyees generally vest in equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the awards,
provided that the participant remains continuously emplm oyed with the Company during that time. If the participant’s
emplm oyment has terminated by reason of retirement, or upon death or disabia lity,yy the unvested shares of an award will vest. The
stock awards for non-employee directors generally vest the earlier of (a) the first anniversary of the grant date or (b) the date of
the next annual stockholders meeting following the grant date. Any forfeiturtt e of restricted stock awards before vesting has been
achieved, results in a reduction in the balance of outstanding common shares.
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PPerforff marr nce Stoctt k Unitstt
The PSUs are valued at the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date as defined in the 2019 Plan.

In March 2024, certain executives of the Company were granted 0.08 million PSUs (the “2024 PSUs”). In March 2023 andd
NNovember 2023, certain executives of the Company were granted 0.1 million and 0.2 million PSUs (the “2023 PSUs”),
respectively. 50% of the 2024 and 2023 PSUs are eligible to vest in an amount between 0% to 200% of a target award based non
achievement of relative total shareholder return and the remaining 50% are eligible to vest in an amount between 0% to 200%
of a target award based on achievement of annualized tangible book value growth. The 2024 and 2023 PSUs vest over a period
of three to five years and are settled into shares of the Company’s common stock.

In March 2022, certain executives of the Company were granted 0.1 million PSUs (the “2022 PSUs”). The 2022 PSUs are
eligible to vest and be settled into shares of common stock in an amount between 0% and 200% of a target award based non
achievement of total shareholder return perforff mance vesting criteria over a period of three years.

Share-Based AAward Activities
The following tabla e summarizes the Company’s share-based awards:

Share-based Awards
Shares (or Units)
(in thousands)

Weighted-AveAA rage
Grant Date Fair
Value, per Share (or
Unit)

Share-based awards outstanding as of December 31, 2023 2,113 $ 41.73
Granted 642 74.58
Vested (1,122) 33.05
Forfeited (50) 55.23
Share-based awards outstanding as of December 31, 2024 1,583 58.32

The Company recorded $37, $28 and $29 of expenses related to share-based awards during the years ended Decembem r 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. As of December 31, 2024, unrecognized compensation expense totaled $46 related to non-
vested stock award payments that are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.2 years.

The Company is eligible to receive a tax benefit when the vesting date fair value of an award exceeds the value used to
recognize compensation expense at the date of grant. The excess tax benefit resulting from tax deductions in excess of the
compensation cost recognized by the Company was $13, $12 and $11 for the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Emplm oyll ee Benefie tii Planll s
The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan (401(k) plan) that covers all full-time emplm oyees. The Company matches
100% of participant contrit butions up to 2% of their total eligible annual base compensation and matches 50% of contributions
for the next 4% of each participant’s total eligible annual base compensation. Matching contritt butions by the Company totaled
$16, $11 and $18 for the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 respectively.

15. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share of common stock is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average numbem r of common
stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share of common stock is computed by dividing net income by the
sum of the weighted average numbem r of shares of common stock and any dilutive securities outstanding during the period. The
Company’s potentially dilutive securities are share-based awards. The Company applies the treasuryr stock method to determine
the dilutive weighted average numbem r of shares of common stock outstanding based on the outstanding share-based awards. As
of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had 10 million preferff red shares authorized at par value of $0.00001 per share,
with zero shares issued and outstanding and aggregate liquidation preferff ence of zero dollars.
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The following tabla e sets fortht the computation of basic and diluted net income per common share (amounts in millions, except
per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,
Computation of Earnings Per Share 2024 2023 2022

NNet income $ 669 $ 500 $ 923

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding (in
thousands):
Basic 64,322 67,070 71,885
Dilutive effeff ct of stock awards 1,361 1,479 1,933
Diluted 65,683 68,549 73,818

Earnings per common share
Basic $ 10.40 $ 7.46 $ 12.84
Diluted $ 10.19 $ 7.30 $ 12.50

16. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
Total Income Tax Expense 2024 2023 2022
Current Income Taxes
Federal $ 1 $ 3 $ (6)
State (10) 16 8

Total current income taxes (9) 19 2

Deferred Income Taxes
Federal 186 110 245
State 55 25 44

Total deferred income taxes 241 135 289
Total income tax expense $ 232 $ 154 $ 291

The following tabla e presents a reconciliation of the income tax provision computed at the U.S. federal statutt oryrr tax rate to the
actuat l effeff ctive tax rate:

Year Ended December 31,

Reconciliation of the Income Tax Provision 2024 2023 2022
Tax Expense at Federal Statutoryr Rate $ 189 $ 137 $ 255
Effeff ct of:ff

State taxes, net of federal benefit 36 32 39
Nondeducd tible executive compensation 13 11 8
Share based compensation (10) (9) (9)
Bargain purchase gain(1) 1 (20) —
Other, net 3 3 (2)

Total income tax expense $ 232 $ 154 $ 291
(1) Amount is related to the bargain purchase gain recorded in connection with the Home Point Acquisition. Refer to Note 3, Acquisiii tions, for further details.
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Temporary differff ences and carryforwards that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabia lities are comprised of the following:

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets
Effeff ct of:ff

Goodwill and intangible assets $ 470 $ 585
Loss carryrr forwards (fedff eral, state & capital) 121 85
Loss reserves 84 101
Accruarr ls 15 20
Lease liabia lity 14 22
Depreciation and amortization, net 10 8
Other, net 18 12

Total deferred tax assets 732 833

Deferred Tax Liabilities
MSR amortization and mark-to-market, net (428) (282)
Other investment assets (53) (53)
Right-of-use assets (11) (18)
Prepaid assets — (1)

Total deferred tax liabilities (492) (354)
Valuation allowance (10) (7)
Deferred tax assets, net(1) $ 230 $ 472
(1) The Company elected to account for the Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income (“GILTI”) tax expense in the period in which it is incurred. As a result, no

deferred tax impamm ct of GILTI has been provided in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has federal NOL carryr forwards (pre-tax) of $521 and $354 as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
Company believes it is more likely than not that its deferred tax assets will be realized except for certain federal Code Section
382 limited NOLs that begin to expire with the 2027 tax year, if unused, and state NOL carryforwards valued at $10 that began
to expire with the 2024 tax year, if unused. Accordingly, the Company has recorded a federal valuation allowance of $7 for botht
years as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 related to these NOL carryforwards. The state valuation allowance was immaterial as
of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023. The Company does not expect any future tax loss limitations under Sections 382 and 384 that
would impam ct its utilization of remaining federal or state NOL carryforwards.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and numerous U.S. state jurisdictions. As of
Decembem r 31, 2024, the Company is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service for tax years 2018, 2019, and
2020. The years open to examination by federal, state and local government authorities vary by jurisdiction.

Below is a reconciliation of the changes in the federal and state uncertain tax position balances, exclusive of interest and
penalties.

Year Ended December 31,
Unrecognized Tax Benefits (exclusive of interest and penalties) 2024 2023 2022

Balance - beginning of year $ 6 $ — $ —
Increases in tax positions of prior years 2 6 —
Decreases in tax positions as a result of lapsa es in statutt e (1) — —
Settlements (1) — —
Balance - end of year $ 6 $ 6 $ —

The total amount of uncertain tax positions that, if recognized, would impam ct the effeff ctive income tax rate were $7, $7 and zero
as of Decembem r 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. For the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company
recorded $1, $1 and zero, respectively, in interest and penalties as a component of income tax expense in the consolidated
statements of operations. The Company recognized $2 and $1 of interest and/ or penalties in “payables and othet r liabia lities” in
the consolidated balance sheet as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company does not anticipate that any
adjud stments relating to federal or state tax examinations will result in material changes to the consolidated financial statements.
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17. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and should be determined based on the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liabia lity. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, a three-tiered fair value hierarchy has been establa ished based on the level of
observarr ble inputs used in the measurement of fair value (e.g., Level 1 representing quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in an active market; Level 2 representing values using observable inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1; and Level 3 representing estimated values based on significff ant unobservable inputn s).

The following describes the methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating fair values:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash (Level 1) – The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets
approximates fair value.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale (Level 2 and Level 3) – The Company originates mortgage loans in the U.S. that it intends to
sell into Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae (collectively, the “Agencies”) MBS. Additionally,yy the Company holds
mortgage loans that it intends to sell into the secondaryrr markets via whole loan sales or securitizations. The Company measures
newly originated prime residential mortgage loans held for sale at fair value.

Newly originated mortgage loans held for sale are typically pooled together and sold into certain exit markets, depending upon
underlying attributes of the loan, such as agency eligibility,yy product type, interest rate, and credit quality. Those loans are valued
on a recurring basis using a market approach by utilizing either: (i) the fair value of securities backed by similar mortgage
loans, adjud sted for certain factors to approximate the fair value of a whole mortgage loan, including the value attributable to
mortgage servicing and credit risk, (ii) current commitments to purchase loans or (iii) recent observable market trades for
similar loans, adjud sted for credit risk and other individual loan characteristics. As these prices are primarily derived from
market observable inputn s, the Company classifies these valuations as Level 2 in the fair value disclosures.

The Company may also purchase loans out of a Ginnie Mae securitization pool if that loan meets certain criteria, including
being delinquent greater than 90 days. The Company has elected to carryrr these loans at fair value on a recurring basis. These
loans are valued on a recurring basis using a market approach similar to newly originated loans as mentioned above, with
adjud stments for assumptions including fail rate, partial claim rate and modification statust . As these prices are primarily derived
from market observable inputn s, the Company classifies these valuations as Level 2 in the fair value disclosures.

The Company may also repurchase loans that are unabla e to be securitized and sold, and fair value is based upon recent market
trades for similar loans adjud sted for delinquency rates or broker pricing. These loans are valued on a recurring basis and as the
prices used are not primarily derived from market observabla e inputn s, the Company classifies these valuations as Level 3 in the
fair value disclosures.

From time to time, the Company may acquire mortgage loans held for sale from various securitization trusrr ts for which it acts as
servicer through the exercise of various clean-upu call options as permitted through the respective pooling and servicing
agreements. The Company has elected to account for these loans at fair value on a recurring basis and classifies these valuations
as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures.

See Note 6, Mortgagt e Loans Held for Sale, for more information.

Mortgage Servicing Rights – Fair Value (Level 3) – The Company estimates the fair value of its MSRs on a recurring basis
using a process that combines the use of a discounted cash flow model and analysis of current market data to arrive at an
estimate of fair value. Beginning in the second quarter of 2023, the Company valued MSRs using a stochastic option adjud sted
spread (OAS) instead of a static discount rate. OAS is the incremental spread added to the risk-freff e rate to reflect embem dded
(prepayment) optionality and other risk inherent in the MSRs to discount cash flows. The cash flow assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow model incorporate prepayment speeds, OAS, costs to service, delinquencies, ancillaryrr revenues, recapture
rates and other assumptions, with the key assumptions being mortgage prepayment speeds, OAS, and cost to service. The cash
flow assumptions are generated and applied based on collateral stratificff ations including producd t type, remittance type,
geography,yy delinquency and coupon dispersion. These assumptions require the use of judgment by the Company and can have a
significant impam ct on the fair value of the MSRs. Quarterly, management obtains third-party valuations to assess the
reasonableness of the fair value calculations provided by the internal cash flow model. Because of the nature of the valuation
inputs, the Company classifies these valuations as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures. See Note 4, Mortgat ge Servicing Righi ts
and Related Liabilities, for more information.

Advances and Other Receivables, Net (Level 3) - Advances and other receivabla es, net are valued at their net realizable value
afteff r taking into consideration the reserves. Advances have no stated maturity. Their net realizable value approximates fair
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value as the net present value based on discounted cash flow is not materially differff ent from the net realizable value. See Note
5, Advadd nces and Other Receivables, for more information.

Equity Investments (Level 1 and Level 3) – The fair value of the common stock received from the previous sale of the title
and field services businesses is measured quarterly based on the minimum exit value, which was establa ished at the time of the
transaction, and observabla e market indicators. Because of the nature of the unobservable inputs, the Company classifies these
securities as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures.

The fair value of the common stock received from the previous sale of the valuation business is measured using the closing
price reported on an active market in which the securities are traded. As the fair value is based on market observabla e inputs, the
Company classifies these securities as Level 1 in the fair value disclosures.

Derivative Financial Instruments (Level 2 and Level 3) – The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial
instruments as part of its hedging strategy and measures these instruments at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated
balance sheets. These derivatives are exchange-traded or traded within highly active dealer markets. In order to determine the
fair value of these instruments, the Company utilizes the exchange price or dealer market price for the particular derivative
contratt ct; thereforff e, these contracts are classified as Level 2. In addition, the Company enters into IRLCs and LPCs with
prospective customers and othet r loan originators. IRLCs and LPCs are carried at fair value primarily based on secondary
market prices for underlying mortgage loans, which is observabla e data, with adjud stments made to such observable data for the
inherent value of servicing, which is an unobservable inpun t. The fair value is also subju ect to adjud stments for the estimated pull-
through rate. The impam ct of the unobservable input to the overall valuation of IRLCs and LPCs is significant and results in a
classification of Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The Company adjud sts the outstanding IRLCs with prospective customers
based on an expectation that it will be exercised, and the loan will be funded. The Company has entered into Treasury futures
and swap futures contracts as part of its hedging strategy. The futures contrat cts are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and classified as Level 2 in the fair value disclosures as the valuation is based on market observable data. Derivative financial
instruments are recorded in “other assets” and “payables and othet r liabia lities” within the consolidated balance sheets. See Note
11, Derivative Financial Instrut mentstt , for more information.

Loans Subject to Repurchase from Ginnie Mae (Level 2) –As the Company has the unilateral right to repurchase these loans
at the unpaid principal balance, the carrying amount, which is based on the unpaid principal balance, approximates fair value.
See Note 9, Loans Subjeb ct to Repue rchase fromrr Ginnie Mae, for more information.

Advance Facilities andWarehouse Facilities (Level 2) –As the underlying warehouse and advance finance facilities bear
interest at a rate that is periodically adjud sted based on a market index, the carrying amount reported on the consolidated balance
sheets approximates fair value. See Note 12, Indebtednedd ss, for more information.

Unsecured Senior Notes (Level 2) – The fair value of unsecured senior notes, which are carried at amortized cost, is based on
quoted market prices in a market with limited trading activity. See Note 12, Indebtednedd ss, for more information.

Excess Spread Financing (Level 3) – The Company estimates fair value on a recurring basis based on the present value of
future expected discounted cash flows with the discount rate approximating current market value for similar financial
instruments. Beginning in the second quarter of 2023, the Company valued excess spread financing using a stochastic OAS
instead of a static discount rate. The cash flow assumptions used in the model are based on various factors, with the key
assumptions being mortgage prepayment speeds and OAS. Quarterly, management obtains a third-party valuation to assess the
reasonableness of the fair value calculations provided by the internal cash flow model. As these prices are derived from a
combination of internally developed valuation models and quoted market prices based on the value of the underlying MSRs, the
Company classifies these valuations as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures. Excess spread financing is recorded in MSR related
liabilities within the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 4, Mortgat ge Servicing Righti stt and Related Liabilities, for more
information.

Mortgage Servicing Rights Financing Liability (Level 3) - The Company estimates fair value on a recurring basis based on
the present value of future expected discounted cash flows with the discount rate approximating current market value for
similar financial instruments. The cash flow assumptions and prepayment assumptions used in the model are based on various
factors, with the key assumptions being advance financing rates and annual advance recovery rates. As these assumptions are
derived from internally developed valuation models based on the value of the underlying MSRs, the Company classifies these
valuations as Level 3 in the fair value disclosures. Mortgage servicing rights financing liabia lity is recorded in MSR related
liabia lities within the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 4, Mortgat ge Servicing Righti stt and Related Liabilities, for more
information.



85 Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc. - 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K

The following table presents the estimated carrying amount and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments and other
assets and liabia lities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

December 31, 2024

Total Fair Value
Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value - Recurring Basis Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets
Mortgage loans held for sale $ 2,211 $ — $ 2,151 $ 60
Mortgage servicing rights 11,736 — — 11,736
Equiq ty investments 9 1 — 8
Derivative financial instruments:

IRLCs 22 — — 22
Forward MBS trades 18 — 18 —

LPCs 6 — — 6

abilities
Derivative financial instruments:

Forward MBS trades 95 — 95 —
Treasury futures 59 — 59 —
LPCs 7 — — 7

Mortgage servicing rights financing 32 — — 32
Excess spread financing 386 — — 386

December 31, 2023

Total Fair Value
Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value - Recurring Basis Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets
Mortgage loans held for sale $ 927 $ — $ 846 $ 81
Mortgage servicing rights 9,090 — — 9,090
Equiq ty investments 9 1 — 8
Derivative financial instruments:

Treasury futures 113 — 113 —

Forward MBS trades 22 — 22 —

IRLCs 21 — — 21
LPCs 3 — — 3

abilities
Derivative financial instruments:

Forward MBS trades 9 — 9 —
Mortgage servicing rights financing 29 — — 29
Excess spread financing 437 — — 437
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The tabla es below set forth the activities for all of the Company’s Level 3 assets and liabia lities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis:

Year Ended December 31, 2024

Assets Liabilities

Fair Value - Level 3 Assets and
Liabilities

Mortgage
servicing rights

Mortgage loans
held for sale

Equity
investments IRLCs

Excess spread
financing

Mortgage
servicing rights
financing

Balance - beginning of year $ 9,090 $ 81 $ 8 $ 21 $ 437 $ 29
Changes in fair value included
in earnir ngs (273) 5 — 1 15 3
Purchases/additions(1) 3,004 130 — — — —
Issuances 460 — — — — —
Sales/dispositions(1) (583) (153) — — — —
Repayments — (2) — — (2) —
Settlements — — — — (64) —

Other changes 38 (1) — — — —
Balance - end of year $ 11,736 $ 60 $ 8 $ 22 $ 386 $ 32

Year Ended December 31, 2023
Assets Liabilities

Fair Value - Level 3 Assets and
Liabilities

Mortgage
servicing rights

Mortgage loans
held for sale

Equity
investments IRLCs

Excess spread
financing

Mortgage
servicing rights
financing

Balance - beginning of year $ 6,654 $ 74 $ 45 $ 22 $ 509 $ 19
Changes in fair value
included in earnings (483) 18 (37) (1) 8 10
Purchases/additions(1) 3,189 180 — — — —
Issuances 273 — — — — —
Sales/dispositions(2) (573) (189) — — — —
Repayments — (6) — — (9) —
Settlements — — — — (71) —
Other changes 30 4 — — — —
Balance - end of year $ 9,090 $ 81 $ 8 $ 21 $ 437 $ 29
(1) Additions for mortgages loans held for sale include loans that are purchased or transferff red in.
(2) Dispositions for mortgage loans held for sales include loans that are sold or transferff rerr d out.

As of Decembem r 31, 2024, the Company held $6 and $7 in LPCs assets and LPCs liabia lities, respectively. As of Decembem r 31,
2023, the Company had immaterial LPCs assets and liabia lities. No transferff s were made in or out of Level 3 fair value assets for
the Company during the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023.
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The tabla es below present the quantitative information for significff ant unobservable inpun ts used in the fair value measurement of
Level 3 assets and liabia lities:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Range Weighted
Ave ge

Range Weighted
AverageLevel 3 Inputs Min Max MAverage in Max

MSR(1)

Option adjud sted spread(2) 6.9 % 12.2 % 7.6 % 6.9 % 12.3 % 8.0 %
Prepayment speed 6.8 % 9.3 % 7.7 % 6.8 % 9.3 % 7.5 %
Cost to service per loan(3) $ 45 $ 114 $ 58 $ 56 $ 160 $ 80
Average lifeff (4) 7.8 years 7.9 years

Mortgage loans held for sale
Market pricing 45.0 % 97.3 % 80.1 % 45.0 % 103.4 % 81.1 %

IRLCs
Value of servicing (reflected as a
percentage of loan commitment) — % 3.6 % 1.7 % 1.1 % 3.5 % 1.9 %

Excess spread financing(1)

Option adjud sted spread(2) 6.9 % 12.3 % 8.7 % 7.0 % 12.3 % 8.8 %
Prepayment speed 7.2 % 7.6 % 7.5 % 7.7 % 9.1 % 8.4 %
Average lifeff (4) 6.8 years 6.7 years

Mortgage servicing rights financing
Advance financing and counterparty
fee rates 7.2 % 9.0 % 8.5 % 6.6 % 9.2 % 7.6 %
Annual advance recovery rates 14.9 % 16.8 % 16.0 % 12.2 % 14.8 % 13.0 %

(1) The inputs are weighted by investor.
(2) OAS represents incremental spread above a risk-freff e rate (one-month SOFR), which is an observable input.
(3) Presented in whole dollar amounts.
(4) Average lifeff is included for informational purposrr es.

The tabla es below present a summary of the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instrut ments
not carried at fair value:

December 31, 2024

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value
Financial Instruments Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 753 $ 753 $ — $ —
Restricted cash 220 220 — —
Advances and other receivabla es, net 1,345 — — 1,345
Loans subju ect to repurchase from
Ginnie Mae 1,176 — 1,176 —

Financial liabilities
Unsecured senior notes, net 4,891 — 4,862 —
Advance, warehouse and MSR
facilities, net 6,495 — 6,515 —
Liability for loans subju ect to repurchase
from Ginnie Mae 1,176 — 1,176 —
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December 31, 2023

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value
Financial Instruments Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 571 $ 571 $ — $ —
Restricted cash 169 169 — —
Advances and other receivabla es, net 996 — — 996
Loans subju ect to repurchase from
Ginnie Mae 966 — 966 —

Financial liabilities
Unsecured senior notes, net 3,151 — 3,056 —

Advance, warehouse and MSR
facilities, net 4,302 — 4,318 —
Liability for loans subju ect to repurchase
from Ginnie Mae 966 — 966 —

18. Capital Requirements

Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae and certain private labea l mortgage investors require the Company to maintain minimum
net worth (“capital”) requirements, as specified in the respective selling and servicing agreements. In addition, these investors
may require capital ratios in excess of the stated requirements to approve large servicing transferff s. To the extent that these
requirements are not met, the Company’s secondary market investors may utilize a range of remedies ranging from sanctions,
suspension or ultimately termination of the Company’s selling and servicing agreements, which would prohibit the Company
from further originating or securitizing these specific types of mortgage loans or being an approved servicer. The Company’s
various capital requirements related to its outstanding selling and servicing agreements are measured based on the Company’s
operating subsidiary,yy Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as well as Cypress Loan Servicing LLC. As of Decembem r 31, 2024, the
Company was in compliance with its selling and servicing capital requirements.

19. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigii atiott n and Regue latory
The Company and its subsu idiaries are routinely and currently involved in a significff ant number of legal proceedings, including,
but not limited to, judicial, arbir tration, regulatory and governmrr ental proceedings related to matters that arise in connection with
the conducd t of the Company’s business. The legal proceedings are at varying stages of adjud dication, arbir tration or investigation
and are generally based on alleged violations of consumer protection, securities, emplm oyment, contract, tort, common law fraud
and othet r numerous laws, including, without limitation, the Equaq l Credit Opportunity Act, Fair Debt Collection Practices Act,
Fair Credit Reporting Act, Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, Real Estate Settlement Procedurd es Act, National Housing Act,
Homeowners Protection Act, Service Member’s Civil Relief Act, Telephone Consumer Protection Act, Trutr ht in Lending Act,
Financial Instituttt ions Reform, Recovery,yy and Enforcement Act of 1989, unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices in
violation of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Securities Act of 1933, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Home Mortgage
Disclosure Act, Title 11 of the United States Code (aka the “Bankruprr tcy Code”), False Claims Act and the CARESAct.

In addition, along with othet rs in its industry, the Company is subju ect to repurchase and indemnificff ation claims and may
continue to receive claims in the future, regarding alleged breaches of representations and warranties relating to the sale of
mortgage loans, the placement of mortgage loans into securitization trusrr ts or the servicing of mortgage loans securitizations.
The Company is also subju ect to legal actions or proceedings related to loss sharing and indemnificff ation provisions of its various
acquisitions. Certain of the pending or threatened legal proceedings include claims for subsu tantial compensatory,yy punitive and/
or statutt ory damages or claims for an indeterminate amount of damages.

On November 3, 2023, a putative class action lawsuit was filed against the Company, captioned Cabea zas v. Mr. Cooper Group,u
Inc., No. 23-cv-02453 (“Cabea zas”), in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, by plaintiffff Jenniferff
Cabea zas purporr tedly on behalf of a class consisting of those persons impam cted by the cybey rsecurity incident that occurred on
October 31, 2023. The class action complaint alleged claims for negligence, negligence per se, breach of express contract,
breach of implm ied contrat ct, invasion of privacy, unjun st enrichment, breach of confidff ence, and breach of fiduciary duty based
upon allegations that the Company did not emplm oy reasonable and adequate security measures to protect customer personal
information accessed in the cybersecurity incident. The Cabea zas complaint sought damages, declaratoryrr and injun nctive relief,ff
and an award of costs, attorney fees and expenses, among other relief. Between November 2023 and Februarr ry 7, 2024, 26
additional putative class actions were filed against the Company asserting substantially similar claims and allegations as those
asserted in the Cabea zas action. The Cabea zas court consolidated all 26 pending cases with the Cabea zas action, and the 26



89 Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc. - 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K

separate matters were administratively closed. By Order dated June 25, 2024, the Cabezas court set July 15, 2024 as the last day
for Plaintiffsff to file a Consolidated Amended Complaint. On July 15, 2024, plaintiffsff Jose Ignacio Garrigo, Izabela Debowcsyk,
Joshua Watson, Brett Padalecki, Chris Leptiak, Denver Dale, Emily Burke, Mary Crawford, Kay Pollard, Jonathan Josi, Jeff
Price, Mychael Marrone, Katy Ross, Lynette Williams, Karen Lynn Williams, Gary Allen, Larry Siegal, Rohit Burani, Elizabeth
Curry, Justin Snider, Linda Hansen, and Deira Robertson (collectively, “Plaintiffsff ”) filed a Consolidated Class Action
Complaint on behalf of themselves and an alleged putative nationwide class of “All individuals residing in the United States
whose PII was accessed and/or acquired as a result of the Data Breach announced by Mr. Cooper in or around November
2023,” as well as 15 state subcu lasses. Plaintiffsff assert seven of the same claims as in the original Cabea zas complaint, (1) Breach
of Express Contract; (2) Breach of Implm ied Contract; (3) Negligence; (4) Negligence Per Se; (5) Unjun st Enrichment; (6)
Invasion of Privacy; (7) Breach of Confidff ence; as well as a claim for Declaratory and Injun nctive Relief, and 19 state law claims.
The Consolidated Class Action Complaint seeks damages, injun nctive relief, disgorgement and restitution, and an award of costs,
attorney fees and expenses, among othet r relief.ff The Cabea zas court set Septembem r 13, 2024 as the last day for Defendants to
move to dismiss the Consolidated Class Action Complaint. On Septembem r 13, 2024, the Company filed a motion to dismiss the
Consolidated Class Action Complaint. Plaintiffsff have opposed the motion, and the Company’s reply in furthet r suppu ort of its
motion is due March 27, 2025.

The Company operates within highly regulated industries on a federal, state and local level. In the normal and ordinary course
of its business, the Company is routinely subju ect to extensive examinations, investigations, subpu oenas, inquiries and reviews by
various federal, state and local governmental, regulatory and enforcement agencies, including the Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Department of Justice, the Offiff ce of the Special Inspector
General for the Troublu ed Asset Relief Program, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urbar n Development, various State
mortgage banking regulators and various State Attorneys General, related to the Company’s residential loan servicing and
origination practices, its financial reporting and othet r aspects of its businesses. Any pending or potential future investigations,
subpou enas, examinations or inquiries may lead to administrative, civil or criminal proceedings or settlements, and possibly
result in remedies including fines, penalties, restitution, or alterations in the Company’s business practices, and additional
expenses and collateral costs. The Company is cooperating fully in these matters. Responding to these matters requires the
Company to devote subsu tantial resources, resulting in higher costs and lower net cash flows. Adverse results in any of these
matters could furthet r increase the Company’s operating expenses and reduce its revenues, require it to change business
practices and limit its ability to grow and othet rwise materially and adversely affeff ct its business, reputation, financial condition
and results of operation.

The Company seeks to resolve all legal proceedings and other matters in the manner management believes is in the best interest
of the Company and contests liabia lity, allegations of wrongdoing and, where applicable, the amount of damages or scope of any
penalties or othet r relief sought as appropriate in each pending matter. The Company has entered into agreements with a number
of entities and regulatory agencies that toll applicable limitations periods with respect to their claims.

On at least a quarterly basis, the Company assesses its liabia lities and contingencies in connection with outstanding legal and
regulatory and governmrr ental proceedings utilizing the latest information availabla e. Where availabla e information indicates that it
is probable a liabia lity has been incurred, and the Company can reasonabla y estimate the amount of the loss, an accrued liabilityt is
establa ished. The actuat l costs of resolving these proceedings may be subsu tantially higher or lower than the amounts accrued.

As a legal matter develops, the Company, in conjunction with any outside counsel handling the matter, evaluates on an ongoing
basis whethet r such matter presents a loss contingency that is both probabla e and estimable. If,ff at the time of evaluation, the loss
contingency is not both probable and reasonably estimable, the matter will continue to be monitored for further developments
that would make such loss contingency botht probable and reasonably estimabla e. Once the matter is deemed to be botht probable
and reasonably estimabla e, the Company will establa ish an accruer d liabia lity and record a corresponding amount to legal-related
expense. The Company will continue to monitor the matter for further developments that could affeff ct the amount of the accrued
liability that has been previously establa ished. The Company incurred legal-related expense, which includes legal settlements
and the fees paid to external legal service providers, of $39 for both the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
and was included in “expenses - general and administrative” on the consolidated statements of operations.

For matters for which a loss is probable or reasonably possible in future periods, whether in excess of a related accruerr d liabia lity
or where there is no accruerr d liability,yy the Company may be able to estimate a range of possible loss. In determining whether it
is possible to provide an estimate of loss or range of possible loss, the Company reviews and evaluates its material legal matters
on an ongoing basis, in conjunction with any outside counsel handling the matter. Management currently believes the aggregate
range of reasonabla y possible loss is $2 to $9 in excess of the accruerr d liabia lity (if any) related to those matters as of
Decembem r 31, 2024. This estimated range of reasonabla y possible loss si based upon currently availabla e information and is
subject to significff ant judgment, numerous assumptions and known and unknown uncertainties. The matters underlying the
estimated range will change from time to time, and actuat l results may vary substantially from the current estimate. Those
matters for which an estimate is not possible are not included within the estimated range. Thereforff e, this estimated range of
possible loss represents what management believes to be an estimate of possible loss only for certain matters meeting these
criteria. It does not represent the Company’s maximum loss exposure and the Company cannot provide assurance that its
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litigations reserves will not need to be adjud sted in the future. Thus, the Company’s exposure and ultimate losses may be higher,
possibly significff antly so, than the amounts accruer d or this aggregate amount.

In the Company’s experience, legal proceedings are inherently unpredictable. One or more of the following factors frequeq ntly
contritt bute to this inherent unpredictabia lity: the proceeding is in its early stages; the damages sought are unspecified,
unsupported or uncertain; it is unclear whether a case brought as a class action will be allowed to proceed on that basis or, if
permitted to proceed as a class action, how the class will be defined; the othet r party is seeking relief othet r than or in addition to
compensatory damages (including, in the case of regulatory and governmr ental investigations and inquiries, the possibility of
fines and penalties); the matter presents meaningfulff legal uncertainties, including novel issues of law; the Company has not
engaged in meaningfulff settlement discussions; discoveryrr has not started or is not complete; there are significff ant facts in dispute;
predicting possible outcomes depends on making assumptions about future decisions of courts or governmental or regulatory
bodies or the behavior of other parties; and there are a large number of parties named as defendants (including where it is
uncertain how damages or liabia lity,yy if any, will be shared among multiple defendants). Generally,yy the less progress that has been
made in the proceedings or the broader the range of potential results, the harder it is for the Company to estimate losses or
ranges of losses that is reasonably possible the Company could incur.

Based on current knowledge, and afteff r consultation with counsel, management believes that the current legal accruerr d liabia lity
within payabla es and accruerr d liabilities, is appropriate, and the amount of any incremental liabia lity arising from these matters is
not expected to have a material adverse effeff ct on the consolidated financial condition of the Company, although the outcome of
such proceedings could be material to the Company’s operating results and cash flows for a particular period depending, on
among othet r things, the level of the Company’s revenues or income for such period. However, in the event of significff ant
developments on existing cases, it is possible that the ultimate resolution, if unfavorabla e, may be material to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Othett r Loss Contintt gencies
As part of the Company’s ongoing operations, it acquires servicing rights of mortgage loans that are subject to indemnificff ation
based on the representations and warranties of the seller. From time to time, the Company will seek recovery under these
representations and warranties for incurred costs. The Company believes all balances sought from sellers recorded in “advances
and othet r receivabla es, net” represent valid claims. However, the Company acknowk ledges that the claims process can be
prolonged due to the required time to perfectff claims at the loan level. Because of the required time to perfect or remediate these
claims, management relies on the sufficff iency of documentation suppu orting the claim, current negotiations with the counterparty
and othet r evidence to evaluate whether a reserve is required for non-recoverabla e balances. In the absence of successfulff
negotiations with the seller, all amounts claimed may not be recovered. Balances may be written-offff and charged against
earnir ngs when management identifieff s amounts where recoverabia lity from the seller is not likely. As of December 31, 2024, the
Company believes all recorded balances for which recovery is sought from the seller are valid claims, and no evidence suggests
additional reserves are warranted.

As a seller of mortgage loans to Agencies and other third parties, the Company may be required to indemnifyff or repurchase
mortgage loans that fail to meet certain customaryrr representations and warranties made in conjunction with sales of mortgage
loans. The repurchase reserve liabia lity related to such customary representations and warranties was $62 and $79 as of
Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which are included in “payables and other liabia lities” within the consolidated
balance sheets.

Loan and Othett r Commitments
The Company enters into IRLCs with prospective customers whereby the Company commits to lend a certain loan amount
under specific terms and interest rates to the customer. The Company also enters into LPCs with prospective sellers. These loan
commitments are treated as derivatives and are carrirr ed at fair value. See Note 11, Derivative Financial Instrutt mentstt , for more
information.

20. Segment Information

The Company’s segments reflect the internal reporting used to evaluate operating perforff mar nce and are based upon the
Company’s organizational structurt e, which focuses primarily on the services offeff red. The Company’s operations are primarily
conducted through two segments: Servicing and Originations. A brief description of the current business segments is as follows:

Servicing: This segment performs operational activities on behalf of investors or owners of the underlying mortgages and
mortgage servicing rights, including collecting and disbursing customer payments, investor reporting, customer service,
modifying loans where appropriate to help customers stay current, and when necessary performing collections, foreclosures,
and the sale of REO. In 2023, the Company expanded its special servicing and, in 2024, expanded its subsu ervicing offeff rings
with the acquiq sition and subsu equent integration of Rushmore Servicing brand and the mortgage operations from the Flagstar
Transaction.
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Originations: This segment originates residential mortgage loans through its direct-to-consumer channel, which provides
refinance options for its existing customers, and through its correspondent channel, which purchases or originates loans from
mortgage bankers.

Corporate/Ot// hett r: Corporate/Other includes the results of Xome’s and Roosevelt Management Company’s operations, the
Company’s unallocated overhead expenses (which include the costs of executive management and othet r corporate functions
that are not directly attributable to our operating segments), changes in equiq ty investments and interest expense on our
unsecured senior notes. In addition, Corporate/Other includes eliminations related to intersegment hedge fair value changes.
Functional expenses are allocated to individual segments based on the actuat l cost of services performed, direct resource
utilization, or headcount percentage for shared services. Facility costs are allocated to individual segments based on cost per
headcount for specific facilities utilized. Group insurance costs are allocated to individual segments based on global cost per
headcount. Non-allocated corporate expenses include the administrative costs of executive management and othet r corporate
functions that are not directly attributable to the Company’s operating segments. Revenues generated on inter-segment services
perforff med are valued based on similar services provided to external parties. Eliminations are included in Corporate/Othet r.

The tabla es below summarize the result of operations and total assets by segment that are provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Makers (CODMs), which consists of the Chief Executive Offiff cer, the President and the Chief Financial Offiff cer. Pretax
income (loss) is a key measurement used by the CODMs to evaluate segment results and is one of the factors considered in
determining capia tal allocation among the segments and determined in accordance with the measurement principles used in the
consolidated financial statements.

The following tabla es present financial information by segment:

Year Ended December 31, 2024

Financial Information by Segment Servicing Originations
Corporate/
Other Consolidated

Revenues
Service related, net $ 1,625 $ 86 $ 77 $ 1,788
Net gain on mortgage loans held for sale 39 398 — 437

Total revenues 1,664 484 77 2,225
Expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits 339 178 178 695
General and administrative 382 126 116 624

Total expenses 721 304 294 1,319
Interest income 705 84 1 790
Interest expense (411) (79) (286) (776)
Other income (expense), net — — (19) (19)

Total other income (expenses), net 294 5 (304) (5)

Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit)ff $ 1,237 $ 185 $ (521) $ 901

Depreciation and amortization for property and equipment and
intangible assets $ 15 $ 2 $ 27 $ 44
tal assets $ 14,900 $ 2,338 $ 1,701 $ 18,939
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Year Ended December 31, 2023

Financial Information by Segment Servicing Originations
Corporate/
Other Consolidated

Revenues
Service related, net $ 1,295 $ 61 $ 84 $ 1,440
Net gain (loss) on mortgage loans held for sale 84 271 (1) 354

Total revenues 1,379 332 83 1,794
Expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits 340 143 151 634
General and administrative 324 89 125 538

Total expenses 664 232 276 1,172
Interest income 491 36 1 528
Interest expense (324) (37) (176) (537)
Other income, net — — 41 41

Total other income (expenses), net 167 (1) (134) 32
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit)ff $ 882 $ 99 $ (327) $ 654

Depreciation and amortization for property and equipment and
intangible assets $ 12 $ 8 $ 18 $ 38
tal assets $ 11,740 $ 782 $ 1,674 $ 14,196

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Financial Information by Segment Servicing Originations
Corporate/
Other Consolidated

Revenues
Service related, net $ 1,691 $ 98 $ 76 $ 1,865
Net (loss) gain on mortgage loans held for sale (33) 632 — 599

Total revenues 1,658 730 76 2,464
Expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits 324 329 136 789
General and administrative 235 162 88 485

Total expenses 559 491 224 1,274
Interest income 208 53 — 261
Interest expense (221) (43) (160) (424)
Other income, net — — 187 187

Total other (expenses) income, net (13) 10 27 24
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit)ff $ 1,086 $ 249 $ (121) $ 1,214

Depreciation and amortization for property and equipment and
intangible assets $ 18 $ 16 $ 3 $ 37
tal assets $ 10,152 $ 749 $ 1,875 $ 12,776

Item 9. Changes in and Disaii gra eements withii Accountantt ts on Accountintt gn and Finaii ncial Discii losure

None.

Item 9A. Contrott ls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Offiff cer and Chief Financial Offiff cer, evaluated the effeff ctiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedurd es pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(“Exchange Act”), as of Decembem r 31, 2024.

Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Offiff cer and Chief Financial Offiff cer concluded that, as of Decembem r 31, 2024, our
disclosure controt ls and procedures are effeff ctive. Disclosure controls and procedurd es are designed at a reasonabla e assurance
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level and are effeff ctive to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or
submu it under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communim cated to our management, including our Chief
Executive Offiff cer and Chief Financial Offiff cer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establa ishing and maintaining adequaq te internal control over financial reporting as defined by
Rule 13a-15(f)ff and Rule 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal contrott l over financial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabia lity of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for
external purposr es in accordance with GAAP.PP Because of its inherent limitations, internal contrott l over financial reporting may
not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effeff ctiveness to future periods are subju ect to the risk
that controls may become inadequaq te becausa e of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effeff ctiveness of our internal contrott l over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024. In making
this assessment, we used the criteria set fortht by the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO”) in Internal Control-Integrated 2013 Framework. A control system, no matter how well conceived, implm emented and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the internal controt l system are
met. Because of such inherent limitations, no evaluation of contrott ls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues, if
any, within a company have been detected.

Based on our assessment and those criteria, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effeff ctive as of December 31, 2024.

Our independent registered public accounting firm has audited the effeff ctiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
as of Decembem r 31, 2024 as stated in their report, dated Februar ryaa 20, 2025, which appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter ended
Decembem r 31, 2024 that have materially affeff cted, or are reasonabla y likely to materially affeff ct, the Company’s internal contrott l
over financial reporting.

Limitations on Effeff ctiveness of Controls and Procedures
In designing and evaluating the disclosure contrott ls and procedures, management recognizes that any controt ls and procedurd es,
no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired contrott l objeb ctives.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc.’s internal contrott l over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria
establa ished in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) (thet COSO criteria). In our opinion, Mr. Cooper Group Inc. (thet Company) maintained, in all
material respects, effeff ctive internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publu ic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders' equiq ty and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decembem r 31,
2024, and the related notes and our report dated Februar ry 20, 2025 expressed an unqualifieff d opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effeff ctive internal contrott l over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effeff ctiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a publu ic accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducd ted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perforff m the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effeff ctive internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal contrott l over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weaknek ss exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effeff ctiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedurd es as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliabia lity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabla e detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effeff ct on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financa ial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effeff ctiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurd es may deteriorate.

/s/ Ernsr t & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas
Februar ry 20, 2025
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Item 9B. Othett r Infon rmatiott n

Consulting Agreement with Chris Marshall

On January 9, 2025, we announced that (i) Chris Marshall, our former Vice Chairman and President of the Company, joined
Xome to lead its operations in a consulting role and (ii) we intended to negotiate additional terms to the previously disclosed
terms of the consulting agreement attached to the Emplmm oyment and Transition Agreement, dated October 24, 2023, between the
Company and Mr. Marshall that was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
Septembem r 30, 2023. On Februarr ry 19, 2025, we entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with Mr.
Marshall for his provision of Services (as defined below).

Pursuant to the Consulting Agreement, Mr. Marshall will provide (i) special consulting services to the Company’s Chief
Executive Offiff cer and (ii) such other consulting services as reasonabla y requested by the Company (collectively, the “Services”).
As consideration for the Services, including any inventions created by Mr. Marshall, the Company shall pay Mr. Marshall a
consulting fee of $62,500 per month plus reimbum rsement for business and travel expenses required to perforff m the Services. Mr.
Marshall shall also be eligible to earn a performance incentive award with a target value of $1,500,000 for the 2025 calendar
year (the “2025 Bonus”) based on Mr. Marshall’s achievement of perforff mar nce goals establa ished by the Company’s Chief
Executive Offiff cer and Mr. Marshall’s continued performance of the Services through December 31, 2025. The actuatt l amount of
the 2025 Bonus may be more or less than the target amount, as determined by the Company’s Chief Executive Offiff cer. In the
event Mr. Marshall’s Services are terminated for any reason other than a Termination for Cause (as defined in the Consulting
Agreement) prior to Decembem r 31, 2025, the Company shall pay Mr. Marshall a pro-rata amount of the 2025 Bonus, measured
at target. Payment of any 2025 Bonus earned shall be paid in cash, Company stock or a mixturt e of cash or stock, as determined
by the Company, at the same time as annual bonuses are paid to the Company’s senior executives in 2026. Mr. Marshall shall
also be eligible to receive a special one-time bonus (the “TraTT nsaction Bonus”), conditioned on (i) the Company’s achievement
of a strategic transaction to be specified by the Company’s Chief Executive Offiff cer (the “TraTT nsaction”), (ii) Mr. Marshall’s
continued performance of the Services through the date of the Transaction, and (iii) the Transaction occurring during the
Consulting Period (as defined below). Mr. Marshall’s eligibilityt to receive the Transaction Bonus and the amount of such
Transaction Bonus will be determined by the Company’s Chief Executive Offiff cer. Any Transaction Bonus shall be paid in cash,
Company stock or a mixture of cash or stock, as determined by the Company within 30 days following the closing of the
Transaction.

The term of the Consulting Agreement is from January 1, 2025 until May 1, 2026 (the “Consulting Period”). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, either Mr. Marshall or the Company may terminate the Consulting Agreement and the Services for convenience
at any time by providing at least thirty (30) days’ written notice to the other. Additionally,yy the Company may terminate the
Consulting Agreement immediately for cause (a “TerTT mination for Cause”) as set fortht in the Consulting Agreement. In addition,
the Consulting Agreement protects the Company’s confidff ential information and contains robust inventions and intellectuat l
property covenants running in favor of the Company.

The foregoing summaryrr of the Consulting Agreement is qualifieff d in its entirety by reference to the text of the Consulting
Agreement, which is being filed as Exhibit 10.81 to this report and is incorporated in this report by reference.

Item 9C. Discii losure Regae rdindd g Foreigngg Jurisdii icdd tions that Prevent Inspections

Not applicable.

PART III.

Item 10. Direii ctortt s,rr Executive Offiff cersrr and Corporatett Governance

Information required by this item will be incorporated by reference from the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2025
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Company’s fiscal year-end (thet
“2025 Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executivtt e Compensation

Information required by this item will be incorporated by reference from the 2025 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Securityii Ownership of Certaitt nii Benefie ciali Owners and Managea ment and Related Stoctt kholdell r Matters.

Information required by this item will be incorporated by reference from the 2025 Proxy Statement.
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Item 13. Certaitt nii Relationships and Related Transactiott ns,s and Direii ctortt Indepeee ndendd ce.

Information required by this item will be incorporated by reference from the 2025 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principaii l Accountantt t Fees and Services.

Information required by this item will be incorporated by reference from the 2025 Proxy Statement.

Item 15. Exhibiii tsii and Finaii ncial Stattt emtt ent Schedules

Documents filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements:

Our consolidated financial statements as of Decembem r 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years ended Decembem r 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022, and the notes thereto, together with the report of the independent registered public accounting firm on those
consolidated financial statements are filed within Item 8 in Part II as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

No financial statement schedules are presented since the required information is not present or not present in amounts
sufficff ient to require submission of the schedule, or becausa e the information required is included in the consolidated
financial statements and accompam nying notes.

3. Exhibits:

The exhibits to this report are listed in the index to exhibits below.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description

Incorporated by Reference Filed or
Furnished
HerewithForm File No. Exhibit Filing Date

2.1+

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May
10, 2023, by and among Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc.,
Home Point Capia tal Inc. and Heisman Merger Sub,u
Inc.

8-K 001-14667 2.1 05/11/2023

2.2†
Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 24,
2024, by and among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as
purchaser and Flagstar Bank N.A., as seller

10-Q 001-14667 2.1 07/26/2024

2.3†

Agreement for the Bulk Purchase and Sale of
Mortgage Servicing Rights, entered into as of July
24, 2024, by and between Nationstar Mortgage
LLC, as purchaser and Flagstar Bank N.A., as
seller

10-Q 001-14667 2.2 07/26/2024

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificff ate of Incorporation
of the Company, as amended. 8-K 001-14667 3.1 10/10/2018

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company 10-Q 001-14667 3.2 11/09/2018
4.1 Description of Common Stock X

4.2

Indenturt e, dated as of January 16, 2020, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as Issuer, the
Company as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
as Trusrr tee

10-K 001-14667 4.14 02/28/2020

4.3

First Supplemental Indenturt e, dated as of August 1,
2023 to Indenturtt e dated January 16, 2020, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as issuer, the
Company, as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Computershare Trusrr t Company, N.A.
(f/k/a Wells Fargo Bank, National Association), as
trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.3 08/01/2023

4.4

Indenturt e, dated as of August 6, 2020, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as Issuer, the
Company as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
as Trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.1 08/06/2020

4.5

First Supplemental Indenturt e, dated as of August 1,
2023 to Indenturtt e dated August 6, 2020, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as issuer, the
Company, as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Computershare Trusrr t Company, N.A.
(f/k/a Wells Fargo Bank, National Association), as
trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.4 08/01/2023

4.6

Indenture, dated as of Decembem r 4, 2020, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as Issuer, the
Company as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
as Trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.1 12/04/2020

4.7

First Supplemental Indenturt e, dated as of August 1,
2023 to Indenturtt e dated December 4, 2020, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as issuer, the
Company, as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Computershare Trusrr t Company, N.A.
(f/k/a Wells Fargo Bank, National Association), as
trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.5 08/01/2023
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Exhibit
Number Description

Incorporated by Reference Filed or
Furnished
HerewithForm File No. Exhibit Filing Date

4.8

Indenturt e, dated as of January 19, 2021, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. (as successor-
in-interest to Home Point Capia tal Inc.), the
guarantors partytt thereto and U.S. Bank Trusrr t
Company, National Association (as successor-in-
interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as
trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.1 08/01/2023

4.9

First Supplemental Indenturt e, dated August 1, 2023
to Indenturtt e dated January 19, 2021, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. (as successor-
in-interest to Home Point Capia tal Inc.), the
guarantors partytt thereto and U.S. Bank Trusrr t
Company, National Association (as successor-in-
interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as
trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.2 08/01/2023

4.10

Indenturt e, dated as of November 4, 2021, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as Issuer, the
Company as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Computershare Trusrr t Company, N.A. as
Trusr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.1 11/04/2021

4.11

First Supplemental Indenturt e, dated as of August 1,
2023 to Indenturtt e dated November 4, 2021, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as issuer, the
Company, as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Computershare Trusrr t Company, N.A.
(f/k/a Wells Fargo Bank, National Association), as
trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.6 08/01/2023

4.12

Indenturt e, dated as of Februar ry 1, 2024 among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as Issuer, the
Company as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors
thereto and Computershare Trusrr t Company, N.A. as
Trusr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.1 02/01/2024

4.13

Indenturt e, dated as of August 1, 2024, among
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. as Issuer, the
Company as Parent Guarantor, the guarantors party
thereto and Computershare Trusrr t Company, N.A.,
as Trusrr tee

8-K 001-14667 4.1 08/01/2024

10.1
Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase and Sale
Agreement, dated March 25, 2011, between
Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.18 03/15/2013

10.2

Amendment Number One, dated Februarr ry 29,
2012, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.19 03/15/2013

10.3

Amendment Number Two, dated August 28, 2012,
to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase and
Sale Agreement, dated March 25, 2011, among
Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.20 03/15/2013

10.4

Amendment Number Three, dated Decembem r 24,
2012, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated March 25, 2012,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.21 03/15/2013
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Exhibit
Number Description

Incorporated by Reference Filed or
Furnished
HerewithForm File No. Exhibit Filing Date

10.5

Amendment Number Four, dated July 18, 2013, to
the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase and Sale
Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011, between
Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-35449 10.11 11/14/2013

10.6

Amendment Number Five, dated July 24, 2013, to
the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase and Sale
Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011, between
Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-35449 10.12 11/14/2013

10.7

Amendment Number Six, dated Septembem r 20,
2013, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-35449 10.13 11/14/2013

10.8

Amendment Number Seven, dated August 21,
2014, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-35449 10.3 11/07/2014

10.9

Amendment Number Eight, dated October 20,
2014, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-35449 10.4 11/07/2014

10.10

Amendment Number Nine, dated October 19,
2015, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.28 03/01/2016

10.11

Amendment Number Ten, dated October 17, 2016,
to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase and
Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.17 03/09/2017

10.12

Amendment Number Eleven, dated October 31,
2016, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.18 03/09/2017

10.13

Amendment Number Twelve, dated October 30,
2017, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-35449 10.18 03/02/2018

10.14

Amendment Number Thirteen, dated March 22,
2018, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-35449 10.1 05/10/2018

10.15

Amendment Number Fourteen, dated October 24,
2018, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-14667 10.17 03/11/2019
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Exhibit
Number Description

Incorporated by Reference Filed or
Furnished
HerewithForm File No. Exhibit Filing Date

10.16

Amendment Number Fifteen, dated November 20,
2018, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-K 001-14667 10.18 03/11/2019

10.17

Amendment Number Sixteen, dated Januaryrr 28,
2019, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 05/08/2019

10.18

Amendment Number Seventeen, dated March 29,
2019, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 05/08/2019

10.19

Amendment Number Eighteen, dated April 3,
2019, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011,
between Barclays Bank PLC and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 08/02/2019

10.20

Amendment Number Nineteen, dated March 30,
2020, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011
between Barclays Bank PLC, as Agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as Seller

10-K 001-14667 10.22 02/23/2021

10.21

Amendment Number Twenty,yy dated Septembem r 11,
2020, to the Mortgage Loan Participation Purchase
and Sale Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2011
between Barclays Bank PLC, as Agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as Seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 10/29/2020

10.22

Amendment Number Twenty-One, dated December
18, 2020, to the Mortgage Loan Participation
Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of March
25, 2011 between Barclays Bank PLC, as Agent
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as Seller

10-K 001-14667 10.24 02/23/2021

10.23

Second Amended and Restated Master Repurchase
Agreement, dated January 29, 2016, between
Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent, Sutton
Funding LLC, as purchaser, and Nationstar
Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-35449 10.1 05/05/2016

10.24

Amendment Number One dated as of June 24,
2016 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
Sutton Funding LLC, as a purchaser, and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-35449 10.2 08/09/2016

10.25

Amendment Number Two dated as of October 17,
2016 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
Sutton Funding LLC, as a purchaser, and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-35449 10.21 03/09/2017
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Exhibit
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Incorporated by Reference Filed or
Furnished
HerewithForm File No. Exhibit Filing Date

10.26

Amendment Number Three dated as of October 31,
2016 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
Sutton Funding LLC, as a purchaser, and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-35449 10.22 03/09/2017

10.27

Amendment Number Four dated as of October 30,
2017 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
Sutton Funding LLC, as a purchaser, and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-35449 10.23 03/02/2018

10.28

Amendment Number Five dated as of March 22,
2018 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-35449 10.2 05/10/2018

10.29

Amendment Number Six dated as of May 29, 2018
to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-35449 10.1 08/03/2018

10.30

Amendment Number Seven dated as of October 24,
2018 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-14667 10.26 03/11/2019

10.31

Amendment Number Eight dated as of November
20, 2018 to the Second Amended and Restated
Master Repurchase Agreement dated Januaryrr 29,
2016 among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and
agent, and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-14667 10.27 03/11/2019

10.32

Amendment Number Nine dated as of January 28,
2019 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 05/08/2019

10.33

Amendment Number Ten dated as of March 29,
2019 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated January 29, 2016
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.4 05/08/2019

10.34

Amendment Number Eleven, dated as of April 3,
2019 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement, dated January 29, 2016,
among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and agent,
and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 08/02/2019

10.35

Amendment Number Twelve dated as of October
25, 2019 to the Second Amended and Restated
Master Repurchase Agreement dated Januaryrr 29,
2016 among Barclays Bank PLC, as purchaser and
agent, and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-14667 10.34 02/28/2020

10.36

Amendment Number Thirteen dated March 30,
2020 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 04/30/2020
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10.37

Amendment Number Fourteen dated Septembem r 11,
2020 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 10/29/2020

10.38

Amendment Number Fifteen dated October 26,
2020 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-14667 10.40 02/23/2021

10.39

Amendment Number Sixteen dated December 18,
2020 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-14667 10.41 02/23/2021

10.40

Amendment Number Seventeen dated July 9, 2021
to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 10/28/2021

10.41

Amendment Number Eighteen dated Septembem r 30,
2021 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 10/28/2021

10.42

Amendment Number Nineteen dated June 3, 2022
to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.7 07/27/2022

10.43

Amendment Number Twenty dated Septembem r 30,
2022 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of January 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 10/26/2022

10.44

Amendment Number Twenty-One dated October 6,
2023 to the Second Amended and Restated Master
Repurchase Agreement dated as of Januaryr 29,
2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as agent and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-K 001-14667 001-
14667 02/28/2024

10.45

Amendment Number Twenty-TwoTT , dated
Septembem r 30, 2024 to the Second Amended and
Restated Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of
January 29, 2016 between Barclays Bank PLC, as
agent and Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 001-
14667 10/23/2024

10.46

Mortgage Loan Participation Sale Agreement dated
as of August 30, 2016 between JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, as purchaser and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller, conforff med
through Amendment No. 7

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 07/27/2022
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10.47

Omnibus Amendment, Consent and
Acknowledgment Agreement, effeff ctive as of
Februar ry 1, 2019 to Mortgage Loan Participation
Sale Agreement dated as of August 30, 2016 by and
between JPMorgan Chase Bank, National
Association, as Purchaser and Nationstar Mortgage
LLC (successor by merger to Pacific Union
Financial, LLC), as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 07/27/2022

10.48

Amendment Number 8, dated June 6, 2023 to
Mortgage Loan Participation Sale Agreement dated
as of August 30, 2016 between JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, as purchaser and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.6 07/26/2023

10.49

Amendment Number 9 dated June 26, 2024 to
Mortgage Loan Participation Sale Agreement dated
as of August 30, 2016 between JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, as purchaser and
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as seller

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 07/26/2024

10.50

Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of May 17,
2019 among Nationstar Subu 1J LLC and Nationstar
REO Subu 1J LLC, as seller parties, Nationstar
Mortgage LLC, as guarantor and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, as buyer, conforff mer d
through Amendment No. 9

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 07/27/2022

10.51

Amendment No. 10, dated as of June 27, 2023 to
Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of May 17,
2019 among Nationstar Subu 1J LLC and Nationstar
REO Subu 1J LLC, as seller parties, Nationstar
Mortgage LLC, as guarantor and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, as buyer

10-Q 001-14667 10.7 07/26/2023

10.52

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of August
20, 2020 among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as
borrower, Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A., as initial
lender and Morgan Stanley Mortgage Capia tal
Holdings LLC, as administrative agent

10-Q 001-14667 10.4 07/27/2022

10.53

Amendment No. 1 dated as of Septembem r 17, 2021
to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of August
20, 2020 among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as
borrower, Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A., as initial
lender and Morgan Stanley Mortgage Capia tal
Holdings LLC, as administrative agent

10-Q 001-14667 10.5 07/27/2022

10.54

Amendment No. 2 dated as of August 3, 2022 to
Loan and Security Agreement dated as of August
20, 2020 among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as
borrower, Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A., as lender
and Morgan Stanley Mortgage Capia tal Holdings
LLC, as administrative agent

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 10/26/2022

10.55

Amendment No. 3 dated as of March 30, 2023 to
Loan and Security Agreement dated as of August
20, 2020 among Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as
borrower, Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A., as initial
lender and Morgan Stanley Mortgage Capia tal
Holdings LLC, as administrative agent

10-Q 001-14667 10.6 04/26/2023
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10.56

Third Amended and Restated Master Repurchase
Agreement, entered into as of August 31, 2020 by
and between Bank of America, N.A., as buyer and
Nationstar Participation Subu 1BM LLC, as seller,
and acknok wledged, guaranteed and agreed to by
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as guarantor or pledgor

10-Q 001-14667 10.6 07/27/2022

10.57

Conforff med Amendments through Amendment
Number 3, dated August 12, 2022, to Third
Amended and Restated Master Repurchase
Agreement, entered into as of August 31, 2020 by
and between Bank of America, N.A., as buyer and
Nationstar Participation Subu 1BM LLC, as seller,
and acknok wledged, guaranteed and agreed to by
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as guarantor or pledgor

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 10/26/2022

10.58

Amendment Number 4, dated October 21, 2022, to
Third Amended and Restated Master Repurchase
Agreement, entered into as of August 31, 2020 by
and between Bank of America, N.A., as buyer and
Nationstar Participation Subu 1BM LLC, as seller,
and acknok wledged, guaranteed and agreed to by
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as guarantor or pledgor

10-K 001-14667 10.54 02/16/2023

10.59

Amendment Number 5, dated October 20, 2023, to
Third Amended and Restated Master Repurchase
Agreement, entered into as of August 31, 2020 by
and between Bank of America, N.A., as buyer and
Nationstar Participation Subu 1BM LLC, as seller,
and acknok wledged, guaranteed and agreed to by
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as guarantor or pledgor

10-K 001-14667 10.55 02/28/2024

10.60

Amendment Number 6, dated January 30, 2024, to
Third Amended and Restated Master Repurchase
Agreement, entered into as of August 31, 2020 by
and between Bank of America, N.A., as buyer and
Nationstar Participation Subu 1BM LLC, as seller,
and acknok wledged, guaranteed and agreed to by
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as guarantor or pledgor

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 04/24/2024

10.61

Amendment Number 7, dated October 18, 2024, to
Third Amended and Restated Master Repurchase
Agreement, entered into as of August 31, 2020 by
and between Bank of America, N.A., as buyer and
Nationstar Participation Subu 1BM LLC, as seller,
and acknok wledged, guaranteed and agreed to by
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as guarantor or pledgor

X

10.62

Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023, between
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower and
Barclays Bank PLC, as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 07/26/2023

10.63

Amendment Number One, dated as of May 11,
2023 to the Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023,
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower
and Barclays Bank PLC, as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 07/26/2023

10.64

Amendment Number Two, dated as of June 23,
2023 to the Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023,
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower
and Barclays Bank PLC, as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 07/26/2023
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10.65

Amendment Number Three, dated October 6, 2023
to Second Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023,
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower
and Barclays Bank PLC, as lender

10-K 001-14667 10.59 02/28/2024

10.66

Amendment Number Four, dated March 29, 2024
to Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023, between
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower and
Barclays Bank PLC, as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 04/24/2024

10.67

Amendment Number Five, dated June 28, 2024 to
Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023, between
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower and
Barclays Bank PLC, as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 07/26/2024

10.68

Amendment Number Six, dated Septembem r 30,
2024 to Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023, between
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower and
Barclays Bank PLC, as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 10/23/2024

10.69

Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023, between
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower and
Citibank, N.A. as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.4 07/26/2023

10.70

Amendment Number One, dated June 23, 2023 to
Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023, between
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower and
Citibank, N.A. as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.5 07/26/2023

10.71

Amendment Number Two, dated August 11, 2023
to Second Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023,
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower
and Citibank, N.A. as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 10/25/2023

10.72

Amendment Number Three, dated April 10, 2024
to Second Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023,
between Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower
and Citibank, N.A. as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 07/26/2024

10.73

Amendment Number Four, dated May 10, 2024 to
Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2023, between
Nationstar Mortgage LLC, as borrower and
Citibank, N.A. as lender

10-Q 001-14667 10.4 07/26/2024

10.74+

Base Indenturt e entered into as of July 31, 2024, by
and among Nationstar GNMATrusrr t, a Delaware
statutt ory trusrr t, as Issuer, Citibank, N.A., as
Indenturt e Trusrr tee, Calculation Agent, Paying Agent
and Securities Intermediary,yy Nationstar Mortgage
LLC, as Administrator and Servicer, Goldman
Sachs Bank USA, as an Administrative Agent, and
acknowledged by Pentalpha Surveillance LLC, as
credit manager

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 10/23/2024

10.75** Offeff r Letter and Acceptance, dated January 15,
2020, between the Company and Mike Rawls 10-Q 001-14667 10.3 10/29/2020

10.76** Offeff r Letter and Acceptance, dated Februarr ry 12,
2021, between the Company and Kurt Johnson 10-K 001-14667 10.57 02/16/2023
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10.77**
Offeff r Letter and Acceptance, dated January 9,
2023, by and between the Company and Carlos
Pelayo

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 04/26/2023

10.78**
Emplm oyment and Transition Agreement, effeff ctive
as of October 24, 2023, by and between the
Company and Christopher Marshall

10-Q 001-14667 10.2 10/25/2023

10.79**
Emplm oyment and Retention Agreement, effeff ctive as
of October 24, 2023, by and between the Company
and Jesse K. Bray

10-Q 001-14667 10.3 10/25/2023

10.80** Emplmm oyment Agreement, dated Decembem r 7, 2023,
between the Company and Michael Weinbach 8-K 001-14667 10.1 01/09/2024

10.81** Consulting Agreement, dated as of Februarr ry 19,
2025, the Company and Christopher Marshall X

10.82**
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. Second
Amended and Restated 2012 Incentive
Compensation Plan

8-K 001-35449 10.1 05/12/2016

10.83**
Amendment to the Nationstar Mortgage Holdings
Inc. Second Amended and Restated 2012 Incentive
Compensation Plan

8-K 001-14667 10.2 08/01/2018

10.84**
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for
Emplm oyees under the Amended and Restated 2012
Incentive Compensation Plan

10-Q 001-35449 10.5 05/07/2015

10.85** Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc. 2019 Omnibus Incentive
Plan S-8 333-231552 99.1 05/16/2019

10.86** Form of Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement-Emplmm oyees 8-K 001-14667 10.2 05/17/2019

10.87** Form of Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement-Non-Emplmm oyee Directors 8-K 001-14667 10.3 05/17/2019

10.88**
Form of 2022 Grant Notice and Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement-Emplm oyee (No Retirement
Provision)

10-Q 001-14667 10.1 04/28/2022

10.89** Form of 2022 Perforff mance Stock Unit Agreement
– Emplm oyee (Standard Retirement Provision) 10-Q 001-14667 10.2 04/28/2022

10.90** Form of 2022 Perforff mance Stock Unit Agreement
– Emplmm oyee (Special Retirement Provision) 10-Q 001-14667 10.3 04/28/2022

10.91** Form of 2023 Perforff mance Stock Unit Agreement 10-Q 001-14667 10.3 04/26/2023
10.92** Form of 2024 Perforff mance Stock Unit Agreement 10-K 001-14667 10.59 2/28/2024
10.93** Form of 2025 Perforff mance Stock Unit Agreement X

10.94** Form of Value-Driver Retention and Performance
Award Agreement and Grant Notice (Bray) 10-Q 001-14667 10.4 10/25/2023

10.95** Form of Indemnificff ation Agreement with directors
and offiff cers 8-K 001-14667 10.1 05/13/2015

19 Insider Trading Compliance Program X
21.1 Subsu idiaries of the Registrant X
23.1 Consent of Ernsrr t & Young LLP X

31.1

Certificff ation by Chief Executive Offiff cer pursuant
to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

31.2

Certificff ation by Chief Financial Offiff cer pursuant to
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

32.1
Certificff ation by Chief Executive Offiff cer pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X
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32.2
Certificff ation by Chief Financial Offiff cer pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

97
Incentive Compensation Clawback Policy (Policy
Relating to Recovery of Errorr neously Awarded
Compensation), adopted October 24, 2023

10-K 001-14667 97 2/28/2024

101.INS

Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance
document does not appear in the Interactive Data
File because its XBRL tags are embem dded within
the Inline XBRL document.

X

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Document X

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
Linkbakk se Document X

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbakk se Document X

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labea l Linkbakk se
Document X

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Linkbakk se Document X

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as
Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibits 101.) X

+ The schedules and other attachments referenced in this exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. A
copy of any omitted schedule or attachment will be furnished suppu lementaryrr to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.

† Pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K, certain schedules and similar attachments have been omitted. Further, pursuant to Item
601(b)(2)(ii) of Regulation S-K, certain identifieff d information has been excluded from this exhibit because it is both (i) not material and (ii)
would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed. The registrant hereby agrees to furnish supplu ementally a copy of any omitted schedule
or similar attachment to the SEC upon request.

** Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.

The agreements and other documents filed as exhibits to this report are not intended to provide factuat l information or othet r
disclosure othet r than the terms of the agreements or other documents themselves, and you should not rely on them for that
purpose. In particular, any representations and warranties made by the Company in these agreements or other documents were
made solely within the specific context of the relevant agreement or document and may not describe the actuat l state of affaff irs at
the date they were made or at any othet r time.

Item 16. Form 10-K- Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Mr. Cooper Groupu Inc.

By: /s/ Jay Bray
Jay Bray
Chief Executive Offiff cer

Februar ry 20, 2025

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrat nt and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Jay Bray Februar ry 20, 2025

Jay Bray,yy Chief Executive Offiff cer and Director
(Principal Executive Offiff cer)

/s/ Kurt Johnson Februar ry 20, 2025

Kurt Johnson, Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Offiff cer (Principal Financial and Accounting
Offiff cer)

/s/ Roy A. Guthrie Februar ry 20, 2025

Roy A. Guthrie, Director

/s/ Daniela Jorge Februar ry 20, 2025

Daniela Jorge, Director

/s/ Shveta Mujuu mdar Februar ry 20, 2025

Shveta Mujuu mdar, Director

/s/ Tagar C. Olson Februar ry 20, 2025
Tagar C. Olson, Director

/s/ Steven D. Scheiwe Februar ry 20, 2025
Steven D. Scheiwe, Director
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ANNEX A – NON-GAAP MEASURES
We provide certain non-GAAP financial measures that are not in accordance with, or alternatives for, generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States. The Company utilizes non-GAAP financial measures as the measures provide
additional information to assist investors in understanding and assessing our business segments’ ongoing performance
and financial results, as well as assessing our prospects for future performance. This annex includes additional
information regarding these measures.

Adjud sted operating financial measures facilitate a meaningful analysis and allow more accurate comparisons of our
ongoing business operations because they exclude items that may not be indicative of or are unrelated to the
Company’s and our business segments’ core operating performance and are better measures for assessing trends in
our underlying businesses. These notable items are consistent with how management views our businesses. Pretax
operating income in the servicing segment eliminates the effects of mark-to-market adjud stments which primarily
reflects unrealized gains or losses based on the changes in fair value measurements of MSRs and their related financing
liabilities for which a fair value accounting election was made. These adjud stments, which can be highly volatile and
material due to changes in credit markets, are not necessarily reflective of the gains and losses that will ultimately be
realized by the Company. Pretax operating income in the servicing segment also eliminated a $60 million accounting
item and $14 million for intangible amortization in 2024.

Operating return on tangible common equity is a non-GAAP financial measure that is computed by dividing
adjud sted net income (operating income) by average tangible common equity (also known as tangible book value).
Tangible common equity equals total stockholders’ equity less goodwill and intangible assets. The annual average is
calculated by taking the quarterly averages of beginning and ending period. Management believes that operating
return on tangible common equity is a useful financial measure because it measures the performance of a business
consistently and enables investors and others to assess the Company’s use of equity.

Tangible book value is a non-GAAP financial measure that is defined as stockholders’ equity less goodwill and
intangible assets. Tangible book value per share is calculated by dividing tangible book value by the number of
common shares outstanding. Management believes tangible book value and tangible book value per share are useful
metrics to investors because they provide a more accurate measure of the realizable value of stockholder returns,
excluding the impact of goodwill and intangible assets.

The following tables reconcile (a) GAAP return on common equity to operating return on tangible common equity
(b) GAAP book value and GAAP book value per share to tangible book value and tangible book value per share,
respectively and (c) GAAP pretax income to pretax operating income in the servicing segment.



Mr. Cooper Group Inc. - 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K 110

RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

mm's 2024

Pretax income $901
Income tax expense (232)
Net income $669

Return on common equity (ROCE)⁽¹⁾ 14.7%

Average book value⁽²⁾ $4,546

Pretax income $901
Other mark-to-market (76)
Accounting items / other 60
Intangible amortization 14

Pretax operating income $899
Income tax expense⁽³⁾ (218)
Operating income $681

Operating return on tangible common equity (ROTCE) 15.6%

Average tangible book value $4,368

Servicing pretax income $1,237
Other mark-to-market (76)
Accounting items / other 9
Intangible amortization 12
Servicing pretax operating income $1,182

⁽¹⁾ ROCE is computed by dividing earnings by the average of quarterly BV averages
⁽²⁾ Average of quarterly BV averages of $4,344 for 1Q’24, $4,500 for 2Q’24, $4,616 for 3Q’24, and $4,726 for 4Q’24
⁽³⁾ Assumes GAAP tax-rate of 24.2% and does not give credit to cash flow benefits of the DTA

mm's, except per share amounts December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 Y/Y//
Change

Stockholders' equity (BV) $4,282 $4,813
Goodwill (141) (141)
Intangible assets (28) (119)

Tangible book value (TBV) $4,113 $4,553
Ending shares of common stock outstanding (mm's) 64.6 63.6

BV/sV hare $66.29 $75.70 14%
TBV/share $63.67 $71.61 12%
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